
EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately.  Follow the green signs.  Use the stairs 
not the lifts.  Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

Notice of Meeting 

Planning Committee 
Councillor Brown (Chair),  
Councillor O'Regan (Vice-Chair),  
Councillors Barnard, Collings, Egglestone, Frewer, Hayes MBE, 
Karim, McKenzie-Boyle, Penfold, Smith and Zahuruddin 
Thursday 9 November 2023, 6.30 pm 
Council Chamber - Time Square, Market Street, Bracknell, RG12 
1JD 

 
 

Agenda 
All councillors at this meeting have adopted the Mayor’s Charter  

which fosters constructive and respectful debate. 

Item Description Page 
 
1.  Apologies for Absence   

 To receive apologies for absence.  
 
2.  Minutes  3 - 10 

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Committee 
held on 12 October. 

 

 
3.  Declarations of Interest   

 Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary or affected 
interests in respect of any matter to be considered at this meeting. 
 
Any Member with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in a matter should 
withdraw from the meeting when the matter is under consideration and 
should notify the Democratic Services Officer in attendance that they are 
withdrawing as they have such an interest. If the Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interest is not entered on the register of Members interests the Monitoring 
Officer must be notified of the interest within 28 days. 
 
Any Member with an Affected Interest in a matter must disclose the interest 
to the meeting.  There is no requirement to withdraw from the meeting when 
the interest is only an affected interest, but the Monitoring Officer should be 
notified of the interest, if not previously notified of it, within 28 days of the 
meeting. 

 

 
4.  Urgent Items of Business   

 Any other items which, pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the Chairman decides are urgent. 

 

Planning Applications 

(Assistant Director: Planning) 
  



EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately.  Follow the green signs.  Use the stairs 
not the lifts.  Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

The conditions for public speaking have been met in the applications marked ‘PS’.  
For further information or to register for public speaking, please contact Customer 
Services 01344 352000. 
   
5.  PS 21/00592/FUL Land South Of Forest Road Newell Green Warfield 

Bracknell Berkshire  
15 - 88 

 Demolition of existing buildings and erection of 43 dwellings, associated 
landscaping and parking, with access from Forest Road and Crozier Lane. 

 

 
6.  PS 23-00426-FUL 15 Darwall Drive, Ascot, Berkshire, SL5 8NB  89 - 102 

 Proposed part single storey, part two storey rear extensions, raising of the 
ridge height and loft conversion, garage conversion. 

 

Sound recording, photographing, filming and use of social media is permitted.  Please 
contact Jamie Beardsmore, 01344 352500, Jamie.Beardsmore@bracknell-forest.gov.uk, so 
that any special arrangements can be made. 
Published: 30 October 2023 



 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
12 OCTOBER 2023 
6.30  - 8.20 PM 
  

Present: 
Councillors Brown (Chair), Barnard, Collings, Egglestone, Hayes MBE, McKenzie-Boyle, 
Penfold, Smith and Zahuruddin 
 
Present Virtually:  
Councillor Frewer 
 
Visiting Members: 
 Councillors Gilbe, Harrison and Virgo 

29. Minutes  
Subject to the amendments of the attendance to show Councillor Zahuruddin as 
present and to show Councillors Gaw and Virgo present as visiting councillors, it was  
  
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 14 September 2023 be 
approved as a correct record. 

30. Declarations of Interest  
There were no declarations of interest. 

31. Urgent Items of Business  
Councillor Barnard made the following statement: 
  
At the last planning committee meeting I let my passion and frustration get the better 
of me and on a number of occasions I showed a lack of respect to the chair and 
therefore the committee as a whole. I have subsequently reviewed the recording of 
the meeting and reflected on my conduct. 
  
I have also since participated in some follow up training with regards to the conduct of 
planning committee and consequently will ensure I follow due process in a courteous 
manner. 
  
In conclusion I therefore offer a full and unconditional public apology to the chair and 
members of the committee. 

32. PS 21/00592/FUL Land South Of Forest Road, Newell Green, Warfield, Bracknell  
Demolition of existing buildings and erection of 43 dwellings,  
associated landscaping and parking, with access from Forest Road  
and Crozier Lane 
  
The item was deferred to enable a site visit. 

3

Agenda Item 2



 

 

33. PS 22/01047/FUL Land North Of Newhurst Gardens, Newhurst Gardens, 
Warfield. Bracknell, Berkshire, RG42 6AW  
Section 73 application to vary conditions 4, 6 and 7 of planning permission 
16/01004/OUT for the erection of up to 50 residential units and associated 
works. [For clarification this application seeks permission to change the 
access arrangements for the development]. 
  
The Committee Noted: 

• The supplementary report tabled at the meeting. 
• Three further representations had been received from addresses which have 

already commented when this item was first brought before the committee on 
15 June 2023 as summarised in the agenda. 

• The additional representation received as summarised in the supplementary 
report.  

• That a site visit had taken place on 7 October 2023, attended by Cllrs, 
Barnard, Brown, Collings, Hayes, Karim, Penfold, Smith, Zahuruddin, Harrison 
and Virgo. 

• The representations of the two public speakers at the meeting. 
  
Following the completion of planning obligation(s) under Section 106 of the Town and  
Country Planning Act 1990 relating to the following;  
  
- update the access plan within the S106 to correspond with the plans approved 
under this application;  
- include clauses to secure details regarding the maintenance and management of 
the proposed access and internal road layout.  
- secure the provision of visibility splays which pass over land outside the application 
site boundary but over land controlled by the applicant. 
  
RESOLVED that the Assistant Director: Planning be authorised to APPROVE the 
application 22/01047/FUL subject to the following conditions amended, added to, or 
deleted as the Assistant Director: Planning considers necessary: 
  
01.       Approval of the details of the scale of the buildings, the layout, appearance 

and landscaping of the development (hereinafter called "the reserved 
matters") shall be obtained from the Local Planning Authority in writing before 
development is commenced. The plans and particulars in relation to the 
reserved matters shall be submitted in writing to the Local Planning Authority 
and shall be carried out as approved. 

            REASON:  To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990. 

  
02.       The development hereby permitted shall be begun not later than the 

expiration of two years from the final approval of the reserved matters, or, in 
the case of approval on different dates, the final approval of the last such 
matter to be approved. 

            REASON:  To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990. 

  
03.       The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance 

with the following approved plans and other submitted details:- 
o          Site Location Plan (approved under 16/01004/OUT) 
o          Access Plan Overview (186/301 C) 
o          Schedule of Tree Works (SJA stw 23031-01 May 2023) 
o          Tree Protection Plan (SJA AIA 23031-041b) 

4



 

 

o          Vehicular Access Scenarios (186/305 rev. B) 
o          Road Safety Audit Stage 1 (ref: BN/CH/23-124)  

            REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out only as approved by 
the Local Planning Authority. 

  
04.       No development shall take place until details showing the finished floor levels 

of the buildings hereby approved in relation to a fixed datum point have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall then be carried out strictly in accordance with the approved 
details. 

            REASON: In the interests of the character of the area. 
            [Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN20, Core Strategy DPD CS7] 
  
  
05.       The access road and its associated footways and margins hereby approved 

shall be constructed in accordance with the approved drawings and Road 
Safety Audit, including Designers Response, with the carriageway 
construction to meet Bracknell Forest Council's adoptable standards prior to 
the commencement of development within the rest of the site. The margin on 
the eastern side of the access road north of the driveway for no. 6 Newhurst 
Gardens shall be planted with species with a height of between 0.2 metres 
and 0.6 metres.  

             
The connections between the access road and existing driveways shall have 
a less than 1:15 gradient over a length of no more than 5.0 metres.  

             
REASON: In the interests of highway safety and tree protection and to allow 
for the efficient delivery of goods and access by service and emergency 
vehicles including the Council's waste and recycling collection vehicles. 
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP 'Saved' Policies EN1, EN20  M4, M6 and M7; Core 
Strategy DPD CS7, CS23] 
  

06.       Visibility splays shall be provided and maintained in accordance with drawing 
186/301 C (left-hand panel titled Proposed General Arrangement - Access) for 
the access road and the driveways which connect to it. No planting or other 
obstruction to visibility over 0.6 metres in height shall be placed within or 
allowed to grow within the visibility splay areas with the exception of the 
signage for the road narrowing & speed limit and street lighting, which shall be 
positioned as indicated on the approved drawings.  

            REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
            [Relevant Policies: BFBLP 'Saved' Policies M4 and M6; Core Strategy DPD 

CS23] 
  
07.       No dwelling shall be occupied until the associated vehicle parking and turning 

space has been surfaced and marked out in accordance with a scheme to be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
spaces shall not thereafter be used for any purpose other than parking and 
turning. 

            REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
            [Relevant Policies: BFBLP 'Saved' Policies M4 and M6; Core Strategy DPD 

CS23] 
  
08.       No dwelling shall be occupied until covered and secure cycle parking facilities 

serving it have been provided in accordance with a scheme to be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The facilities shall 
thereafter be retained as approved. 

5



 

 

            REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
            [Relevant Policies: BFBLP 'Saved' Policies M4 and M6; Core Strategy DPD 

CS23] 
  
09.       No development shall take place (including any ground works or vegetation 

clearance) until a scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority to accommodate: 

            (a)        Parking of vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors 
            (b)        Loading and unloading of plant and vehicles 
            (c)        Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development 
            (d)        Wheel cleaning facilities 
            (e)        Temporary portacabins and welfare for site operatives 
            (f)         Details of the access during construction 

(g)        Swept paths demonstrating that the largest anticipated construction 
vehicle can enter the site in a forward gear from the adopted highway, turn 
around on-site and depart the site in a forward gear back onto the adopted 
highway. 

            Each facility shall be retained throughout the course of construction of the 
development, free from any impediment to its designated use. No other areas 
on the site, other than those in the approved scheme shall be used for the 
purposes listed (a) to (f) above. 

            REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
            [Relevant Policies: BFBLP 'Saved' Policies M4 and M6; Core Strategy DPD 

CS23] 
  
10.       No development shall take place (including any ground works or vegetation 

clearance) until details of a scheme (Working Method Statement) to control 
the environmental effects of the construction work has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall 
include:- 

            (i)         control of noise 
            (ii)        control of dust, smell and other effluvia 
            (iii)       control of surface water run off 
            (iv)       site security arrangements including hoardings 
            (v)        proposed method of piling for foundations 
            (vi)       construction working hours 
            (vii)      hours during the construction phase when delivery vehicles or vehicles 

taking materials are allowed to enter or leave the site 
            The development shall then be carried out strictly in accordance with the 

approved scheme.   
            REASON: To protect the amenities of nearby residents.  
  
11.       No development shall take place until a surface water drainage scheme for 

the site, based on sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the 
hydrological and hydro-geological context of the development, has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
scheme shall then be implemented strictly in accordance with the approved 
details before the development is completed. The scheme shall include: 

            (a)        Results of BRE 365 compliant infiltration tests to inform the drainage 
strategy 

            (b)        Discharge Rates 
            (c)        Discharge Volumes 
            (d)        Confirmation from Thames Water of agreement to proposed 

discharge rates 
            (e)        Maintenance and management of SUDS features 
            (f)         Sizing of features - attenuation volume 

6



 

 

            (g)        Detailed drainage layout with pipe numbers 
            (h)        Full details of the SUDS Balancing Ponds, and conveyance swales as 

set out in the drainage strategy 
            (i)         Network drainage calculations 
            (j)         Phasing plans 
            REASON: In order to ensure the provision of adequate foul and surface water 

drainage to serve the development; to prevent the increased risk of flooding; 
and improve and protect water quality, habitats and amenity. 

            [Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN25, CSDPD CS1] 
  
12.       All ecological measures and/or works shall be carried out in accordance with 

the details contained in Grassroots Ecology Ecological Impact Assessment 
dated September 2016 as already submitted with the planning application and 
agreed in principle with the Local Planning Authority prior to determination. 

            REASON: In the interests of nature conservation  
            [Relevant Plans and Policies: Core Strategy DPD CS1, CS7] 
  
13.       No development shall take place (including any ground works or vegetation 

clearance) until a construction environmental management plan (CEMP: 
Biodiversity) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The CEMP (Biodiversity) shall include the following: 

            a)         risk assessment of potentially damaging development activities 
            b)         identification of "biodiversity protection zones" 
            c)         practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working 

practices) to avoid or reduce impacts during development (may be provided 
as a set of method statements) 

            d)         the location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity 
features 

            e)         the times during development when specialist ecologists need to be 
present on site to oversee works 

            f)          responsible persons and lines of communication 
            g)         the role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works or 

similarly competent person 
            h)         the use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs 
            The approved CEMP (Biodiversity) shall then be adhered to and implemented 

throughout the development period strictly in accordance with the approved 
details. 

            REASON: In the interests of nature conservation  
            [Relevant Plans and Policies: Core Strategy DPD CS1, CS7] 
  
14.       No part of the development shall be first occupied until an ecological 

management plan has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. The plan shall include: 

            i)          description and evaluation of the features to be managed 
            ii)         description of target habitats and species 
            iii)        ecological potential and constraints on the site 
            iv)        aims and objectives of management 
            v)         appropriate management options including location and method 

statements 
            vi)        prescriptions for management actions 
            vii)       preparation of a work schedule indicating the timing of works 
            viii)       personnel responsible for implementation of the plan 
            ix)        monitoring and remedial measures triggered by monitoring 
            The ecological management plan shall then be fully observed, performed and 

complied with. 
            REASON: In the interests of nature conservation  

7



 

 

            [Relevant Plans and Policies: Core Strategy DPD CS1, CS7] 
  
15.       No part of the development shall be first occupied until a scheme for the 

provision of biodiversity enhancements (not mitigation), including a plan or 
drawing showing the location of these enhancements, has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved 
scheme shall then be fully performed, observed and complied with. 

            REASON: In the interests of nature conservation  
            [Relevant Plans and Policies: Core Strategy DPD CS1, CS7] 
  
16.       No development shall take place until a Sustainability Statement covering 

water efficiency aimed at achieving an average water use in the dwellings of 
110 litres/person/day, as required under optional Building Regulation Part G, 
has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The development shall then be carried out strictly in accordance with the 
Sustainability Statement as approved and retained as such at all times 
thereafter. 

            REASON: In the interests of sustainability and the efficient use of resources. 
            [Relevant Policy: Core Strategy DPD CS10] 
  
17.       The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with 

the recommendations of the submitted Energy Statement and, the dwellings 
hereby permitted shall be operated in accordance with the submitted Energy 
Statement at all times thereafter. 

            REASON: In the interests of the sustainability and the efficient use of 
resources. 

            [Relevant Plans and Policies: CSDPD Policy CS12] 
  
18.       Prior to the occupation of the first dwelling, the applicant will comply with the 

details contained withing the Archaeological Evaluation (ref:237590.02) and 
Written scheme of Investigation (ref:237591.01) approved under application 
21/00017/COND.  The mitigation strategy shall then be implemented strictly in 
accordance with the approved details. 

            REASON: In order to safeguard a site that is of historic/archaeological interest 
            [Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN6, EN7] 
  
19.       Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 or any Order revoking and re- 
enacting that order, no freestanding external lighting shall be installed on the 
site except in accordance with details that have first been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 

            REASON:  In the interests of the character of the area and biodiversity. 
            [Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN20 and EN25, Core Strategy DPD CS1 and 

CS7, WNP12] 
  
20.       All planting comprised in the soft landscaping works shall be carried out and 

completed in full accordance with the approved scheme in the nearest 
planting season (1st October to 31st March inclusive) to the completion of the 
development or prior to the first occupation of any part of the approved 
development, whichever is sooner. All hard landscaping works shall be 
carried out and completed prior to the first occupation of any part of the 
approved development. As a minimum, the quality of all hard and soft 
landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with British Standard 
4428:1989 'Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations' or any 
subsequent revision. All trees and other plants included within the approved 
details shall be healthy, well formed specimens of a minimum quality that is 

8



 

 

compatible with British Standard 3936:1992 (Part 1) 'Specifications for Trees 
& Shrubs' and British Standard 4043 (where applicable) or any subsequent 
revision. Any trees or other plants which within a period of 5 years from the 
completion of the development, die, are removed, uprooted, are significantly 
damaged, become diseased or deformed, shall be replaced during the 
nearest planting season (1st October to 31st March inclusive) with others of 
the same size, species and quality as approved. 

            REASON:  In order to assess the impact of the development upon existing 
vegetation, landform and other site landscape features. 

            [Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN1 and EN20, CSDPD CS7] 
  
21.       All existing trees, hedgerows and groups of shrubs shown to be retained on 

the approved drawings shall be protected by 2.3 metres high (minimum) 
protective barriers, supported by a metal scaffold framework, constructed in 
accordance with Section 9 (Figure 2) of British Standard 5837:2005, or any 
subsequent revision. The development shall then be carried out strictly in 
accordance with the approved drawings 

            REASON: In order to safeguard trees and other vegetation considered to be 
worthy of retention in the interests of the visual amenity of the area. 

            [Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN1 and EN20, CSDPD CS7] 
  
22.       The protective fencing and other protection measures specified by the 

previous condition shall be erected in the locations agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of any development 
works, including any initial clearance, and shall be maintained fully intact and 
(in the case of the fencing) upright, in its approved locations at all times, until 
the completion of all building operations on the site. No activity of any 
description must occur at any time within these protected areas including but 
not restricted to the following:- 

            a)         No mixing of cement or any other materials. 
            b)         Storage or disposal of any soil, building materials, rubble, machinery, 

fuel, chemicals, liquids waste residues or materials/debris of any other 
description. 

            c)         Siting of any temporary structures of any description including site 
office/sales buildings, temporary car parking facilities, porta-loos, storage 
compounds or hard standing areas of any other description. 

            d)         Soil/turf stripping, raising/lowering of existing levels, excavation or 
alterations to the existing surfaces/ground conditions of any other description. 

            REASON: In order to safeguard trees and other vegetation considered to be 
worthy of retention in the interests of the visual amenity of the area. 

            [Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN1 and EN20, CSDPD CS7] 
             
  
23.       No part of the development shall be occupied until the arrangements for the 

future management of the public open space on the site in perpetuity have 
been put in place in accordance with a scheme to be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: 

            (a)        the long term design objectives of the public open space 
            (b)        maintenance schedules for all public open space areas within the 

development 
            (c)        management responsibilities 
            (d)        details of the ongoing funding arrangements 
            The approved arrangements shall then be observed and performed at all 

times thereafter. 
            REASON:  In the interests of the visual amenity of the area. 
            [Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN1 and EN20, CSDPD CS7] 

9



 

 

  
  
A Recorded Vote was called for by Councillor and the voting on the motion was as 
follows: 
  
FOR (6): Councillors Brown, Collings, Egglestone, Karim, Penfold, Smith 
  
AGAINST (4): Councillors Barnard, Hayes, McKenzie-Boyle, Zahuruddin 
  
ABSTAIN (0):  
  

CHAIR 

10



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

  
 

PLEASE NOTE PLANS FOR ALL OF THE APPLICATIONS ON THIS 
AGENDA CAN BE FOUND ON OUR WEBSITE 

www.bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
9th November 2023 

 
 

REPORTS ON PLANNING APPLICATIONS RECEIVED 
(Head of Planning) 

 
  Case 

Officer 
Reporting 

Officer 
 
5 21/00592/FUL 

Land South Of Forest Road Newell Green 
Warfield Bracknell  
(Binfield North and Warfield West Ward) 
Demolition of existing buildings and erection of 
43 dwellings, associated landscaping and 
parking, with access from Forest Road and 
Crozier Lane 
Recommendation:   

Matt Lunn  Hilary 
Copplestone 

 
6 23/00426/FUL 

15 Darwall Drive Ascot Berkshire  
(Winkfield and Warfield East Ward) 
Proposed part single storey, part two storey rear 
extensions, raising of the ridge height and loft 
conversion, garage conversion. 
Recommendation: Approve.   

Benjamin 
Marshall 

Basia Polnik  

 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
Background papers comprise the relevant planning application file and any document therein 
with the exception of any document which would lead to disclosure of confidential or exempt 
information as defined in section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended. 

11

Agenda Annex



 

Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - POLICY REFERENCES 
 
Key to abbreviations used in the following planning reports. 
 

BFBLP Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan 
CSDPD Core Strategy Development Plan Document  
SALP Site Allocations Local Plan 
RMLP Replacement Minerals Local Plan 
WLP Waste Local Plan for Berkshire 
 
SPG Supplementary Planning Guidance 
SPD Supplementary Planning Document 
 
RSS Regional Spatial Strategy (also known as the SEP South East Plan) 
 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework (Published by DCLG) 
NPPG National Planning Policy Guidance (Published by DCLG) 
PPS (No.) Planning Policy Statement (Published by DCLG) 
MPG Minerals Planning Guidance 
DCLG Department for Communities and Local Government 
 

SITE LOCATION PLAN 
 
For information the plans are orientated so that north is always at the top of the page.  
 
THE HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998 
 
The Human Rights Act 1998 (“the HRA”) makes it unlawful for a public authority to act 
in a way that is incompatible with the rights set out in the European Convention of 
Human Rights. 
 
Those rights include:- 
 
Article 8 – “Everyone has the right to respect for his private and family life, his home.....” 
 
Article 1 - First Protocol “Every natural or legal person is entitled to the peaceful 
enjoyment of his possessions”. 
 
In some circumstances a local authority may be under an obligation to take positive action to 
protect an individuals interests under Article 8. 
 
The relevant Convention Rights are not absolute. A Council may take action even though it 
interferes with private and family life, home and enjoyment of possessions, if it is for a 
legitimate purpose, necessary and proportionate. In effect a balancing exercise has to be 
conducted between the interests of the individual and the wider public interest. 
 
Such a test very largely replicates the balancing exercise which the Council conducts under 
domestic planning legislation. 
 
The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the 
preparation of the reports contained in this agenda. 
 
The Human Rights Act will not be specifically referred to elsewhere [in the Agenda] beyond 
this general statement, unless there are exceptional circumstances which require a more 

12



 

Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

detailed consideration of any Convention Rights affected. 
 

13



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

 
Unrestricted Report 

ITEM NO: 5 
Application No. 
21/00592/FUL 

Ward: 
Binfield North and 

Warfield West 

Date Registered: 
11 June 2021 

Target Decision Date: 
10 September 2021 

Site Address: Land South Of Forest Road Newell Green Warfield 
Bracknell Berkshire   

Proposal: Demolition of existing buildings and erection of 43 dwellings, 
associated landscaping and parking, with access from Forest Road 
and Crozier Lane 

Applicant: Redrow Homes (Southern Counties) 
Agent: Mr Steven Brown 
Case Officer: Matt Lunn, 01344 352000 

Development.control@bracknell-forest.gov.uk  
 
 
Site Location Plan  (for identification purposes only, not to scale) 
 
 
 

 

15

Agenda Item 5

mailto:Development.control@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

1. SUMMARY 
 

1.1 The site forms part of the Warfield strategic development site that is allocated for a 
comprehensive mixed-use development of 2,200 dwellings, and supporting infrastructure, 
in Policy SA9 of the Bracknell Forest Site Allocations Local Plan (SALP) (July 2013). This 
strategic policy is supported by the site-specific guidance set out within the Warfield 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) and the Warfield Area 1 Masterplan. 
 

1.2 This application seeks full planning permission for the erection of 43 dwellings, 
associated landscaping and parking, with access from Forest Road and Crozier Lane, 
following the demolition of existing buildings, including the former Warfield Garage. 
 

1.3 During the course of the assessment of this application a significant number of 
amendments to drawings and supporting documents have been made to address officer 
concerns relating to the impact on the character of the area, impact on neighbouring 
properties, drainage, landscaping and highway safety. These amendments have included 
changes to the number, size and design of dwellings, and development layout. 

 
1.4 The application is now recommended for approval subject to conditions and completion 

of a section 106 legal agreement. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
Planning permission be granted subject to the completion of a S106 agreement and the 
conditions contained within Section 11 of this report. 

 
2. REASON FOR REPORTING APPLICATION TO COMMITTEE 

 
2.1 The application is reported to Planning Committee as more than five objections have 

been received. 
 

3. PROPOSAL 
 
3.1 Full planning permission is sought for the erection of 43 dwellings, associated 

landscaping, parking and access from Forest Road and Crozier Lane, following the 
demolition of existing buildings, that includes two existing residential units (net increase 
of 41 units) and the redevelopment of the former Warfield Garage. 
 

3.2 The proposed site layout in shown on figure 1 below. 
 

16



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

 
Figure 1: Proposed site layout 

 
3.3 The following market and affordable housing mix is proposed: 
 

No. Beds Market Affordable Total 

1 Bed 0 4 4 
2 Bed 1 3 4 
3 Bed 13 1 14 
4 Bed 14 1 15 
5 Bed 6 0 60 
Total 34 9 43 

 

17



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

3.4 9 dwellings would be delivered as affordable housing, equating to 21%; which although 
less than the planning policy requirement of 25%, is justified because of the application of 
‘vacant building credit’ (ref. section 9.xi.). 

 
3.5 Dwellings are provided in a variety of types and forms, including one apartment building, 

terraced block and bungalow, and the remainder as semi-detached and detached 
houses.  
 

3.6 In terms of building height, the majority of buildings are 2 storeys, with limited 2.5 storey 
elements where appropriate to terminate street views within the site or define a gateway 
into the development, and a single storey building is proposed in a sensitive location. 
 

3.7 Car parking spaces are proposed on plot, with set back car ports, and the apartment 
building would be served by a parking court. Visitor spaces are distributed throughout the 
development. Secure cycle storage is provided in rear gardens and in a communal store. 

 
3.8 Passive Open Space comprising 0.3ha is proposed that includes an attenuation pond, 

easement ditch, and incorporates a significant Oak tree (Tree Preservation Order 1207) 
on the south-western boundary. 
 

3.9 In terms of vehicular access, 22 dwellings (51%) would be accessed via a continuation of 
the carriageway from Crozier Lane to the south (referred to as the ‘southern parcel’), and 
21 dwellings (49%) would be accessed via a T-junction from Forest Road to the north 
(the ‘northern parcel’). A proposed pedestrian and cycleway provides a north-south 
strategic ‘greenway’ connection through the site as part of the open space, forming a 
continuation of a recently provided route from new development to the south, linking to a 
point near the Three Legged Cross pub and Avery Lane Public Right of Way (PRoW) to 
the north. A further stepped pedestrian route is proposed via a narrow corridor linking the 
site to Forest Road to the east, and to the Warfield Memorial Ground area of public open 
space, and PRoW beyond. 
 

3.10 The southern parcel (plots 1-22) is a cul-de-sac of houses served by a 4.8m wide 
access road, with pavement either side for the majority of the adopted highway, with two 
small sections of shared surface forming private drives to the north and south. Houses 
largely front onto the road and are set back with landscaped front gardens and elements 
of parking. The area of open space, including the greenway, and the Forest Road 
pedestrian link, on entering the site, all benefit from active dwelling frontages providing 
some natural surveillance.  
 

3.11 The northern parcel (plots 23-43) is framed by a landmark apartment building and 
further built form positively addressing Forest Road.  The parcel is served by 5.5m wide 
access flanked by pavement, quickly narrowing to 4.8m and further to 3.8m which serves 
as a shared surface. Houses have landscaping to their front and side, providing set back 
from the carriageway. Car parking is mostly on plot, with a short row of parking spaces on 
the right on entering the site, with parking for the apartment block to the rear, screened 
from Forest Road. The greenway is routed through the parcel, and is mostly set back 
from housing, benefiting from a landscaped setting. The greenway passes to the west of 
the apartment building, joining up with a small area of open space that forms a 

18



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

landscaped set back between the apartment building and Forest Road. This open space 
also provides a Sustainable Drainage System (SuDS) function, and includes a raised 
bund along the west flank with the Three Legged Cross.  
 

3.12 A traditional palette of building materials and architectural detailing is proposed. Red 
brick is the dominant material, with elements of render, tile hanging and waney-edge 
boarding, reflective of local character. Dwellings have front gables and porch canopies 
projecting from principal elevations and porches that provide for variation in the 
streetscene. 
 

3.13 Variation in roof heights and types, a mix of red and grey tiling and with chimneys on 
certain buildings, provides for a varied roofscape. 
 

3.14 The proposed landscaping  comprises a mixture of native and ornamental species. 
Native hedge and tree species are focused in and around areas of open space, with the 
planting of large deciduous trees such as Oak and Lime trees maximised, to benefit 
biodiversity and to effectively buffer development on sensitive flanks to help blend 
development into the surrounds. Ornamental and herbaceous planting is focused more 
within property boundaries. 

 
4. SITE AND SURROUNDING AREA 

 
4.1 The site area is 1.9 hectares (ha) and slopes gently down towards the north, with a 6m 

overall height difference. It lies southeast of the junction with Forest Road and 
Maidenhead Road (A3095) and forms part of  the gateway to Warfield from the west and 
Maidenhead. 
 

4.2 The site is bounded to the north by Forest Road, to the east by the rear gardens of 
existing properties along Forest Road and Warfield Street, and to the south by the sides 
of properties on the Abbey Place and Old Farmhouse Row development.  To the west it 
is bounded by the north-south greenway, open space and ditch line, with properties 
within the recently constructed Redrow development beyond and to the north-west lies 
the property ‘Huntercombe’ with its long rear garden. 
 

4.3 The site is formed of two distinct elements. The northern part of the site along Forest 
Road is previously developed land comprising several buildings and hardstanding that 
was formerly used as a garage, residential properties, carwash facility, second-hand car 
sales forecourt and café. No buildings are of architectural merit and all have been vacant 
for some time. 
 

4.4 To the south of the built form, the remainder of the site is greenfield; comprising former 
paddock land with mature vegetation including trees, scrub and coniferous hedgerow 
around the perimeter of the site. The southernmost part of the site is currently being used 
as a temporary compound for construction on the adjacent site to the south, being built-
out by the same developer. 
 

4.5 One significant Oak tree is located on the western ditch line – this is subject to a Tree 
Preservation Order (TPO 1207), and a further Oak of significant size is located on the 

19



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

proposed pedestrian link near to Forest Road. Several other trees of note lie in and 
around the site. 
 

4.6 The Cut river is located approximately 35m north of the site. The river runs in a westerly 
direction past the site before heading in a southerly direction. The majority of the site lies 
within Flood Zone 1 (low risk), however, a small area within the north-western corner of 
the site is located within Flood Zone 2 (Medium Risk) and Flood Zone 3 (High Risk). 
 

4.7 The southern side of Warfield Street and Forest Road, from Newell Green to Maidenhead 
Road, is characterised by brick-built 2-storey detached or semi-detached buildings, 
mostly of Victorian age or older. Properties are reasonably set back, allowing space for 
hedges, trees and short walls to define frontages, providing for an attractive gateway into 
Warfield. 
 

4.8 To the north across Forest Road is Warfield Memorial Ground and larger detached 
properties, both old and more recent, with large amounts of land, more set back and 
screened by high hedgerows and trees. 
 

4.9 Much of Forest Road and Warfield Street has a distinctly semi-rural feel, with a vegetated 
and historic character. There is no consistent architectural approach, with a mix of 
properties of different sizes and ages, but generally materials are characteristically red 
brick and  slate roofs, with chimneys. The imposition of new development in the area, 
whilst altering the character, has generally sought to reflect the local vernacular. 
 

4.10 As shown in figure 2 below, the application site forms a part of the ‘Land at Warfield’ 
urban extension allocated under Policy SA9 of the SALP and is located in the 
northwestern part of Area 1, as identified in the Warfield SPD. This application for 43 
dwellings represents 2% of the allocation for 2,200 dwellings. 

 

 
Figure 2: Site location (red) in context of SA9 allocation 
 
5. RELEVANT SITE HISTORY 
 

20



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

5.1 The following applications are relevant to the site: 
 
• 16/00115/FUL (a) Land off Forest Road, Newell Green, Warfield; and b) Land at Moss 

End, Warfield): a) Erection of 56. dwellings with associated access, open space and 
infrastructure, following demolition of 2. dwellings and Warfield Garage, on land off Forest 
Road; and b) change of use from agricultural land to Suitable Alternative Natural 
Greenspace (SANG), with associated works, on land off Moss End. 
Refused July 2016. Reasons for refusal: 

i. Proposal would result in a piecemeal form of development that would prejudice 
the comprehensive delivery of SA9. 

ii. Layout is unsatisfactory, to the detriment of the character and appearance of the 
area, residential amenity and road safety. In particular it would: 

- result in a cramped form of development, unsympathetic to the location 
and setting; 

- undermine the policy requirement for a development that is green and 
verdant in character; 

- fail to provide sympathetic boundary treatment to existing properties; 
- fail to provide adequate highway access ; and 
- fail to provide car parking in accordance with standards. 

iii. Proposal would not mitigate its impacts on the Thames Basin Heaths Special 
Protection Area. 

iv. Proposal would result in an increased risk of flooding in the area impacting new 
and existing residents. 
 

5.2 In addition, the following applications on adjacent sites are also relevant: 
• 16/01274/FUL (Land at Watersplash Lane): Demolition of existing buildings and erection 

of 43 dwellings with associated accesses (to land to west and to Watersplash Lane), 
parking and landscaping. 
Approved 2018. 
[To the south of the site, delivering the southern extent of the north-south greenway.] 
 

• 16/01195/FUL (Land East of Avery Lane and North of Watersplash Lane): Erection of 
116 dwellings with associated landscaping, infrastructure works and open space of public 
value served by vehicular access from north-south link road and pedestrian/cycle links to 
Watersplash Lane.  
Approved 2018. 
[Abuts the south-west of the site, providing vehicular and north-south greenway access to 
southern part of site.] 
 

• 19/00327/FUL (Land at South West of Abbey Place): Erection of 9 dwellings with 
associated access, parking and landscaping. Approved August 2021. 
[Abuts the south of the site.] 

 
6. REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED 

 
6.1 28 representations Objecting to the proposal were received. A summary of matters raised 

is as follows: 
 

21



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

General 
 
i. There is no need more homes in the Warfield area. [Officer response: ref. section 9.i. 

Principle of development.] 
ii. Redevelop areas in Bracknell instead of greenspace. [Officer response: ref. section 9.i. 

Principle of development.] 
iii. Lack of community engagement to address concerns. [Officer response: the public was 

notified of this development in accordance with legislation, and all objections received 
have been considered in the determination of this application.] 

iv. Construction will cause more disturbance for local residents. [Officer response: A 
condition requires the submission of a CEMP to limit construction disruption to 
acceptable levels.] 

v. Concern that neighbour notification letters were returned – residents must be given a 
chance to comment. [Officer response: Where these houses now exist, letters have 
been delivered.] 

vi. Concerns and wellbeing of existing residents is being ignored. [Officer response: 
Representations received have been considered in the determination of this planning 
application. The principle of development is established here, with the design being in 
accordance with planning policy and guidance. A condition requires the submission of a 
CEMP to limit construction disruption to acceptable levels.] 

vii. Too many amendments – should have been a new application to give residents chance 
to be reconsulted properly. [Officer response: Ref. Informative 1. Amendments to 
planning applications are acceptable, and objections received are considered 
throughout the determination.] 

viii. Development would coalesce settlements. [Officer response: ref. section 9.i. Principle of 
development.] 

ix. Not a sustainable location. [Officer response: ref. section 9.i. Principle of development.] 
x. There are Health and Safety concerns over asbestos on site. [Officer response: 

Separate legislation relates to the handling, removal and disposal of asbestos.] 
xi. Development places significant strain on the already overburdened local amenities such 

as Primary schools, Secondary schools and healthcare facilities such as the GP 
Surgeries and Health Centres. [Officer response: Ref. para 9.5-9.14 and section 9.xv. 
Infrastructure delivery.] 

xii. A CEMP should be secured, which should be prepared in consultation with local 
residents. [Officer response: A condition secures submission of a CEMP for approval, 
which will be publicly available for comment.] 
 
Design 
 

i. Development is not sympathetic to the character of the area. [Officer response: Ref. 
section 9.ii. Design and impact on the character of the area.] 

ii. Development is too cramped. [Officer response: Ref. para 9.7 and section 9.ii. Design 
and impact on the character of the area.] 

iii. Proposal is over-development, removing greenspace to the detriment of existing 
residents. [Officer response: ref. para 9.7 and section 9.ii. Design and impact on the 
character of the area.] 

22



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

iv. Development does not conform to design principles set out in the Character Area 
Assessments SPD and Warfield SPD, such as density, grain, plot sizes. [Officer 
response: Ref. section 9.ii. Design and impact on the character of the area.] 

v. The Forest Road frontage; the apartment building in particular, is not in keeping with 
local character. [Officer response: Ref. section 9.ii. Design and impact on the character 
of the area.] 

vi. The applicant has not resolved the reasons for refusing the previous application 
(16/00115/FUL). [Officer response:  Section 5 first bullet sets out the previous reasons 
for refusal. The report overall sets out why this development is considered acceptable. 
Para 9.23 discusses the matter of comprehensive development.] 

vii. The buffer between new dwellings and existing properties along Forest Road is 
inadequate. [Officer response: Ref. section 9.iii. Impact on residential amenity.] 

viii. Proposed detached properties are too close together. [Officer response: The site layout 
has changed considerably since the original submission, including a reduced density; 
and now overall, the grain of development is considered looser and acceptable.] 

ix. Access to the development should only be from the south and not from the north. 
[Officer response: Access accords with the Area 1 Masterplan, and the LHA is 
supportive.] 

x. Unclear what boundary treatment is proposed to the rear of existing properties fronting 
Forest Road. [Officer response: The Boundary Treatment Plan shows either 1.8m high 
closeboard fencing is proposed, or the retention of existing boundary treatment. 
Boundaries are often supplemented with landscaping, as shown on submitted 
landscaping plans.] 

xi. Proposed dwellings are too close to existing properties in Abbey Place and Old 
Farmhouse Row. [Officer response: Ref. section 9.iii. Impact on residential amenity.] 

xii. Back-land development and therefore negative impact on community integration. 
[Officer response: Whilst positioned to the rear of properties, this development is part of 
a much larger strategic allocation that provides for numerous points of connectivity, to 
assist new residents walk and cycle around the locality and which benefit existing 
residents. Together with the Warfield Community Hub and off-site open space 
improvements that this site will help deliver, this development would assist community 
integration.] 

xiii. Insufficient open space and tree planting is proposed. [Officer response: ref. paras 9.13 
& 9.95.] 

xiv. Vehicles entering the southern access from Crozier Lane would illuminate the rear of 
existing properties fronting Forest Road. [Officer response: Dwellings, boundary 
treatment and landscaping would prevent unacceptable light spill.] 

xv. Concern regarding overlooking, overbearing and overshadowing from plot 18 to existing 
properties to the east. [Officer response: ref. para 9.58.] 
 
Drainage  
 

i. The flood risk and drainage strategy needs to be subject to independent review. [Officer 
response: The Council is the Lead Local Flood Authority, and has been consulted 
throughout determination. Independent review would be unnecessary and 
inappropriate.] 

23



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

ii. Development will exacerbate existing flooding problems in the vicinity. [Officer response: 
ref. section 9.ix. – Drainage. The LLFA is satisfied that the proposal would not result in 
an increase in flood risk off-site.] 

iii. Ground is too boggy to build on. Water levels are too high, resulting in waterlogging of a 
neighbouring garden. [Officer response: The development will lead to a betterment of 
drainage across the site and will not increase flood risk off-site.] 

iv. The FRA inaccurately states that ‘there is no history of flooding at the site’ – this is 
incorrect. [Officer response: This reference is in specific regard to the Bracknell Forest 
SFRA. The paragraph then goes onto reference flooding incidences in the Forest Road 
area. The LLFA is aware of flooding issues in the area and is working to remediate. 
Paras 9.120-9.122 discusses localised flooding issues.] 

v. The Three Legged Cross junction and Spice Lounge flood numerous times a year. 
[Officer response: Flooding issues in the vicinity of the site are known to the LLFA. Ref. 
paras 9.120-9.122. Recent and proposed remedial works will reduce the likelihood of 
flooding.] 

vi. Drainage pipes by the Spice Lounge are too small to cope with all the rainwater in the 
area. [Officer response: Ref. paras 9.120-9.122. The development will fund increased 
drainage capacity works by securing an appropriate contribution through the s106 
Agreement.] 

vii. Development will pose a greater risk of flooding/waterlogging to the existing properties, 
especially those to the north which are at a lower ground level. [Officer response: ref. 
section 9.ix. – Drainage. The LLFA is satisfied that, with the proposed drainage strategy, 
the development would not result in an increase in flood risk off-site.] 

viii. Existing balancing ponds have already proven not to provide for sufficient flood risk 
mitigation. [Officer response: Detailed hydraulic modelling has informed pond design / 
capacity. The LLFA is satisfied that the proposed drainage strategy would not result in 
an increase in flood risk off-site.  

ix. Object to drainage culverting along Huntercombe’s boundary as this will only worsen 
flooding at this property. [Officer response: The amended site layout largely retains this 
ditchline with only a short culverted section, with pipe of sufficient diameter that would 
be relatively simple to maintain, and is acceptable to the LLFA. Overall, there would be a 
net reduction in the extent of culverting.] 

x. Increase in ground water levels can cause damage to properties such as subsidence. 
[Officer response: ref. section 9.ix. – Drainage. The LLFA is satisfied that the proposal 
would not result in an increase in flood risk off-site.] 

xi. Concerns over the adequacy of the drainage strategy including whether ditches have 
sufficient capacity. [Officer response: ref. section 9.ix. Drainage. Detailed hydraulic 
modelling has informed drainage design. The LLFA is satisfied that the proposed 
drainage strategy would not result in an increase in flood risk off-site. 

xii. Conditions should require the developer to rectify any unanticipated flooding issues. 
[Officer response: The drainage strategy has been designed for 1:100 year + 40% 
climate change events. The development would be required to implement the drainage 
strategy that the LLFA considers satisfactory, and thereafter manage and maintain for 
the lifetime of the development. This meets the requirements of the NPPF.] 

xiii. Require details and confirmation of off-site drainage works. [Officer response: Ref. paras 
9.120-9.122. The development will fund increased drainage capacity works for BFC to 
implement. This planning obligation for a ‘Contribution towards off-site drainage 
improvement works’ is shown in para 9.155.] 

24



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

 
6.2 Objectors have submitted a review of the Flood Risk Assessment and Surface Water 

Drainage Strategy by an appointed drainage consultant. The full report is accessible on 
the planning portal. Key points raised are as follows:  
 

i. Catchment size used in the modelling is insufficient.  
ii. The modelled water level from The Cut needs to be amended.  
iii. Confirmation that box culverts have been modelled is needed.  
iv. Updated hydrology should be applied to the EA model and flood compensatory storage 

reviewed. 
v. Winter Groundwater Monitoring needs to be conducted.  
vi. Ditch 1 should be surveyed and added to The Cut model.  
vii. Ditch 1 works should be detailed. 
viii. Risk of flooding on the Eastern boundary is potentially underestimated. 150mm 

depression could be insufficient if full catchment modelled. 
[Officer response: the LLFA has reviewed this submission, considered matters raised 
and liaised extensively with the applicant’s drainage consultant. As set out in section 
9.ix. – Drainage, the LLFA has reviewed the hydraulic modelling and the proposed 
mitigation scheme and consider that it is acceptable to manage flood risk at the site 
without increasing flood risk off-site.] 
 

6.3 It should be noted that several objectors provided photographic and video evidence of 
flooding in the area. Paras 9.120-9.122 discusses local flooding issues in the context of 
this development proposal. 
 
Transport 
 

i. No road infrastructure modifications are proposed to accommodate the additional traffic. 
[Officer response: Several road junction enhancements are to be secured as part of the 
SA9 strategic development, and ref. section 9.xv. Infrastructure delivery, for other 
transport-related infrastructure mitigation to be secured from this development.] 

ii. The development would add to congestion. [Officer response: ref. para 9.76. The 
development provides good pedestrian and cycle connectivity to local facilities and 
services to help minimise the need for residents to use the private car.]  

iii. Increased traffic will have detrimental impact on privacy, safety and health of residents. 
[Officer response: ref. sections 9.i. Principle of development, 9.iv. Transport. The 
development will include measures to minimise the need to use the private car, such as 
by providing good pedestrian/cycle connectivity to local facilities and the wider area.] 

iv. Access onto Forest Road is unsafe due to vehicle speeds and limited visibility. [Officer 
response: ref. section 9.iv. Transport. The LHA is supportive of access arrangements. 
Visibility splays will be secured by condition.] 

v. Forest Road is already too congested because of cars queueing for traffic lights at either 
end. [Officer response: ref. section 9.iv. Transport. The LHA has considered the impact 
of traffic generated from the development in the context of transport infrastructure 
delivered with the wider SA9 development and strategic traffic modelling, and has raised 
no objection.] 

vi. The pedestrian cycleway will impact the security and privacy of the two adjoining 
properties, namely Linthorpe and Albren. Lighting of this route would also impact on the 

25



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

privacy and cause light pollution; especially because there is currently no street lighting 
on the middle or lower parts of Forest Road. [Officer response: Ref. paras 9.77-9.78, 
9.90-9.91. Low intensity use of this route is anticipated with only slight level change 
required from the use of CCS in the RPA of the tree. There are many examples across 
the borough with public access alongside gardens.] 

vii. Safety concern that the Forest Road cycleway would lead directly out onto a busy road. 
[Officer response: Detail of any necessary safety features is to be conditioned and 
agreed with LHA. This could include staggered barriers at points of access, as 
necessary. The LHA is supportive of access arrangements.] 

viii. Object to the access from the south onto Crozier Lane, and should be achieved from 
Forest Road, the disused access road next to Linthorpe or from Abbey Place. [Officer 
response: ref. section 9.iv. Transport. Access arrangements accord with the Area 1 
Masterplan and the LHA is supportive.] 

ix. Crozier Lane is too narrow for access and would put children playing’s safety at risk. 
[Officer response: ref. section 9.iv. Transport. Access arrangements accord with the 
Area 1 Masterplan and the LHA is supportive.] 

x. Insufficient visitor parking spaces are proposed. [Officer response: ref. para 9.75.] 
xi. Need to ensure that roads are wide enough. [Officer response: The LHA has been 

consulted throughout determination and is satisfied with road design.] 
xii. The pavement and highway across the front of 2 Harewood Cottages is included in the 

plan. The verge is within the ownership of this property and the boundary is defined by 
the edge of the existing pavement, which is not clear on the submitted plan. [Officer 
response: Any works associated with this development would be within land controlled 
by the applicant or ancient highway land. This detail will be determined through the 
Section 278 process.] 

xiii. Proposed planting on Forest Road will impede visibility exiting 2 Harewood Cottages. 
[Officer response: A condition has been imposed to amend landscaping, as required, as 
part of the Section 278 agreement to ensure that visibility splays for properties on Forest 
Road are not obstructed.] 

xiv. Traffic speed calming measures on Forest Road should be proposed. [Officer response: 
The LHA has not raised the need for such measures as part of this application.] 

xv. Construction traffic will overwhelm Forest Road. [Officer response: A condition requires 
the submission of a CEMP to limit any construction disruption to acceptable levels. This 
would include restrictions on work hours, vehicle washing and delivery times and 
routes.] 

xvi. Plot 14 has no turning area, meaning vehicles would need to reverse blind across the 
end of the footpath /cycleway. [Officer response: The layout has since changed, and 
now provides for suitable turning areas.] 

xvii. Forest Road corridor pedestrian access is unsafe. [Officer response: The LHA considers 
access to be safe in principle. Precise design detail, including necessary safety features, 
is secured by condition.] 
 
Green Infrastructure 
 

i. Developers have already cleared hedgerows and all the trees, except for one, adversely 
impacting wildlife. [Officer response: The Council is not aware of any unlawful tree / 
hedgerow removal. Both trees subject to TPOs are integrated into the site layout. The 
development provides for biodiversity mitigation and enhancement.] 

26



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

ii. Trees within 2 Harewood Cottages are included on plan without owner having been 
consulted. A Blackthorn proposed to be kept at the back corner of this property has 
bracket fungus and is unsuitable as a garden tree and should be removed. [Officer 
response: Development is required to consider trees adjacent to the site where 
appropriate. A schedule of tree works, that considers tree health, is to be secured by 
condition. No tree works would be proposed beyond the development site boundary.] 

iii. Plans show the removal of conifer trees on the boundary with and under the ownership 
of Huntercombe. This is an error. [Officer response: Conifers are now shown for 
retention, and to be pruned back to boundary.] 

iv. Greenspace proposed is insufficient with no consideration for replacing green space lost 
and hedgerows that have already been taken down. [Officer response: ref. section 9.i. 
Principle of development & para 9.13. The landscaping scheme proposes a net gain for 
hedgerows on site.] 

v. Trees along the footpath/cycleway by Linthorpe’s boundary, are all very unsafe, apart 
from the large oak and smaller oak, and should be removed. [Officer response: The 
intention is to retain as much vegetation along this Forest Road footpath corridor as 
possible. A schedule of tree works, that will consider tree health, is to be secured by 
condition.] 

vi. Landscaping proposed does not accord with the Warfield SPD. [Officer response: Ref. 
paras 9.95-9.96.] 

vii. Impact on trees adjacent to the site needs to be considered. [Officer response: The 
submitted Tree Protection Plan provides consideration for trees adjacent to the site. The 
Tree Officer, in consultation, has raised no objection in this regard.] 
 
Biodiversity 
 

i. The development will have an adverse impact on flora and fauna on the site. [Officer 
response: ref. sections 9.vi. Trees and Landscaping & 9.vii. Biodiversity.] 

ii. Query whether wildlife and bat surveys have been undertaken and that the impact of 
development has been considered. [Officer response: As the Ecological Impact 
Assessment sections 4.8-4.9 set out, the site has been extensively surveyed. Updated 
surveys are required by condition as appropriate.] 

iii. There is a significant bat population roosting in the local vicinity, which use the rear 
treeline and hedgerows of the existing Forest Road dwellings as their annual commuting 
routes and foraging zones. It should be preserved and supplemented. [Officer response: 
The development will retain significant trees on the site, with limited pruning back of 
some trees on the boundary proposed. Significant tree and hedgerow planting is 
proposed that will provide future biodiversity habit, including areas for bat foraging.] 
 

7. SUMMARY OF CONSULTATION RESPONSES  
 
7.1 Warfield Parish Council – Recommend Refusal for the following reasons: 
 

i. Too much of the development is accessed off Forest Road. [Officer response: Site 
access is in general accordance with the Area 1 Masterplan (A1M), and the Local 
Highways Authority (LHA) is supportive.] 

ii. Development beyond the Forest frontage does not accord with the Area 1 Masterplan. 
[Officer response: Ref. section 9.ii. Design and impact on the character of the area. The 

27



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

development responds appropriately to A1M design objectives, based on urban design 
principles, and provides for a landscaped boundary treatment in line with the Character 
Area Assessments SPD.]  

iii. One visitor parking space associated with the apartment block is not adequate. [Officer 
response: Three visitor parking spaces are provided close to the apartment building and 
the LHA is satisfied with the quantum and distribution across the site.] 

iv. Insufficient retention of existing trees and hedgerows and lack of planting, in particular 
native species around open space. [Officer response: Ref. sections 9.vi. Trees and 
Landscaping. The most significant trees are to be retained and integrated into the 
proposal, with only the removal of several smaller trees proposed of relatively low 
categorisation. Landscaping and open space treatment has changed considerably since 
the initial submission and is considered acceptable.] 

v. SuDS does not provide rural character. [Officer response: SuDS are a necessity within 
this site allocated for residential development, and contributes towards the open space 
on site and provides biodiversity habitat.] 

vi. Further wildlife surveys needed. [Officer response: As the Ecological Impact Assessment 
sections 4.8-4.9 set out, the site has been extensively surveyed. Updated surveys are 
required by condition as appropriate.] 

vii. Wildlife corridors and hedgehog access is needed. [Officer response: The north-south 
greenway, ditchline and Forest Road pedestrian link will act as green corridors. 
Ecological mitigation and enhancements are proposed, which includes hedgehog 
highways.] 

viii. Connection is needed to existing footpath west of tree T7. [Officer response: This 
requirement is shown on the Site Layout Plan, with delivery to be secured by condition.] 

ix. Lack of open space and play areas on site. [Officer response: Ref. para 9.13. Open 
Space is in general accordance with the A1M and is considered acceptable. There are 
several play areas within a short walk, so provision was not sought on this site. Instead, a 
financial sum towards off-site active open space will be secured.] 

x. Limited front gardens and car dominance fails to deliver an informal streetscene. [Officer 
response: Ref. section 9.ii. Design and impact on the character of the area.] 

xi. Lack of variety in plot sizes and set backs to provide interest in streetscene. [Officer 
response: Ref. section 9.ii. Design and impact on the character of the area.] 

xii. Concern regarding the scale of native tree and hedgerow removal. [Officer response: The 
Council is not aware of any unlawful tree / hedgerow removal. Both trees subject to TPOs 
and other existing trees are integrated into the site layout.] 

xiii. Tree T7 should be classed as a veteran tree. Works around it and additional ditch water 
could damage the tree. [Officer response: Ref. section 9.vi. Trees and Landscaping. The 
need for works to be carried out sensitively near to the tree is recognised and a condition 
will ensure that work methods respect this. With reference to the drainage strategy, the 
site will drain into the ditch downstream of the tree via an attenuation basin to limit the 
rate of water ingress.] 

xiv. Concern for the lack of pavement linking from north to north-south greenway. [Officer 
response: Pavements now extend into the main access before meeting a shared surface 
which is acceptable for this intensity of usage, and is supported by the LHA.] 

xv. Safety measures should be designed into ped/cycle links where they join Forest Road. 
[Officer response: such detail is to be conditioned and agreed with LHA, and will include 
suitable safety measures, such as staggered barriers at points of access, as necessary.] 

28



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

xvi. Concern that horse riders could use access – this should be designed-out. [Officer 
response: Detail of access to the greenway is to be agreed, however, this will likely 
include staggered barriers that will help design-out modes of transport that the route is 
not designed for.] 

xvii. Car ports are too small. [Officer response: Car ports are of sufficient size to meet the 
requirements of the Parking Standards SPD.] 

xviii. Relationship with existing dwellings on Forest Road is not appropriate, and does not 
accord with the Design SPD, 3.6. [Officer response: Ref. paras 9.55-9.60.] 

xix. Affordable housing is congregated into one corner of the site, which goes against 
community integration. [Officer response: BFC’s Housing Officer has been consulted and 
is satisfied with the location of the dwellings. Registered Providers consider clusters 
easier to manage. Site design does not provide any barriers to integration, and the 
development would help address affordable housing need.] 

xx. Ground level change would result in overbearing and overlooking issues for existing 
properties. [Officer response: Ref. section 9.iii. Impact on residential amenity.] 

xxi. Proposal to level the site goes against the NPPF’s overarching environmental objective. 
[Officer response: The development is considered to be a sustainable form of 
development that is considered to strike the right balance in meeting environmental, 
social and economic objectives.] 

xxii. Development site does not benefit from Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG). Off-site mitigation 
requires careful consideration. [Officer response: On-site opportunities for BNG have 
been maximised, and there is no in principle objection to providing mitigation off-site 
towards BFC projects that will deliver measurable BNG.] 

xxiii. Northernmost part of the site is prone to flooding. The drainage strategy that uses the 
ditch and culverts will lead to greater off-site flood risk. [Officer response: Ref. section 
9.ix. Drainage.] 

 
7.2 Other consultation responses: 
 
- Environment Agency (statutory consultee): No objection, subject to condition. 
- Urban Design Officer: No objection. 
- Local Highways Authority: No objection, other than concerns raised regarding off-site 

lighting, subject to conditions and s106 agreement. 
- Drainage Officer: No objection, subject to conditions. 
- Heritage Consultant: No objection, subject to condition. 
- Parks & Countryside Officer: No objection. 
- Biodiversity Officer: No objections subject to conditions and s106 agreement. 
- Tree Officer: Concerns raised. Comments addressed in report. 
- Environmental Health Officer: No objection, subject to conditions. 
- Waste and Recycling Officer: No objection. 
- Berkshire Archaeology: No objection, subject to condition. 
- Renewable Energy Officer: No objection, subject to conditions. 
- Local Education Authority: No objection. 
- Special Protection Area Officer: No objection in principle, subject to s106 agreement. 
- Housing Officer: No objection, subject to s106 agreement. 
 
8. MAIN POLICIES AND OTHER DOCUMENTS RELEVANT TO THE DECISION 
 

29



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

8.1 The primary planning policies and associated guidance applying to this site are: 
 

 
8.2 Relevant Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) and other guidance include: 
 

- Warfield SPD (2012) 
- Design SPD (2017) 
- Character Area Assessments SPD (2010) 
- Streetscene SPD (2011) 
- Parking Standards SPD (2016) 
- Warfield Central Area Masterplan Document (‘Area 1 Masterplan’) (A1M) (2015) 
 

8.3 Other publications: 
 

- NPPF 
- Planning Policy Guidance (PPG) 

 
8.4 At a national level, the key planning policy guidance relevant to this proposal is the 

NPPF. Chapter 9 promotes sustainable transport; Chapter 12 requires good design and 
Chapter 15 deals with conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 
 

8.5 At a local level, the most relevant planning policies are those set out in the Site 
Allocations Local Plan (SALP), the Core Strategy Development Plan Document 
(CSDPD), the Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan (BFBLP) and the Warfield 
Neighbourhood Plan.  
 

9. PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS  

 Development Plan National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) 

General 
policies 

- Site Allocations Local Plan (SALP) (July 
2013): CP1 & SA9 

- Core Strategy DPD (CSDPD) (February 
2008): CS1 & CS2 

- Warfield Neighbourhood Plan (WNP) 
(December 2022): WNP1 

Consistent 

Design - CSDPD: CS7 
- Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan 

(BFBLP) (January 2002) (Saved policies): 
EN20 

- WNP: WNP3 & WNP12 

Consistent 

Parking - BFBLP: M9 
- WNP: WNP14 

Consistent 
 

Transport - CSDPD: CS23 and CS24 
- BFBLP: M6 

Consistent 

Trees, 
Landscape 
and 
Biodiversity 

- CSDPD: CS1 & CS7 (iii) 
- BFBLP: EN1, EN2, EN3 & EN20 (ii) 
- WNP: WNP8 & WNP11  
 

Consistent 

30



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

 
9.1 The key issues for consideration are: 
  

i. Principle of development  
ii.  Design and impact on the character of the area  
iii.  Impact on residential amenity  
iv.  Transport  
v.  Heritage  
vi.  Trees and Landscaping  
vii.  Biodiversity  
viii.  Archaeology  
ix.  Drainage 
x.  Thames Basins Heaths Special Protection Area (SPA)  
xi. Affordable Housing 
xii.  Energy sustainability  
xiii.  Waste management  
xiv. Contaminated land 
xv.  Infrastructure delivery  

 
9.2 These will now be considered in turn. All measurements provided are reasonably 

accurate approximations from scaled plans. 
 

i. Principle of development  
 
9.3 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that 

applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance with the 
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise, which is supported 
by the NPPF (paragraph. 2 and 12). This is also reflected in SALP Policy CP1 which sets 
out that a positive approach to considering development proposals will be taken that 
reflects the presumption in favour of sustainable development contained in the NPPF. 
The development plan is the statutory starting point for decision making and planning 
applications which accord with the policies in the development plan will be approved 
without delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Where the development 
plan is absent, silent or relevant policies are out of date, permission should be granted 
unless any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh 
the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole or where 
specific policies in the NPPF indicate development should be restricted. 
 

9.4 The majority of the site was allocated for development following adoption of the SALP in 
policies SA9 ‘Land at Warfield’ and SA1 ‘Previously Developed Land in Defined 
Settlements’ as ‘Land at Battle Bridge House’. A small northernmost part of the site was 
included within the defined settlement. The entire site now lies within the defined 
settlement and is considered acceptable in principle. 

 
9.5 SALP Policy SA9 is the most relevant development plan policy for determining this 

application. Policy SA9 requires comprehensive well designed mixed-use development 
that includes: 

31



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

 
i) 2,200 residential units (including affordable housing) 
ii) Employment 
iii) Neighbourhood centre 
iv) Two Primary Schools 
v) Multi-functional community hub 
vi) On-site open space 
vii) Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG) 
 
9.6 The following provides a summary as to how this development would meet SA9 planning 

policy objectives as set out in points i) – vii) above: 
 
i) 2,200 residential units (including affordable housing):  
 
9.7 The application would make a meaningful contribution towards this allocation, the 

location of which is broadly in line with the illustrative concept plan for Warfield (SALP, 
p38). Figure 4.1 of the Area 1 Masterplan provides an indicative figure of 50 dwellings for 
the application area. The Warfield SPD Figure 5 (p47) provides a target density of 35 
dwellings per hectare (dph) and the development proposes 34 dwellings at 23 dph. Given 
that the SPD provides an indicative target, subject to detailed site design, and in the 
context of this site being in the northern extent of the allocation adjacent to an area with a 
historically looser grain/lower density of development, the proposed density is considered 
acceptable. 
 

9.8 The site will provide a mix of market and affordable homes.  
 
ii) Employment: 
 
9.9 The Warfield SPD states that employment floorspace would be encouraged in the 

Neighbourhood Centre, which is planned to be a short distance from the site. It further 
states that “Development proposals for uses other than housing beyond the 
Neighbourhood Centre will need to demonstrate that they do not detract from the 
objective to provide 2,200 dwellings on the site”. This application will facilitate 
employment at the school, and the delivery of housing itself will generate jobs and 
training opportunities and additional spending power in the local economy. The delivery 
of this site will also contribute towards the delivery of the new neighbourhood centre and 
improve connectivity to it, thereby assisting in the creation of, and access to, jobs. 

 
iii) Neighbourhood centre: 
 
9.10 This centrepiece of the allocation is planned for close to the site, on land to the east of 

Newell Green. This site is not required to deliver the centre, other than contributing 
financially towards the community hub element and facilitating pedestrian/cycle access to 
it. The application provides for north-south greenway connection for pedestrians and 
cyclists and will financially contribute towards a planned new east-west greenway 
crossing of Newell Green to access the centre from the west via sustainable travel 
modes. 

32



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

 
iv) Two Primary Schools: 
 
9.11 The SA9 allocation plans for two schools. Warfield CE Primary School (Woodhurst 

Park) is closest to serve pupils from this site has been built and fitted-out. Safe and 
efficient pedestrian and cycle connectivity to the school is proposed. The Local Education 
Authority  has been consulted and has not raised the need for planning obligations from 
this development. 

 
v) Multi-functional community hub: 
 
9.12 The Warfield Community Hub, including nursery, will be located as part of the 

neighbourhood centre, adjacent to the open space at Priority Field. This development 
would make a proportionate contribution towards the build cost. 

 
vi) On-site open space: 
 
9.13 According to BFC’s Open Space of Public Value (OSPV) standards, this 43 dwelling 

proposal would require 0.23ha passive and 0.2ha active OSPV – 0.43ha OSPV overall. 
This application would provide for approximately 0.3ha passive overall onsite and 
underprovide active OSPV. The Warfield SPD (p53) states that, whilst open space will be 
required to be provided to standard, this could be in the form of enhancements to existing 
sports facilities nearby requiring upgrades, such as Priory Field or Warfield Memorial 
Ground, which both have costed projects ready to be implemented, subject to funding. To 
compensate for the deficit of on-site active open space, this application would make a 
financial contribution towards off-site active OSPV projects, within close proximity, for the 
benefit of new and existing residents of Warfield.  This would be compliant with policy. 

 
vii)  Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG): 
 
9.14 Third Party SANG is to be provided, secured by planning obligation, to mitigate the 

impact of this development on the Thames Basin Heath SPA. 
 
Material considerations 
 
9.15 SALP Policy SA9 is supported by the Warfield SPD, and the site is located within 'Area 

1' of the Warfield strategic allocation which has an agreed masterplan. The relevance of 
these documents in shaping the development of this site is explained below: 

 
a) Warfield SPD 
 
9.16 The Warfield SPD sets out specific guidance relating to the development of the Policy 

SA9 allocation. Development Principle W1 explains that 'the Council will expect planning 
applications to support the comprehensive development of Warfield including 
accessibility and the delivery of infrastructure'. The SPD was adopted following public 
consultation and it supplements Core Strategy Policy CS5 and SALP Policy SA9. It is 

33



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

therefore capable of being afforded full weight and can be treated as a material 
consideration in the determination of planning applications. 

 
b) The Area 1 Masterplan 
  
9.17 The site is located within the Area 1 Masterplan which was endorsed by the Council as 

technically sound and meeting the requirements of SALP Policy SA9 in February 2015. 
 
9.18 The Masterplan responds to requirements set out in the Warfield SPD and provides the 

parameters and design principles to set the context for development proposals. It is a 
material consideration in the assessment of this planning application.  
 

9.19 Whilst the masterplan is not immutable, any amendments or changes in terms of the 
key design principles set out in the masterplan, would be required to demonstrate an 
improvement or enhancement to what could be achieved through conformity to the 
masterplan. Therefore, the applicant has been required to demonstrate consideration for 
the content of the Area 1 Masterplan when putting forward proposals for this site.    
 

9.20 To secure the successful delivery of the comprehensive development of the strategic 
allocation, it is important that individual development proposals do not undermine the 
overarching objectives. This includes the transport/highway strategy, design and 
infrastructure delivery. The need to secure comprehensive delivery has been recognised 
by Inspectors on appeal, when considering alternative proposals within the wider 
allocation. 

 
c) Five Year Housing Land Supply 

 
9.21 The Council is currently unable to demonstrate a 5 Year Housing Land Supply (5YHLS) 

[4.74 years as at April 2023] and as a result the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development is applied. Therefore, development should be approved unless any adverse 
impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits of the 
scheme. 

 
d) Comprehensive site delivery 

 
9.22 The SALP and the Warfield SPD explain the need for a comprehensive approach to the 

development of the Warfield strategic development and for masterplans ‘to be prepared 
by the developer and agreed by the Council’.  An Area 1 Masterplan has been agreed by 
the Council as being in compliance with the requirement of SALP Policy SA9 and 
provides the context and forms a material consideration in the assessment of this 
planning application. 
 

9.23 A principal reason for refusing a previous planning application (ref. section 5.) on this 
site was that the proposed development would have resulted in a piecemeal form of 
development which would have prejudiced the comprehensive delivery of SA9 in terms of 
design and infrastructure delivery. This was largely because several sites to the south 
needed to be considered as a whole to ensure appropriate development design interface, 

34



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

connectivity and because the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations at the time 
limited the pooling of up to only five developer contributions towards any one 
infrastructure project needed to mitigate impact. Fragmentation of development would 
therefore have led to poorly considered design and a failure to be able to deliver projects 
needed to mitigate the whole SA9 allocation.  

 
9.24 Since this refusal, a consortium and a further individual development to the south (ref. 

section 5.) have received planning permission with construction nearing completion, and 
the ‘pooling restriction’ has been abolished. The context for this planning application has 
therefore changed significantly since this refusal, with the Council now of the view that 
development of this parcel, would not now prejudice the delivery of the wider allocation.  

 
Sequential Test 

 
9.25 Flood risk mapping confirms parts of the site are within areas at risk of fluvial and 

surface water flooding.  
 

9.26 Paragraph 159 of the Framework states that inappropriate development in areas at risk 
of flooding should be avoided by directing it away from areas at highest risk, whether 
existing or in the future.  
 

9.27 Paragraph 161 requires the application of a sequential approach to the location of 
development taking account of the potential and future risk of all sources of flooding, to 
avoid, where possible, flood risk to people and property.  
 

9.28 Paragraph 162 states that the aim of the sequential test is to steer new development to 
areas with the lowest risk of flooding from any source, and development should not be 
permitted if there are reasonably available sites appropriate for the development in areas 
with a lower risk of flooding. It should be used in areas known to be at risk now or in the 
future from any form of flooding. ‘If it is not possible for development to be located in 
areas with a lower risk of flooding (taking into account wider sustainable development 
objectives), the exception test may have to be applied’. (paragraph 163). 
 

9.29 The applicant has provided a Sequential Test and Exception Test, dated August 2023, 
whereby it has reviewed sites without planning permission that are included as draft 
allocations within the emerging Bracknell Forest Local Plan, the Site Allocations Local 
Plan, and SHELAA sites. 
 

9.30 The Sequential Test concludes that there are no sequentially preferable sites (in flood 
risk terms) to the subject site which are reasonably available, suitably located and 
appropriate for the nature and quantum of the proposed development.  
 

9.31 The Exception Test is required as a small area in the north of the site is located within 
Flood Zones 2 & 3. No properties are proposed within the flood zone, or within its greater 
extent factoring in climate change. It concludes that the proposal is a sustainable form of 
development which provides appropriate flood mitigation, and which would make a 
positive contribution towards the Borough’s housing supply. 

 

35



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

9.32 The findings of the applicant’s Sequential and Exception Test are accepted and it is 
concluded that the issue of flood risk does not prevent the development of this site; 
consistent with the approach set out in Chapter 14 of the NPPF. 
 

9.33 Having regard to planning policy and other material considerations set out above, there 
is in-principle support for the residential development of this site, and the Council is 
satisfied that the development of this parcel would not prejudice the comprehensive 
delivery of the SA9 allocation.  

 
ii. Design and impact on the character of the area  

 
9.34 'Saved' BFBLP Policy EN20 and CSDPD Policy CS7 requires development to be 

sympathetic to the appearance and character of the local area and appropriate in terms 
of built form. These are consistent with chapter 12 of the NPPF and therefore have 
significant weight. NPPF para. 130 states that developments should function well, be 
visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and effective 
landscaping and be sympathetic to local character and history.  It says they and should 
establish a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, spaces, building 
types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive places to live, work 
and visit. It also says that development should optimise the potential of the site to 
accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount and mix of development, including 
green and other public space. 
 

9.35 The part of the site fronting Forest Road sits within the Policy WNP3: Promoting Good 
Design in Newell Green area. The policy sets out a number of design principles that 
development proposals should have regard to, and can be given significant weight. 
 

9.36 Following the Warfield SPD, in accordance with the requirement of SA9, an Area 1 
Masterplan (A1M) was agreed with BFC that provided more fine-grained site analysis and 
design principles that planning applications would be required to respond to. Figure 3 
below, shows the sites location within A1M. 

 

36



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

 
Figure 3: Site location on Area 1 Masterplan (bold red) 
 
9.37 The site is located within the ‘Newell Green South’ character area, which is intended to 

reflect the ‘rural character of Newell Green with an informality and greenness to its form 
and appearance’ (A1M, p34). The relevant masterplan design principles are: 

 
• The access strategy, with development orientated towards Bracknell town centre, to 

minimise traffic impact on Forest Road. 
• Provision of c.22 units accessed off Forest Road and c.28 units accessed off the new 

north-south link road. 
• Advises 35 dwelling per hectare (dph). 
• Prevalence of detached and semi-detached dwellings to the north and short terraces 

and mews further south. 
• A landmark building fronting Forest Road. 
• Primary frontages facing onto the access road from Forest Road and area of open 

space. 
• An area of greenspace fronting Forest Road adjacent to the Three Legged Cross 

pub. 
• A small development parcel in the northern part of the site is accessed off Forest 

Road, whilst the majority of the site is accessed through an adjacent development 
parcel to the west onto the new north-south link road (Sopwith Road). 

• Pedestrian links provided through the site from the south out onto Forest Road at two 
separate points. 

• Integration of the Oak tree into an area of open space. 
• Vehicular and pedestrian/cycle links into adjacent development parcels. 
• Provision of SuDS. 

 
9.38 The Character Areas SPD (2010) provides further design recommendations and can 

be afforded significant weight. It provides guidance to supplement Core Strategy Policy 
CS7 (Design).  The application site is partly within/partly adjacent to Area A (Forest 

37



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

Road/Osborne Lane) of the Northern Villages. The key recommendations relevant to this 
proposal are: 
• Development along the main streets should most appropriately be in the form of semi 

detached or small terraces of houses (2 storeys high); 
• Infill development at the rear of plots could differ slightly in character without 

impacting negatively on the settlement. However, existing frontage conditions should 
be retained; 

• Development within the village fringes should retain the looser, more open and less 
formal development pattern; 

• Retain roadside and waterside hedgerows and hedgerow trees; 
• Front boundaries to be formed by hedgerows or low brick walls; side boundaries 

linking to older property to use brick walls; 
• New development should retain and reinforce tree and hedgerow planting in keeping 

with the local landscape pattern; and 
• Boundary treatments should be in line with existing boundaries as there is a risk of 

loss of locally distinctive road frontage. 
 
9.39 First, the northern parcel accessed off Forest Road will be assessed. The 

development’s Forest Road frontage is defined by a 2.5 storey landmark apartment 
building, marking the northernmost extent of the development set back by an area of 
landscaped open space. As intended, the design provides a focal point of greater visual 
prominence, in a gateway location that provides legibility and visual interest. This accords 
with the Area 1 Masterplan recommendation for buildings up to 3 storeys in height at key 
locations. The dual aspect also serves to provide activation and natural surveillance to 
open space and the greenway to the west. 2 storey dwellings to the south-east complete 
the frontage, providing a transition of massing from the apartment building to existing 
dwellings, by means of a terraced block and detached house. Particular attention has 
been given to plots 33-35 to ensure that they turn the corner and frame the main access. 
As figure 4 shows, with separation between blocks, the access road, open space, and a 
substantial landscaped setback, the design and setting of development is considered to 
respond to design objectives, is appropriate to this important location and is sympathetic 
to the character of the area. 

 

 
Figure 4: Proposed Forest Road frontage 
 
9.40 Upon entering the site from Forest Road, dwellings are suitably set back, and areas of 

parking are broken up by areas of landscaping, including tree planting, which continues 
to soften the streetscene through into the site and onwards to define the greenway link. 
Dwellings are mostly detached with two semi-detached blocks, and the majority are two 
storeys in height, which is reflective of dwellings in the locality. Parking is mostly provided 
alongside dwellings, with car ports, to minimise car dominance in the streetscene. The 

38



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

arrangement of plots, combined with variation in elevations and roofing, helps to provide 
a loose grain of development, and breaks up any continuity in frontage.  
 

9.41 The apartment parking area is now located to the rear of properties to minimise any 
imposition on Forest Road, open space and the streetscene generally. 
 

9.42 The greenway follows a direct route through the parcel, and is generally well set back 
from built form and benefits from a reasonable degree of natural surveillance where it  
links to the southern parcel. Access for a fire engine is provided at the link between the 
north and south parcels, where bollards at either end would prevent it being used as a 
vehicular cut-through. At this point, plot 23 is 2.5 storeys in height and serves as a key 
building, appropriate to its location in terminating a view westwards from the southern 
parcel. The principle of ‘key buildings’, in the context of good urban design principles, is 
explained in the Design SPD, paras 3.7.4 -3.7.11. 
 

9.43 With reference now to the southern parcel; the access from Crozier Lane is framed by 
2 storey detached dwellings that front the strategic greenway and ditchline. Boundary 
treatment defining this frontage and plot 14 and 17’s rear garden that wraps around the 
greenway and open space has been carefully considered, with post and rail and chain 
link fencing.  This is supplemented with landscaping, providing for softened enclosure 
appropriate to this highly visible location adjacent to open space. 
 

9.44 This southern parcel, as shown at figure 5, similarly comprises mostly detached 2 
storey dwellings, other than a single semi-detached block and elements of 2.5 storey 
dwellings where considered appropriate, which serve to provide definition in the 
streetscene and variety in dwelling mix, design and roofscape. Plot 18 is the only 
bungalow provided and is considered necessary to address a particular design interface 
with existing properties (ref. section 9.iii.). 

 

 

 
Figure 5: Proposed dwellings backing onto Forest Road properties (top), and dwellings along 
the northern extent of the southern parcel (bottom) 
 
9.45 The majority of car parking is provided to the side of dwellings which serves to loosen 

up the development, with instances of parking to the front largely set into the site away 
from the main access. 

39



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

 
9.46 On entering the site, dwellings are set back beyond 2m-4m side/front gardens that 

provide for tree planting to soften the street. Built form on the street comprise a variety of 
styles of roof line and projected elements which serves to create for variation in built line 
for a more organic feel.  
 

9.47 Plots 8, 9 & 20 are the only 2.5 storey dwellings, with good depth of landscaped front 
gardens, they serve to terminate main views east and north within this southern parcel. 
This design response is considered appropriate and provides for variation, interest, and a 
sense of legibility to assist with orientation through the site. 
 

9.48 Dwellings include a variety of projected elements, such as porches, bay windows and 
garages. A variety a roof styles are proposed, including hipped and half-hipped roofs with 
gable elements, with chimneys added to reflect local character. Construction of dwellings 
will predominantly be of red brick, however this is supplemented with various elements of 
patterned tile hanging, timber boarding, rendering, and brick detailing. Roofs will 
incorporate both red and grey tiling. 

 
9.49 A variety of boundary treatments are proposed, appropriate to their location. Where 

plot boundary enclosure is required in more sensitive areas, such as where there is an 
interface with open space, split-chestnut post and rail fencing, bolstered with stock 
fencing and hedging, is proposed. This will provide a sympathetic vegetated interface that 
will mature over time. Prominent rear garden boundaries are defined with 1.8m high brick 
walls. Only those rear garden boundaries with less visual presence are defined by 1.8m 
close-boarded fencing. This arrangement is considered sympathetic to the character of 
the area. 
 

9.50 A continuation of the north-south greenway is provided for through the site from the 
south. It is integrated within an area of open space that widens to provide for an 
attenuation basin and a significant oak tree on a ditch-line.  It also serves to provide the 
visual and physical connection to the pedestrian link to the east, that forms a pedestrian-
only continuation of the green corridor out onto Forest Road. 
 

9.51 In conclusion, although the character of the site will inevitably change, it is considered 
that the proposal has appropriately responded to design objectives set out in the Warfield 
SPD and Area 1 Masterplan, and sympathetically blends into the character of the area. 
Redevelopment of the presently derelict area along Forest Road will provide clear 
benefits. The proposal makes efficient use of the land and good use of the opportunities 
provided by the natural assets of the site. Therefore, the proposal is in general 
accordance with the Area 1 Masterplan, Warfield SPD, 'Saved' BFBLP Policy EN20, 
CSDPD Policy CS7 and the NPPF.   

 
iii. Impact on residential amenity  

 
9.52 BFBLP Policy EN20 seeks to protect the amenity of surrounding properties. This Policy 

requires that new development does not have an unacceptably adverse affect on the 
amenity of surrounding properties and adjoining area. This is consistent with the NPPF. 
 

40



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

9.53 In addition to heights of buildings, separation distances and boundary treatment, 
proposed finished floor levels in response to changes to existing ground levels are also a 
factor for consideration. 
 

9.54 The following section will assess the impact of the development from the north of the 
site clockwise.   
 

9.55 Development along the Forest Road frontage is sufficiently set back from the road, with 
established vegetation bounding the carriageway opposite. The nearest potentially 
impacted dwellings are existing properties fronting Forest Road to the east are and are 
either side-on or backing onto the proposed development. 
 

9.56 The depth of gardens for plots 32 and 33 provide a rear to side separation with the 
neighbouring dwelling of 19m. This relationship is considered acceptable. 
 

9.57 Plot 31 is set at an oblique angle to the foot of the neighbouring property’s garden 
beyond vegetation, with separation varying from 1.8m to 3m and 22m between the side 
and rear of dwellings. The proposed roof line is hipped away from the property which will 
further reduce its visual impact. This relationship is considered acceptable. 
 

9.58 Plot 18 is a single storey bungalow and is proposed to be constructed on ground raised 
by 1.85m (which is necessary for the drainage strategy to function effectively) and has a 
side to rear interface with nearest properties to the east. Factoring in the levels change, 
the height to ridge would be 7.65m and 4.45m to eaves from existing ground level. 
Separation to boundary and the nearest property to the east would vary from 2.7m and 
24m respectively to 6.3m and 28m. The distance between habitable windows, at an 
oblique angle would be 27m. The boundary is vegetated with established trees, and as 
part of the landscaping scheme, hedging and pleached Hornbeam trees are proposed to 
help strengthen the visual buffering. To the front of the bungalow, further hedgerow and 
tree planting is proposed to prevent headlights from cars spilling into rear gardens. To the 
rear, the patio area is proposed to have a timber screen to prevent incidental overlooking. 
Concerns were first raised by objectors with regard to this relationship when a two-storey 
dwelling was proposed here. Replacement with a bungalow is now considered to have 
addressed concerns and, combined with the separation distance and intervening 
vegetation, is now considered to be an appropriate relationship that would not lead to an 
unacceptable impact on amenity. Figure 6 shows this relationship. 
 

41



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

 
Figure 6: Relationship between Plot 18 and Forest Road properties 
 

9.59 The pedestrian access onto Forest Road rises by means of two sets of steps to meet 
the proposed internal site level change from the east. The highest point of the steps 
would be 11m from the rear boundary of the most impacted property, with the top of the 
lower tier being 4m away. Given the distances, low intensity of path usage expected and 
landscaping proposed, this relationship is considered acceptable. 
 

9.60 Between plots 13 and 8 the increased land level change is around 1-1.5m, and the 
depths of rear gardens ranges from 11.5 to 14.5m. The boundary is heavily vegetated, 
largely defined by 1.8m closeboard fencing with a further 3.5m height of Leylandii hedge. 
With dwellings further east, rear-to-rear separation between dwellings is 33 to 36m. 
Separation is greater with plots 8 and 9 that are 2.5 storey with skylights in the rear 
roofline. This relationship significantly exceeds the Design SPD guidance minimum of 
22m back-to-back separation and is considered acceptable. Figure 7 shows this 
relationship. 
 

 
Figure 7: Relationship between Plot 12 and Forest Road properties 
 

9.61 Plots 5-7 have a closer relationship to existing dwellings, with boundary vegetation 
providing less of a buffer. Level change would only be +0.5m. The back-to-back 
relationship with dwellings at Abbey Place is oblique with a separation of 21m. The 
nearest proposed rear garden would be 12.5m deep with significant landscaping 
proposed to strengthen the boundary over time. The side elevation of Plot 5 is set in from 
the boundary by 3.5m and is 10m from the side elevation of the closest dwelling on Old 
Farmhouse Row. This is an acceptable relationship. 
 

42



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

9.62 To the south, the separation distance between nearest plots 1 and 2 to the newly 
constructed apartment building at Old Farmhouse Row is 20-22m, which is in 
approximate alignment with the Design SPD separation guideline. 
 

9.63 To the west, the front elevations of plots 1 and 14 are 15m and 23m away respectively 
from newly constructed development, beyond the greenway, ditchline and private drive. 
This is considered acceptable. 
 

9.64 Further north, to the west of the site is the property Huntercombe. Plots 23-27 back 
onto and are appropriately set back from its heavily vegetated and long rear garden. The 
apartment building is set in 20m from the vegetated boundary, with a separation of 35m 
from the Huntercombe dwellinghouse, which is considered acceptable. 
 

9.65 The Three Legged Cross pub is 35m northwest of the apartment building, with open 
space and ditchline and earth bund between. This relationship is considered acceptable, 
and the development will provide a betterment to what is currently a neglected former car 
sales forecourt. 
 

9.66 Within the site, relationships between dwellings generally accord with the Design SPD 
guidelines, and the depth of gardens separating properties are considered acceptable. 

 
9.67 Around the edge of the site, whilst there would be level changes within the site, the 

development’s ground levels will tie into existing ground levels of adjoining land. 
Therefore boundary fencing around the edge of the site will remain approximately the 
same, with some additional 1.8m high closeboard fencing proposed in places to bolster 
boundary treatment where less defined. This is shown on the submitted Boundary 
Treatment Plan. It is important to note that the ‘Site Boundary’ line shown on figures 6 & 
7 should not be interpreted as representing the height of boundary fencing. 
 

9.68 Overall, it is considered that the proposal would not result in any unacceptably adverse 
impacts upon any existing and/or proposed residential amenity and would therefore 
comply with Saved BFBLP Policy EN20(vii), the NPPF and the Design SPD.  

 
iv. Transport  

 
9.69 The NPPF emphasises the importance of transport policies in facilitating sustainable 

development and in giving people real choice about how they travel. Particular advice is 
set out in paragraph 35 of the NPPF which explains that developments should be located 
and designed where practical to (amongst other matters) give priority to pedestrian and 
cycle movements.  They should also have access to high quality public transport facilities 
and create safe and secure layouts which minimise conflicts between traffic and cyclists 
or pedestrians.   
 

9.70 The Local Highways Authority (LHA) has been consulted throughout the determination 
of the scheme, with issues raised helping to evolve the layout.  
 
Access 
 

43



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

9.71 Access arrangements roughly split the site in two. The northern parcel, comprising 21 
dwellings, is served by vehicular and pedestrian access off the A3095 Forest Road via a 
T-junction. The southern parcel, comprising 22 dwellings, is served by vehicular and 
pedestrian access off Sopwith Road (Galton way and then Crozier Lane), and a 
segregated pedestrian link providing a connection to Forest Road. This latter route would 
be stepped, to avoid an engineered ramp. This is considered acceptable given that there 
are alternative non-stepped routes onto Forest Road via the main access and greenway 
to the north, and via Abbey Place to the south. 
 

9.72 Fire engine access passes across the greenway opposite plot 23. Whilst considered 
acceptable in principle, details of this section, comprising grasscrete and bollards, are to 
be secured by condition. 
 

9.73 Access arrangements accord with the Area 1 Masterplan access and movement 
strategy. Further to this, a segregated 3m footpath/cycleway is provided, providing north-
south connectivity via a greenway linking Crozer Land and Forest Road. This forms a 
continuation of the route consented on earlier schemes to the south. 
 

9.74 Where appropriate, for unadopted routes, provisions for Private Access and Footways 
(PAF) will be secured to provide public access, appropriate construction and 
maintenance in perpetuity. Indemnity for refuse collection will also be required along with 
other relevant controls that an adopted highway would have the ability to provide. Having 
such clauses will also allow public access to the visitor parking bays in these areas for all 
residents. 
 

Parking 
 

9.75 The proposal appears to provide parking in line with BFC standards for dwellings and 
visitors, with the exception of plot 21 which has a substandard garage and 2 spaces on 
plot, a shortfall of 1 space. However the garage is larger than a single garage in width 
and so could be used for parking a smaller vehicle whilst the remainder of the space is 
used for storage such as cycles. This is one of several sub-standard garages provided 
across the site not counted as a parking space, but capable of being used as such. On 
balance this single exception is considered acceptable, with such a shortfall not being 
grounds for refusal. These smaller garages can provide storage and an area to store 
cycles as well. Cycle parking is to be conditioned, but the plan shows sheds/garages for 
the dwellings and a store for the flats. 
 

Traffic impact 
 

9.76 The applicant has looked at data from the BFC Model for 2026 and made an evaluation 
of the likely trip generation and distribution using details from TRICS and national 
statistics. This site is part of a wider development of Warfield and the applicant has 
undertaken a reasonable peak hour test of the impact of the development with other 
proposed developments already included. The impact from the proposal will have a 
nominal impact on the local road network as the changes already made and are in place 
paid regard to the potential future development of this site. 
 

44



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

Off-site works 
 

9.77 With regards to off-site highway works to be delivered as part of this development, the 
LHA has sought for both the Forest Road main access to be lit and a 120m section of 
road south of the application site by the main access, to ‘fill a gap’ and join up with an 
existing section of lighting that ends at Old Milestone House. The reason cited is to 
improve safe access. This would serve to light a long currently unlit section of road. 
Whilst it is understood that the SA9 strategic development site will inevitably have an 
impact on the character of Warfield, the benefits of works that would cause ‘harm’ need 
to be weighed against the benefits.  

 
9.78 NPPF paragraph 185 and Policy WNP12: Promoting Dark Skies, state that 

development should be appropriate to its location and consider potential sensitivity of the 
wider area to impacts that could arise, in particular to limit the impact of light pollution 
from artificial light on local amenity. NPPF para 111 further states that development 
should only be refused if it would lead to an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or 
the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe. Given that this 
stretch of road proposed to be lit is historic and characterful remote from the point of main 
access, it is not considered that street lighting can reasonably be justified from this 
development. Street lighting immediately around the main access will however be 
secured. The applicant has agreed to this and has offered to provide, and replace 
existing standard LED lighting columns, with heritage-style lanterns in the interests of 
reflecting and enhancing the character of the surrounding area. This will be subject to 
section 278 agreement. If thus minded, lighting of this road could be carried out by the 
LHA outside the scope of this planning application. 
 

9.79 To conclude, subject to works proposed being secured by condition or planning 
obligation, that could be linked to the phasing of development, the development accords 
with planning policy and guidance, and would not lead to any unacceptable highway 
safety issues. The proposal is considered to comply with Policies CS23 and CS24 of the 
CSDPD and Saved policy M9 of the BFBLP. 

 
v. Heritage  

 
9.80 Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 

imposes a statutory duty on the decision maker when considering whether to grant 
planning permission for development which affects a listed building or its setting to "have 
special regard to the desirability or preserving the building or its setting or any other 
features of special or architectural interest which it possess". The requirements of this Act 
are relevant because part of the site is within the setting of the locally listed Spice Lounge 
and Old Police Cottage and the Grade II Listed Milestone (Milestone 250m South East of 
Bott Bridge), and to a lesser degree, the Grade II Listed South Lodge and Newell Hall. 
 

9.81 Para. 193 of the NPPF states that "When considering the impact of a proposed 
development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be 
given to the asset's conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the 

45



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

weight should be).This is irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to 
substantial harm, total loss or less than substantial harm to its significance". 

 
9.82 Para. 194 indicates that “Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated 

heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), 
should require clear and convincing justification….”. 
 

9.83 Paragraph 196 states that “Where a development proposal will lead to less than 
substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be 
weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, 
securing its optimum viable use”. 
 

9.84 The Council’s Heritage consultant has been consulted and has advised that  the main 
part of the site which would potentially affect the built heritage in Warfield, would be along 
the Forest Road frontage. The proposals for the new building along Forest Road would 
replace existing buildings on the Warfield Garage site which are not of any architectural 
or historic interest and includes poorly designed buildings which are unsympathetic to the 
historic environment.  Following amendments to the original proposal that sought to 
address concerns raised, the massing of built form on Forest Road and overall visual 
impact of buildings has reduced.  

 
9.85 There is no objection to the proposed development as, if suitable architectural detailing 

and materials are incorporated, there would be a potential improvement to the setting of 
the locally listed buildings. A condition is recommended for the submission of external 
building materials to safeguard the special architectural and historic interest of the Listed 
Buildings and locally listed buildings. 

 
vi. Trees and Landscaping  

 
9.86 Trees and hedgerows are important to the character and appearance of an area and in 

providing ecological habitats. BFBLP Policy EN1 requires proposals for major 
development to, where possible, retain trees and hedgerows to soften the impact of the 
new developed areas and enhance those wildlife habitats which are important to the 
immediate surrounding locality of the proposed development. Policy EN2 requires the 
planting of indigenous trees appropriate to the setting and character of the area and a 
variety of other indigenous plants. 
 

9.87 A tree survey, arboricultural impact assessment, tree protection plan and supporting 
information have been submitted in support of the application. BFC’s Tree Officer has 
been consulted during the course of determination.  
 

9.88 The site contains and is bordered by a number of trees and hedges. A relatively small 
number of the trees merit particularly careful consideration in relation to this 
development. The most significant are two English Oak trees within the site.  Firstly T7 is 
a category A1 landmark tree subject to a TPO (TPO 1207), that is a potential veteran, on 
the west-side of a ditchline defining the western boundary.  Secondly, T13 lies to the east 
in a narrow corridor forming a pedestrian link to Forest Road. There are several other 
groups and individual trees around the perimeter within and outside of the site. 

46



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

 
9.89 T7 is located within the western area of open space, specifically on the west side of the 

ditch line, which suppresses the spread of roots to the east, resulting in an adjusted non-
circular root protection area (RPA). To the east of the ditch, a 3m wide 
pedestrian/cycleway is proposed 10m away from the trunk. For the area of the path 
outside of the adjusted RPA, but within the conventional RPA (plotted if the ditch was not 
present), path construction will adopt a precautionary approach; constructed by means of 
a non-intrusive ‘do-dig’ method using a cellular confinement system (CCS) of 75mm 
depth with a self-binding gravel wearing course. An indicative construction cross-section 
is shown on the submitted Tree Protection Plan. Self-binding gravel is used in many tree-
related situations across the borough, such as on paths through woodland in close 
proximity to trees. This construction method is designed for this conflicting situation, and 
will minimise root disturbance and compaction, and allow ground movement for root 
development and a degree of gaseous exchange and water percolation. This is 
considered to be appropriate, striking the right balance in facilitating access whilst 
minimising harm to the tree. 
 

9.90 T13 is located in a constrained corridor between existing properties to the north and 
south. Existing buildings and hardstanding would serve to have suppressed root 
development leading to an adjusted RPA being plotted, that in effect increases the 
amount of the RPA within the corridor in the application site. BFC’s Tree Officer has 
expressed concerns regarding the appropriateness of a path through this corridor given 
the constrained rooting environment. The footpath connection is a requirement of the 
Area 1 Masterplan, and good levels of accessibility within a development is an important 
part of good design. Therefore, delivery of this route needs to be achieved unless the 
benefits are outweighed by the harm doing so. To address this conflict, the applicant is 
proposing the use of CCS with a self-binding gravel wearing course through the adjusted 
RPA area, with an appropriate separation from the trunk to allow development of buttress 
roots. For reasons previously set out, this is considered an appropriate balance, 
incorporating a sensitive construction method. 
 

9.91 Sections of path in the vicinity of T7 & T13 are to remain unlit, to minimise any soil 
disturbance from servicing, biodiversity disturbance, harm to the character of the trees 
and lighting spill onto neighbouring properties. The path past T13 will remain unadopted. 
Precise details of path construction and drainage works near to the tree will be 
conditioned. 
 

9.92 T26 – category A2 English Oak along Forest Road will be integrated into the layout and 
become a defining feature, framing the northern entrance of the greenway into the site. 
Extensive hardstanding to the south will be removed to create a more sustainable 
growing environment. 
 

9.93 The Tree Officer raised concerns regarding the proximity of built form between T3 – 
English Oak and Plot 23, and T11 – Ash tree and plot 13. Trees are located outside of 
the site, with the trunks 16m from the rear elevations of each house. Neither tree is to the 
south of the proposed rear gardens, therefore the future impact on amenity from shading 
is considered limited. These trees are not the subject of a TPO and remedial pruning is 
not unusual on property boundaries; in which case the tree owners would have control 

47



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

over the tree’s removal and works on their property.  Given the distance between trees 
and built form, and their aspect, the relationship is not considered to unacceptably 
compromise the future health of the trees or residential amenity and is therefore 
considered to be acceptable. 

 
9.94 No changes to existing ground levels within the RPA of retained trees are proposed 

other than for the construction of paths using a no-dig method and the sensitive 
instatement of landscaping. Further to this, a condition is proposed requiring details of 
proposed works and ground level changes within 5 metres of the RPA of retained trees in 
order to safeguard their health. 

 
9.95 The proposed landscaping emphasises the planting of native broad-leaved tree and 

hedge species around the site, including a landscaped setback for development fronting 
Forest Road, and in areas of open space. Within the site, more of a mix of a native, 
ornamental and herbaceous species-mix is proposed that serves to ‘green-up’ the streets 
that will attractively mature the development over time. Landscaping has been carefully 
considered, with Parks & Countryside and Biodiversity Officer input, to benefit biodiversity 
and provide for visual buffering with existing properties. 
 

9.96 Overall, the scheme is considered to sympathetically integrate existing trees into the 
site and provides for a landscaping scheme that is appropriate to the semi-rural setting 
and maximises opportunities for biodiversity and therefore is considered acceptable. 

 
vii. Biodiversity  

 
9.97 Policy CS1 of the CSDPD seeks to protect and enhance the quality of natural 

resources including biodiversity, and CS7 requires development to enhance the 
landscape and promote biodiversity. This is supported by the NPPF – Section 10 that 
seeks to conserve and enhance the natural environment and for development to 
minimise impacts and provide net gains for biodiversity. 
 

9.98 The application site comprises a mixture of greenfield and brownfield land; primarily 
semi-improved grassland, dense scrub and buildings/hardstanding. There are no 
designated nature conservation sites within the application site. The most valuable 
habitat present within the site comprises scattered trees, specifically the veteran and 
mature English Oaks on the south-western and eastern boundaries. The site supports 
foraging and commuting bats and nesting birds. Evidence of mole, fox and rabbit was 
also recorded; although they are not subject to legal protection in terms of their 
conservation status. 
 

9.99 An Ecological Impact Assessment (EcIA) has been submitted to identify and mitigate 
the impact of development, to ensure compliance with nature conservation legislation and 
relevant planning policy. The Council’s Biodiversity Officer has been consulted 
throughout determination. Tree-specific matters are considered in section 9.vi.. 

 
 

9.100 The proposal provides a landscaping scheme that focuses on native trees, such as 
English Oak and Wild Service trees, and hedgerow species within areas of open space, 

48



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

and elements within built form. The development would provide  boxes, bird boxes, 
hedgehog highways though the site and deadwood stag beetle habitat. 
 

9.101 In the event of approval, conditions will be imposed to require a Construction 
Environmental Management Plan to minimise the impact on biodiversity during 
construction.  It will also require the provision of up-to-date reptile and bat survey 
information, a lighting scheme sensitive to wildlife, and for ditch culverting to be designed 
to facilitate wildlife connectivity between ponds and ditches. 
 

9.102 Overall, the development would provide for measurable Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG); 
achieving a gain onsite for hedgerows and watercourses, with area habitat units being 
provided off-site by financial contributing towards BFC’s BNG projects. On-site provision 
would be secured by condition through a Landscape and Ecological Management Plan 
(LEMP), with off-site BNG and monitoring sums secured by planning obligation. 
 

9.103 To conclude, the Council’s Biodiversity Officer is satisfied that the scheme accords with 
planning policy, and it would provide a net gain for biodiversity in accordance with the 
NPPF. 

 
viii. Archaeology  

 
9.104 A Written Scheme of Investigation for an archaeological evaluation at the site has been 

submitted. Berkshire Archaeology has been consulted and has advised that the site lies 
in an area of archaeological potential and has therefore recommended the imposition of 
an archaeological condition.  
 

ix. Drainage  
 

9.105 Chapter 14 of the NPPF states that “When determining any planning applications, local 
planning authorities should ensure that flood risk is not increased elsewhere” (para 167), 
and that “Major developments should incorporate sustainable drainage systems unless 
there is clear evidence that this would be inappropriate” (para 169). 
 

9.106 The majority of the site lies within Flood Zone 1 (low risk), however, a small area within 
the north-western corner of the site, near The Cut river, is located within Flood Zone 2 
(Medium Risk) and Flood Zone 3 (High Risk). Areas within the site are at risk of surface 
water flooding. Additionally, it is recognised that the area to the north of the site, around 
Huntercombe, the Three Legged Cross and on Forest Road, frequently experiences 
localised flooding, which has been raised extensively in objections. This particular issue 
is addressed below. 

 
9.107 A Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) and drainage strategy based on pluvial modelling 

have been submitted in support of the application and the Lead Local Flood Authority 
(LLFA) has been consulted throughout the course of determining this application, the 
following advice has been provided. 
 

49



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

9.108 “Extensive discussions with the applicant and their drainage consultant has been 
undertaken in relation to the proposals for the management of surface water flood risk 
and the LLFA is now satisfied with the proposals.  
 

9.109 The primary issues at the site were the existing surface water flow path affecting the 
site shown to be flowing south to north through the site as well as the proposed 
realignment of a partially culverted watercourse through the site. 
 

9.110 The applicant has undertaken detailed hydraulic modelling to assess the surface water 
flood risk and then have used this modelling to design a mitigation scheme. The LLFA 
has reviewed the hydraulic modelling and the proposed mitigation scheme and consider 
that this is acceptable to manage the flood risk at the site without increasing flood risk off-
site.  
 

9.111 The mitigation scheme consists of a new surface water flow channel along the eastern 
boundary of the site which captures surface water runoff from the surrounding catchment. 
Additionally, the applicant has included a low level embankment in the north west corner, 
adjacent to the existing Three Legged Cross, to reduce the risk of flows leaving the site at 
this location. 
 

9.112 Additionally, the applicant has submitted a surface water drainage strategy, including 
SuDS measures, to manage surface water runoff from the proposal. The proposed 
development is split into two catchments which will both drain to the existing ditch flowing 
through the site within the north-south greenway. The southern catchment will drain via 
permeable paving and a piped drainage network to an attenuation basin in the centre of 
the site within the area of open space. The northern catchment will utilise permeable 
paving to attenuate flows prior to discharge at the north west corner of the site. The 
discharge rate from the proposed development will be restricted to the equivalent pre-
development greenfield rate. The LLFA considers this strategy to be acceptable in 
principle to manage runoff from the proposed development. 
 

9.113 The proposed development will lead to a betterment of drainage across the site. The 
site layout will result in a net reduction in the extent of culverted ditch, currently running 
beneath the concrete forecourt. This, combined with the de-silting and redefining of the 
neglected ditch along the western boundary, will enable the site’s drainage to function 
more effectively, be easier to maintain and become an amenity and biodiversity asset.” 

 
9.114 Attention is drawn to a non-technical drainage note produced by the applicant, that is 

appended to this report (Appendix 1). This provides an overview of the drainage works 
and mitigation proposed as part of the development.  
 

9.115 To conclude, the LLFA is satisfied that the proposal would not result in an increase in 
flood risk off-site, in accordance with the NPPF. Therefore, the drainage strategy 
proposed is satisfactory, subject to conditions requiring details of design, works 
implementation, and management and maintenance details. 
 
Built form proximity to The Cut 
 

50



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

9.116 Based on the Environment Agency’s flood map and further modelled data, the majority 
of the site lies within Flood Zone 1 with low risk, with a northwestern area extending 
slightly into Flood Zones 2 and 3 with medium and high risk. However, all new properties 
are located out of Flood Zone 3.  
 

9.117 The NPPF classifies the proposed site usage ‘Residential’ as ‘More Vulnerable’ 
Development, and states that ‘More Vulnerable’ developments are suitable in Flood 
Zones 1 and 2. Therefore, the site layout for residential purposes is appropriate. 
 

9.118 The development proposal will incorporate mitigation measures to reduce flood risk 
and to ensure safety of the people and properties within the site and surrounding land 
over its lifetime considering appropriate climate change allowance. 
 

9.119 The Environment Agency has been consulted and is satisfied with the proposed site 
layout subject to a condition concerning finished floor levels. 
 
Localised flooding issues 
 

9.120 With regard to localised flooding, there is understood to be two main issues. First, a 
collapsed culvert section beneath the concrete forecourt is thought to be restricting the 
flow of water northwards from the southern ditch line towards The Cut, leading to the 
backing-up of water at times of heavy rainfall, causing localised flooding. BFC is working 
with the applicant, as owner of the site, to rectify this.  
 

9.121 Second, during times of extended heavy rainfall, the water level in The Cut has risen to 
such an extent that it has covered the outfall pipe that discharges water from the 
southern ditch line. Preventing discharge, this then leads to the surcharge of water 
downstream. BFC has recently undertaken Phase 1 of engineering works to raise the 
pipe level entering The Cut, which has been complicated by the extent and depth of utility 
services close to the Three Legged Cross. This improvement is anticipated to result in 
fewer flood events. Phase 2 of the work, which is yet to be undertaken, will increase the 
capacity of the drainage that runs from the proposal’s site boundary towards The Cut. 
This will increase flow conveyance to the outfall and further reduce the likelihood of 
flooding.  
 

9.122 It is important to note that flooding issues related to Phase 1 & 2 of works are a historic 
issue, and are wholly unrelated to the development site/proposal. However, because the 
ditch line within the application site, that serves a wider function in draining land beyond 
the application site, uses the pipe related to Phase 2 of works, and will continue to as part 
of the proposed drainage strategy, the developer has offered to fund Phase 2 works. This 
offer to provide mitigation beyond what would ordinarily be required is due in part to the 
developer’s recognition of flooding concerns in the area, but also because BFC does not 
have a specific budget to otherwise fund the works. This funding will be secured by 
planning obligation. 

  
x. Thames Basins Heaths Special Protection Area (SPA)  

 

51



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

9.123 In accordance with the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as 
amended) Bracknell Forest Council (BFC) has carried out a Habitats Regulations 
Assessment of the proposed development.  
 

9.124 The following potential adverse effects on habitats sites were screened out of further 
assessment: 

 
- Loss of functionally linked land (TBH SPA) 
- Air pollution from an increase in traffic (TBH SPA, Windsor Forest and Great Park 
- Special Area of Conservation (SAC), Thursley, Ash, Pirbright and Chobham SAC 

and Chilterns Beechwoods SAC) 
 

9.125 Recreational pressure on the TBH SPA was screened in for Appropriate Assessment. 
 

9.126 BFC, in consultation with Natural England, has formed the view that any net increase in 
residential development between 400m and 5km straight-line distance from the Thames 
Basin Heath Special Protection Area (TBH SPA) along with any larger developments 
comprising over 50 net new dwellings within the 5 – 7km zone is likely to have a 
significant effect on the integrity of the TBH SPA, either alone or in-combination with 
other plans or projects.  
 

9.127 This site is located partly within the 400m – 5km and partly within 5km – 7km of the 
Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area (TBH SPA) buffer zone and therefore is 
likely to result in an adverse effect on the SPA, unless it is carried out together with 
appropriate avoidance and mitigation measures. 
 

9.128 The development must secure measures to avoid and mitigate against the effect upon 
the TBH SPA, as set out in BFC’s Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) (April 2018). 
 

9.129 The strategy is for relevant developments to secure Suitable Alternative Natural 
Greenspace (SANG) capacity and financial contributions towards Strategic Access 
Management and Monitoring (SAMM) measures.  

 
9.130 In this instance, the development would result in a net increase of 43 dwellings of 

which 24 dwellings are within the 400m – 5km TBH SPA buffer zone and the remaining 
19 dwellings are located within the 5km to 7km buffer zone. Following confirmation from 
Natural England, the 19 dwellings in the 5km – 7km zone will not have an impact on the 
integrity of the TBH SPA and therefore no mitigation is required. However, the remaining 
24 dwellings (located in the 400m – 5km zone) require mitigation measures to be secured 
and delivered. 

 
9.131 The development has secured SANG capacity at a nearby SANG for 24 dwellings. 

 
9.132 The development is required to make a contribution towards Strategic Access 

Management and Monitoring (SAMM) calculated on a per bedroom basis for the 24 
dwellings. 
 

52



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

9.133 The applicant must agree to enter into a S106 agreement to secure this contribution 
and a restriction on the occupation of each dwelling until BFC has confirmed that SANG 
(and the relevant amount of its SANG capacity to serve the development) is made 
publicly available. Subject to the completion of the S106 agreement, the proposal would 
not lead to an adverse effect on the integrity of the SPA and would comply with South 
East Plan saved Policy NRM6, saved policy EN3 of the BFBLP, Policy CS14 and CS4 of 
the CSDPD, Policy SA9 of the SALP, the Warfield SPD, the TBH SPD and the NPPF.   
 

xi. Affordable Housing  
 

9.134 Policy CS16 requires development to meet the identified housing needs of the 
community, and CS17 requires suitable development to provide affordable housing. 
These policies can be afforded full weight as they are consistent with Section 5 of the 
NPPF. The Council’s affordable housing policy requires 25% of dwellings to be provided 
as affordable housing. 
 

9.135 This 43 dwelling scheme is proposing to provide 9 units as affordable. Whilst this 
equates to only 21% of dwellings, this is justified because of the application of ‘vacant 
building credit’.  

 
9.136 PPG states that where vacant buildings are being demolished as part of a scheme, the 

existing floorspace of the vacant building should be credited against the floorspace of the 
new development. It further explains that whatever the percentage proportion of vacant 
floorspace is, when compared to the proposed floorspace, the equivalent percentage 
reduction should be allowed in the number of affordable housing units to be provided.   
 

9.137 In this instance, 881sqm of on-site vacant floorspace amounts to 17.5% of the 
proposed 5,018sqm total floorspace. The starting point of 25% of affordable dwellings for 
this 43 dwelling is equivalent to 11 dwellings. With the application of vacant building 
credit, this reduces to 9 dwellings, therefore the proposed quantum of affordable 
dwellings is acceptable.  
 

9.138 The following affordable housing type and tenure is proposed: 
 

 1b 2p flat 2b 4p flat 3b 5p house 4b 6p house 

Shared 
Ownership 

2 1 0 0 

Social Rent 0 0 1 (plot 37) 1 (plot 38) 
Affordable Rent 
capped at LHA 

2 (ground floor 
unit as WC 
accessible) 

2 0 0 

 
9.139 The Housing Officer has been consulted and considers this an acceptable mix. 

 
9.140 This amount, tenure, size, type and location of Affordable Housing will be secured by 

Section 106 obligation. 
 

53



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

9.141 Subject to the above being secured by s106, the level of affordable housing proposed 
is considered acceptable. 

 
xii. Energy sustainability  

 
9.142 Since the Government’s Ministerial statement of the 26th March 2015 for residential 

development CSDPD Policy CS10 is only taken to require the submission of a 
Sustainability Statement covering water efficiency aimed at achieving an average water 
use in new dwellings of 110 litres per person per day.  
 

9.143 Policy CS12 requires the submission of an Energy Demand Assessment demonstrating 
how the development’s potential carbon dioxide emissions will be reduced by at least 
10% and how 20% of the development’s energy requirements will be met from on-site 
renewable energy generation. 

 
9.144 The requirement for such details to be submitted for approval will be secured by 

condition. 
 

xiii. Waste management  
 

9.145 The infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) (October 2012) that underpinned SALP policy 
SA9 requires the provision of two underground waste recycling facilities on the SA9 site. 
One facility has already been provided at the Cabbage Hill SANG car park as part of 
permission 13/01007/OUT and the other is planned for at the centrally located 
neighbourhood centre. This site is therefore not required to provide a site-wide waste 
recycling facility.  
 

9.146 The Waste & Recycling Manager has been consulted and has confirmed that 
arrangements for waste bin storage and collection are acceptable. 

 
xiv. Contaminated land 

 
9.147 According to BFC Environmental Health’s records, the northern part of the application 

site has been previously occupied by a vehicle repair garage with petrol filling forecourt, a 
smithy and cafe. Such land uses have the potential to cause contamination which could 
pose a risk to the proposed end users. As the proposed residential use is sensitive, in 
accordance with the NPPF, the applicant will be required to carry out a contamination risk 
assessment of the site followed by remediation works if found to be necessary. 
 

9.148 A Phase 2 Geo-environmental Site Investigation Report has been submitted with the 
application. This makes reference to a Phase 1 Desk Study previously carried out, and 
this has been used to inform the Phase 2 Intrusive Investigation. A copy of the Phase 1 
report has not been included as part of this application and must therefore be provided by 
the applicant to ensure the Phase 2 investigations have adequately targeted all the 
potential sources of contamination that might be present on site. 
 

54



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

9.149 The Phase 2 investigations have identified elevated concentrations of arsenic, lead, 
hydrocarbons and hazardous ground gases at the site that could pose a risk to the 
proposed end users. It is stated that further gas monitoring is considered necessary in 
drier months to confirm the gas regime at the site. 
 

9.150 In addition to demolition of the existing buildings on site, there are underground tanks, 
interceptors, sumps and vehicle inspection pits that all require removal. Remediation is 
considered necessary to make the site suitable for use and some proposals suggested. It 
is stated that a formal Remediation Strategy will need to be produced for the site.  
 

9.151 Investigations across the northern section were constrained by the presence of existing 
buildings, parked cars and underground structures. Further assessment of these areas 
will therefore be required following demolition and site clearance.  
 

9.152 In the event of approval, a condition to ensure that further investigations can be carried 
out following demolition of the existing buildings on site and that suitable remediation and 
validation of the site are carried out prior to occupation of the proposed dwellings will be 
secured. 
   

xv. Infrastructure delivery 
 

9.153 Policy CS6 requires development to contribute to the delivery of infrastructure needed 
to support growth and to mitigate its impacts upon infrastructure. Mitigation is primarily 
delivered through planning obligations, secured by s106 legal agreement, and the 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). 
 

9.154 In accordance with the requirements of SALP Policy SA9, planning obligations would 
be secured towards the following areas of infrastructure: 
 
a. Local Transport 
b. Primary Education 
c. Community Facilities 
d. OSPV 
e. SPA Avoidance & Mitigation 
f. SuDS 
g. Affordable Housing 
 

9.155 The Council has agreed, in principle, the heads of terms for the s106 legal agreement, 
which the Council considers accords with the infrastructure requirements of SALP Policy 
SA9, that will ensure the strategic site is delivered comprehensively. Planning obligations 
to be secured would include: 
 

• Measures to avoid and mitigate the impact of the residential development upon 
the Thames Basin Heaths SPA. 

• Affordable Housing: A minimum of 21% (9 dwellings) in accordance with the table 
in section 9.xi. 

55



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

• Requirement to enter into s278 and s38 agreements for construction of access, 
roads, footways, cycleways and subsequent adoption. 

• Highways provisions for Private Access and Footways (PAF) and maintenance. 
• Provision and maintenance of on-site open space.  
• Contribution towards off-site open space, towards, e.g. Warfield Memorial Ground 

or Priory Field. 
• On-site Biodiversity Net Gain maintenance obligations and monitoring fee. 
• Contribution towards off-site BNG units. 
• SuDS maintenance obligations and monitoring fee. 
• Residential Travel Plan measures. 
• Contribution towards Harvest Ride accessibility improvements. 
• Contribution towards Newell Green crossing. 
• Contribution towards Avery Lane access improvements. 
• Contribution towards the Warfield Community Hub. 
• Contribution towards off-site drainage improvement works. 
• S106 Obligation monitoring fees. 

 
9.156 Subject to appropriate mitigation being secured, this proposal would comply with CS 

Policies CS6, CS8 and SALP Policy SA9. 
 

9.157 It is considered that these planning obligations meet the statutory tests. 
 

9.158 BFC commenced charging CIL on 6th April 2015 and it applies to new buildings 
including those that involve the creation of additional dwellings. 
 

9.159 CIL will be used to fund such strategic infrastructure as: 
 
a. Strategic transport infrastructure 
b. Secondary education 
c. Post-16 education 
d. Special educational needs 
e. Library facilities 
f. Built sports facilities 
 

9.160 The proposal would be CIL liable and is located in the ‘Land at Warfield’ charging zone 
with a CIL rate of £220 (plus indexation) per square metre. 

 
10. CONCLUSIONS  

 
9.161 This proposed development is on an allocated site located within the defined 

settlement and therefore is acceptable in principle. The 43 dwellings, of which at least 
21% (9 dwellings) will be affordable, will contribute to the Council’s housing supply, which 
is a material consideration, and the delivery of SALP Policy SA9. 
 

9.162 A number of objections were received, and the report has addressed the matters 
raised. 

56



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

 
9.163 In terms of overall design, layout and character, subject to appropriate materials, the 

development is considered to meet planning policy objectives and is appropriate in the 
location, delivering housing that provides a sense of place and is sympathetic to the 
surroundings. 
 

9.164 The layout appropriately addresses fluvial flood zones to the north of the site near to 
The Cut, and drainage strategy for the site is considered to appropriately address surface 
drainage, so that there would be no increase in flood risk off-site. An off-site financial 
contribution towards the upgrading of off-site drainage infrastructure will provide net 
betterment and reduce the risk of flooding in the locality. 
 

9.165 Proposed vehicle access (with the exception of off-site lighting), connections for 
sustainable modes of transport and parking are acceptable to the Local Highway 
Authority subject to works being securing by condition and/or planning obligation. 
 

9.166 Off-site highway works are considered to strike the right balance in maintaining 
highway safety whilst minimising adverse impacts on the character of the area. 
 

9.167 Landscaping is considered to make the most of opportunities for tree and hedge 
planting and to provide visual softening of the development that will mature over time and 
provides habitat for biodiversity. 
 

9.168 The development is considered to have appropriately integrated existing trees into the 
layout and will utilise sensitive design solutions for creating pedestrian and cycle links in 
proximity to significant trees. 
 

9.169 The impacts of the proposal on the living conditions of the occupiers of nearby 
properties and the amenity of the occupiers of the proposed new homes have been 
considered and found to be acceptable. 
 

9.170 It is concluded that the proposed development makes a valuable contribution towards 
the borough’s housing supply without unacceptably compromising the character and 
appearance of the area, residential amenity or highway safety.  
 

9.171 The proposal delivers the remaining significant development parcel in this area, that is 
considered to accord with the planning policy objective for the comprehensive 
development of this part of the Warfield allocation at Newell Green, both in terms of 
design and infrastructure delivery, to the satisfaction of the Council. The application is 
therefore recommended for approval, subject to appropriate conditions and the 
completion of a Section 106 legal agreement to secure the provisions referred to in 
Section 9.xv.  

 
11. RECOMMENDATION 
 
11.1 Following the completion of planning obligations under Section 106 of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990 relating to:- 
 

57



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

• Measures to avoid and mitigate the impact of the residential development upon the 
Thames Basin Heaths SPA. 

• Affordable Housing: A minimum of 21% (9 dwellings) in accordance with table in 
section 9.xi. 

• Requirement to enter into s278 and s38 agreements for construction of access 
roads, footways, cycleways and subsequent adoption. 

• Highways provisions for Private Access and Footways (PAF) and maintenance. 
• Provision and maintenance of on-site open space. 
• Contribution towards off-site open space, towards, e.g. Warfield Memorial Ground or 

Priory Field. 
• On-site Biodiversity Net Gain maintenance obligations and monitoring fee. 
• Contribution towards off-site BNG units. 
• SuDS maintenance obligations and monitoring fee. 
• Residential Travel Plan measures. 
• Contribution towards Harvest Ride accessibility improvements. 
• Contribution towards Newell Green crossing. 
• Contribution towards Avery Lane access improvements. 
• Contribution towards the Warfield Community Hub. 
• Contribution towards off-site drainage improvement works. 
• S106 Obligation monitoring fees. 

 
11.2 That the Assistant Director: Planning be authorised to APPROVE the application 

subject to the following conditions amended, added to or deleted as the Assistant 
Director: Planning considers necessary: 

 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years 

from the date of this permission. 
REASON:  To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended). 

 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance with the 

following approved plans received by the Local Planning Authority:- 
 
- Location Plan – LP.01 Rev B 
- Coloured Site Layout – CSL.01 Rev Z13 
- Dwellings Materials Layout – ML.01 Rev L 
- Boundary Treatment Plan – BTP.01 Rev M 
- Apartment Floor Plans Sheet (1 of 2) – FB-A.p1 Rev L 
- Apartment Floor Plans and Roof Plan (Sheet 2 of 2) – FP-A.p2 Rev K 
- Apartment Block A Elevations – FB-A.e Rev L  
- Car Port (Single) – CP.01 Rev D  
- Car Port (Twin) – CP.02 Rev D  
- Amberley Floor Plans  - HT.AMB.p Rev E 
- Amberley Elevations – HT.AMB.e Rev G 
- Canterbury Floor Plans – HT.CANT.p Rev D 
- Canterbury Elevations – HT.CANT.e Rev D 

58



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

- Hampstead Floor Plans – HT.HAMP.P Rev E  
- Hampstead Elevations – HT.HAMP.e Rev E  
- Leamington Lifestyle Floor Plans – HT.LEAMQ.p Rev E  
- Leamington Lifestyle Elevations – Brick Option – HT.LEAMQ.e1 Rev D 
- Leamington Lifestyle Elevations – Render Option – HT.LEAMQ.e2 Rev D  
- Harrogate Elevations – Brick Option – REDR201013 HT.HARR.e1 Rev D  
- Harrogate Elevations – Render Option – REDR201013 HT.HARR.e2 Rev D  
- Harrogate Floor Plans – REDR201013 HT.HARR.p Rev D 
- Henley Floor Plans – HT.HEN:.p Rev C  
- Henley Elevations – HT.HENL.e Rev D  
- Highgate Floor Plans – HT.HIGH.p Rev D  
- Highgate Elevations – Brick Option – HT.HIGH.e1 Rev D  
- Highgate Elevations – Render Option – HT.HIGH.e2 Rev D  
- Stratford Floor Plans – HT.STRAT.p Rev E  
- Stratford Elevations – Brick Option – HT.STRAT.e1 Rev D  
- Stratford Elevations – Render Option – HT.STRAT.e2 Rev E  
- Shaftesbury Floor Plans – HT.SHAF.P Rev C  
- Shaftesbury Elevations – Render Option – HT.SHAF.e1 Rev D  
- Shaftesbury Elevations – Render Option with Chimney – HT.SHAF.e2 Rev D  
- Oxford Lifestyle Floor Plans – HT.OCFOQ.p Rev E  
- Oxford Lifestyle Elevations – HT.OXFOQ.e Rev E  
- Letchworth Floor Plans – HT.LETC.p Rev E  
- Letchworth Elevations – HT.LETC.e1 Rev E  
- Letchworth Elevations – HT.LETC.e2 Rev E  
- Warwick Floor Plans – HT.WARW.p Rev F  
- Warwick Elevations – HT.WARW.e Rev F  
- Warwick Corner Floor Plans – HT.WARW-CNR.p Rev D  
- Warwick Corner Elevations – HT.WARW-CNR.e Rev E 
- Plots 34-37 Floor Plans – P34-37.p Rev D  
- Plots 34-37 Elevations – P34-37.e Rev D  
- Fairford Elevations – HT.FAIR.e Rev A  
- Fairford Floor Plans – HT.FAIR.p Rev A  
- Flood Risk Assessment & Drainage Strategy – June 2023 [Issue 5] 
- Pluvial Modelling Study Update Technical Note – October 2023 [Issue 3] 
- Engineering Layout (Sheet 1 of 3) - 7734/02/01 Rev L 
- Engineering Layout (Sheet 2 of 3) - 7736/02/02 Rev F 
- Engineering Layout (Sheet 3 of 3) - 7736/02/03 Rev H 
- Soft Landscape Proposals – RED23091 11 L Sheet 1 of 3 
- Soft Landscape Proposals – RED23091 11 L Sheet 2 of 3 
- Soft Landscape Proposals – RED23091 11 L Sheet 3 of 3 
- Hard Landscape Proposals – RED23091 12 I Sheet 1 of 3  
- Hard Landscape Proposals – RED23091 12 I Sheet 2 of 3  
- Hard Landscape Proposals – RED23091 12 I Sheet 3 of 3  
- Soft Landscape Specification - RED23091 - Spec Rev A 
- Landscape Management and Maintenance Plan – RED23091 – Man Rev A 
- BNG Metric – Rev E 
- Ecological Impact Assessment – Rev G 
- Phasing Plan – WAR.PL.100 – September 2023 

59



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

 
REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out only as approved by the Local 
Planning Authority. 

 
Design 
3. No superstructure works shall be carried out until samples of the materials to be used in 

the construction of the external surfaces of the development hereby permitted have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  
REASON: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and in order to safeguard 
the special architectural and historic interest of the Listed Buildings and locally listed 
buildings. 
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN20, Core Strategy DPD CS7] 

 
4. The development hereby permitted shall not be begun until details showing the finished 

floor levels of the proposed buildings hereby approved in relation to fixed datum points 
showing the land levels across the site have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority and the development shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details. 
REASON: In the interests of the character of the area. 
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN20, Core Strategy DPD CS7] 

 
5. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order 
with or without modification) no additional windows shall be constructed at first floor level 
or above in the side elevations of the dwellings hereby permitted other than as shown on 
the approved drawings. REASON: To prevent the overlooking of neighbouring property. 
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN20] 

 
6. All boundary walls, fences and other means of enclosure shall be erected in accordance 

with the approved drawings. The approved details shall be erected prior to the occupation 
of the relevant dwelling and shall be retained thereafter in accordance with the approved 
details. Any repair or replacement of the boundary treatment shall be as a like for like 
replacement.  
REASON: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. 
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN20, Core Strategy DPD CS7] 

 
7. The following windows:- 

 - Plot 18: ground floor east facing 
hereby permitted shall not be glazed at any time other than with a minimum of Pilkington 
Level 3 obscure glass (or equivalent).  
REASON: To safeguard the amenities of adjoining properties. 
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN20] 
 

8. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that order 
with or without modification), no enlargement, addition, improvement or other alteration 

60



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

permitted by Classes A, B and C of Part 1 of the Second Schedule of the 2015 Order 
shall be carried out to Plot 18 hereby permitted. 
REASONS: To safeguard the character of the area and the amenity of adjoining 
properties. 
[Relevant Policies:  BFBLP EN20] 
 

Trees 
 
9. No development (including site clearance) shall be begun until the following details have 

been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:  
a. a comprehensive land (topographical) survey in accordance with Section 4 of British 

Standard 5837:2012 'Trees In Relation to Construction Recommendations' (or any 
subsequent revision) showing:  

i. Spot levels at the base of trees and throughout the site at an interval appropriate 
to meet design requirement, recorded as a grid and interpolated as contour, 
ensuring that any abrupt changes, embankments, ditch inverts and retaining 
features are recorded; and  

ii. The position of all trees within the site with a stem diameter of 75 mm. or more, 
measured at 1.5 metres above highest adjacent ground level; and  

iii. The position of trees with an estimated stem diameter of 75 mm. or more that 
overhang the site or are located beyond the site boundaries within a distance of 
up to 12 times their estimated stem diameter; and  

iv. For individual trees, the crown spread taken at four cardinal points; for woodlands 
or substantial tree group, the overall extent of the canopy; and  

v. The extent, basal ground levels and height of shrub masses, hedges, hedgerows 
and stumps; and  

vi. Other relevant landscape features and artefacts, such as streams, buildings and 
other structures, trenching scars near to trees; also any overhead and 
underground utility apparatus, including drainage runs with manholes and invert 
levels; and  

vii. Hard surfaced areas of any description; and  
viii. Existing boundary treatment and means of enclosure.  
b. Detailed works schedule for any trees, hedgerows or shrubbery shown.  
c. Details of any proposed alterations in existing ground levels, and of the position of 

any proposed excavation, within the crown spread of any retained tree or of any tree 
on land adjacent to the site.  

REASON: In order to assess the impact of the development upon existing vegetation, 
landform and other site landscape features.  
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN1 and EN20, CSDPD CS7] 

 
10. No development (including initial site-clearance) shall commence until a detailed scheme 

for the protection of existing trees to be retained (both on and off site) in accordance with 
British Standard 5837 (2012) ‘Trees In Relation To Construction Recommendations’ (or 
any subsequent revision), has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  Protection measures shall be phased as necessary to take into 
account and provide protection during demolition/site clearance works - all construction 

61



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

works - hard landscaping works.  Details shall include an approved development layout 
plan at a minimum scale of 1:200, showing the following:  

a. Accurate trunk positions and canopy spreads of all existing trees within the site and 
on adjoining land adjacent to the development within influencing distance of the 
development. 

b. Accurately plotted minimum ‘Root Protection Areas’ of retained trees calculated in 
accordance with BS 5837 (2012) recommendations (or any subsequent revision), 

c. All existing and retained soft landscaping areas located within the Minimum Root 
Protection Areas, clearly/ accurately plotted and annotated to be retained/ 
unaltered.  

d. Proposed location/s of 2m high (minimum) protective barrier/s, supported by a fixed 
fully braced metal framework, constructed as a minimum in accordance with 
Section 6, to include appropriate weatherproof tree protection area signage (such 
as “Keep Out - Construction Exclusion Zone”) securely fixed to the outside of the 
protective fencing structure at regular intervals. 

e. Illustration/s of the proposed protective barriers to be erected. 
f. Proposed location/s and illustration/s ground protection measures within the main 

root protection areas of retained trees, designed as necessary for pedestrian light 
traffic or heavy plant machinery, as necessary to prevent contamination and ground 
compaction.  

g. Annotated minimum distances between protective barriers and trunks of retained 
trees  and/or proximity to existing structures at regular intervals. 

h. All fenced off areas clearly annotated as Tree Protection Areas/Construction 
Exclusion Zones. 

i. Notes regarding restrictions which apply to Tree Protection Areas/Construction 
Exclusion Zones.  

Arboricultural site monitoring – note confirming that all protection measures are to be 
routinely monitored by site visits undertaken by a project arboriculturalist (appointed 
by the landowners), at maximum 4 week intervals for the duration of all works on site  
to ensure full compliance with the approved tree protection and monitoring scheme. 
Copy of the signed report to be forwarded to the Local Authority following each site 
visit.   
The development shall be carried out in full accordance with the approved scheme. 

REASON: - In order to safeguard trees and other vegetation considered to be worthy of 
retention in the interests of the visual amenity of the area. 

 
11. The protective fencing and other protection measures specified by condition 10 shall be 

erected in the locations agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of any development works, including any initial clearance, and shall be 
the correct approved structure/s, maintained fully intact and (in the case of the fencing/ 
barriers) upright, in its approved locations at all times, until the completion of all building 
operations on the site. Where phased protection measures have been approved, no 
works shall commence on the next phase of the development until the protective fencing 
barriers and other protective measures have been repositioned for that phase in full 
accordance with the approved details. No activity of any description must occur at any 
time within these areas including but not restricted to the following:  

a. No mixing of cement or any other materials. 

62



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

b. Storage or disposal of any soil, building materials, rubble, machinery, fuel, 
chemicals, liquids waste residues or materials/debris of any other description. 

c. Siting of any temporary structures of any description including site office/sales 
buildings, temporary car parking facilities, porta-loos, storage compounds or hard 
standing areas of any other description. 

d. Soil/turf stripping, raising/lowering of existing levels, excavation or alterations to the 
existing surfaces/ ground conditions of any other description. 

e. Installation/siting of any underground services, temporary or otherwise including; 
drainage, water, gas, electricity, telephone, television, external lighting or any 
associated ducting. 

f. Parking/use of tracked or wheeled machinery or vehicles of any description. 
g. No fires shall be lit within 20 metres of the trunks of any trees or the centre line of 

any hedgerow shown to be retained. 
h. No signs, cables, fixtures or fittings of any other description shall be attached to any 

part of any retained tree. 
REASON: - In order to safeguard trees and other vegetation considered to be worthy of 
retention in the interests of the visual amenity of the area. 

 
12. No development shall commence until a detailed site-specific construction design and 

installation method statement for the proposed paths located within the accurately 
calculated minimum Root Protection Area of retained Oak trees - survey ref. T7 (TPO 
1207) & T13, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  Details shall be based on a porous ‘No-Dig’ principle of construction, avoiding 
any excavation of existing levels in all areas concerned, and shall include: 

a. An approved development layout plan identifying all areas where special 
construction measures are to be undertaken. 

b. Materials including porous surface finish. 
c. Construction profile/s showing existing /proposed finished levels together with any 

grading of levels proposed adjacent to the footprint in each respective structure. 
d. Design specific implementation method statement including program of 

arboricultural supervision. 
The construction and installation method statement shall be implemented in full 
accordance with the approved scheme, under arboricultural supervision. The No Dig 
structure shall be retained in perpetuity thereafter. 
REASON: In order to alleviate any adverse impact on the root systems and the long-term 
health of retained trees, in the interests of the visual amenity of the area. 
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN1 and EN20, CSDPD CS7] 

 
13. No development shall take place until:  

i. details of all proposed alterations to the ground levels, including excavation works 
on site, within 5 metres of and including the minimum ‘Root Protection Areas’ 
calculated in accordance with BS 5837 (2012) recommendations (or any 
subsequent revision), for all existing retained trees within the site and on 
neighbouring land adjacent to the approved development.  Details shall include: 
a. Existing and proposed finished levels. 
b. Any proposed soil level re-grading in relation to existing retained trees, 

hedges and other vegetation. 

63



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

c. Proposed retaining structures required to address level differences adjacent to 
retained trees and hedges and other vegetation, and  

d. Clearance/ culverting of existing ditches or works related to the creation of 
new    balancing ponds/ basins as approved.     

ii. a programme and method of implementation have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.   
REASON: In the interests of safeguarding the long-term health and survival of retained 
trees, hedges and other vegetation considered worthy of retention. 

 
Landscaping 

 
14. No dwelling hereby approved shall be occupied until hard and soft landscaping works 

have been completed in full accordance with approved plans, and thereafter maintained 
in accordance with the approved management and maintenance plan.  
Any trees or other plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the 
development, die, are removed, uprooted, are significantly damaged, become diseased 
or deformed, shall be replaced during the next planting season (1st October to 31st March 
inclusive) with others of the same size, species and quality as approved. 
REASON: In the interests of good landscape design and the visual amenity of the area. 
[Relevant Policies, BFBLP EN2 and EN20, CSDPD CS7] 
 

15. No retained tree, hedgerow or group of shrubs specified as to be retained on the 
approved drawings shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed. 
Any trees, hedgerows or groups of shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plans 
which die, are removed or irreparably damaged during the course of the development, or 
within a period of 5 years of the completion of the development, shall be replaced with 
another tree, hedgerow or group of shrubs of the same species and size as that originally 
on site. 
REASON: In order to safeguard trees and other vegetation considered to be worthy of 
retention in the interests of the visual amenity of the area. 
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN1 and EN20, CSDPD CS7] 

 
Energy 
 
16. No structure hereby permitted shall be built above ground level until a Sustainability 

Statement covering water efficiency aimed at achieving an average water use in new 
dwellings of 110 litres/person/day, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the 
Sustainability Statement, as approved, and retained as such thereafter. 
REASON: In the interests of sustainability and the efficient use of resources.  
[Relevant Policy: CSDPD CS10 

 
17. The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with the 

submitted Energy Demand Assessment and the buildings constructed by the carrying out 
of the development shall be operated in accordance with the submitted Energy Demand 
Assessment.  
REASON: In the interests of sustainability and the efficient use of resources. 

64



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

[Relevant Policy: Core Strategy DPD CS12] 
 

Transport 
 
18. No dwelling in Phase 2 (reference the approved Phasing Plan) of the site hereby 

permitted shall be occupied until the following access works along Forest Road have 
been carried out, as indicatively shown on the submitted Site Layout Plan: 

a. access to the site; 
b. cycleway improvements towards the Three Legged Cross; 
c. footpath improvements across the site, including widening to 2m, to tie into the 

Forest Road footpath connection provided from near Plot 18; and 
d. street lighting at main access only. 

REASON: In the interests of accessibility and to facilitate access by cyclists and/or 
pedestrians.  
[Relevant Policies: BSP T1, BFBLP M6, Core Strategy DPD CS23] 

 
19. No more than 50% of dwellings to be completed in Phase 1 (reference the approved 

Phasing Plan) before the pedestrian link to Forest Road east of Plots 13 & 18 is 
constructed and publicly accessible. 
REASON: In the interests of facilitating access for pedestrians.  
[Relevant Policies: BSP T1, BFBLP M6, Core Strategy DPD CS23] 

 
20. The greenway link in Phase 2 is to be constructed and be publicly accessible prior to 

50% of dwelling completions in Phase 2, or before the greenway link in Phase 1 has 
been constructed and is publicly accessible, whichever is soon. 
REASON: In the interests of facilitating access for cyclists and pedestrians.  
[Relevant Policies: BSP T1, BFBLP M6, Core Strategy DPD CS23] 

 
21. The greenway link in Phase 1 and footpath connecting to the existing path west of Tree 

T7 is to be constructed and be publicly accessible prior to 50% of dwelling completions in 
Phase 1, or before the greenway link in Phase 2 has been constructed and is publicly 
accessible, whichever is soon. 
REASON: In the interests of facilitating access for cyclists and pedestrians.  
[Relevant Policies: BSP T1, BFBLP M6, Core Strategy DPD CS23] 
 

22. The greenway link shall not be publicly accessible before details for the fire engine 
access opposite Plot 23, including grasscrete and bollards, has been submitted and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority and provided and retained in accordance with 
the approved plans. 
REASON: In the interests of amenity and highway safety. 
[Relevant Policies: BSP T1, Core Strategy DPD CS23] 

 
23. No dwelling shall be occupied until that part of the access road which provides access to 

it, along with adjacent margins and street lighting, has been constructed in accordance 
with details to be submitted and approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
[Relevant Policies: BSP T1, Core Strategy DPD CS23] 

 

65



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

24. The car parking for the development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until 
the following details have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority: 

a. surface materials and markings; 
b. location and design of any lighting; 
c. pedestrian routes within car parking areas; 
d. the location of level car parking spaces for people with disabilities including details 

of marking out and signage; 
e. the location of visitor car parking spaces including details of marking out and 

signage; and 
f. location of electric charging points. 

Thereafter the parking areas shall be maintained in accordance with the approved 
scheme and be retained and kept available for parking at all times. There shall be no 
restrictions on the use of the car parking spaces shown as visitor parking for the 
occupiers of, or visitors to, any of the dwellings hereby permitted. 
REASON: In the interests of accessibility and to ensure that the development is provided 
with adequate car parking to prevent the likelihood of on-street car parking which would 
be a danger to other road users. 
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP M9, Core Strategy DPD CS23] 

 
25. No dwelling shall be occupied until the associated vehicle parking has been provided in 

accordance with the approved drawing. The spaces shall thereafter be kept available for 
parking at all times. 
REASON: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate car parking to 
prevent the likelihood of on-street car parking which would be a danger to other road 
users. 
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP M9, Core Strategy DPD CS23] 

 
26. The garages hereby permitted shall be retained for the use of the parking of motor 

vehicles at all times. 
REASON: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking in the 
interests of highway safety. 
[Relevant Policies:  BFBLP M9, Core Strategy DPD CS23] 

 
27. The car ports hereby approved shall be retained for the use of the parking of motor 

vehicles at all times and, notwithstanding the provisions of Part 1 Classes A and E of 
Schedule 2 of the Town and Country (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 
2015 (or any order revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without modification), no 
enlargements, improvements or alterations shall be made, and no gate or door shall be 
erected to the front. 
REASON: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking in the 
interests of highway safety. 
[Relevant Policies:  BFBLP M9, Core Strategy DPD CS23] 

 
28. No dwelling shall be occupied until a scheme for secure and covered cycle parking 

spaces has been submitted and approved by the Local Planning Authority and provided 
in accordance with the approved plans. The cycle parking facilities shall thereafter be 
retained. 

66



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

REASON: In the interests of accessibility of the development to cyclists. 
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP M9, Core Strategy DPD CS23]  

 
29. No building hereby permitted shall be occupied until a plan showing visibility splays has 

been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with approved details. The land within the 
visibility splays, shall be cleared of any obstruction exceeding 0.6 metres in height 
measured from the surface of the adjacent carriageway and shall thereafter be kept free 
of all obstructions to visibility over a height of 0.6 metres measured from the surface of 
the adjacent carriageway. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
[Relevant Policies: Core Strategy DPD CS23] 

 
30. No dwelling(s) shall be occupied until visibility splays of 2.0 metres by 2.0 metres have 

been provided at the junction of the relevant driveway and the adjacent footway.  The 
dimensions shall be measured along the edge of the drive and the back of the footway 
from their point of intersection. The visibility splays shall thereafter be kept free of all 
obstructions to visibility over a height of 0.6 metres measured from the surface of the 
carriageway. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
[Relevant Policies: Core Strategy DPD CS23] 

31. Notwithstanding landscaping details shown on the ‘Soft Landscape Proposals – 
RED23091 11 L Sheet 1 of 3’ plan, landscaping across the site frontage with Forest Road 
is to be adjusted where necessary, as part of the Section 278 agreement, so as not to 
obstruct visibility splays for properties on Forest Road. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
[Relevant Policies: Core Strategy DPD CS23] 

 
32. The gradient of private drives shall not exceed 1 in 12. 

REASON: To ensure that adequate access to parking spaces and garages is provided. 
[Relevant Policies: Core Strategy DPD CS23] 

 
33. No gates shall be provided on any vehicular route within the site.   

REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
[Relevant Policies: Core Strategy DPD CS23] 

 
Bins 

 
34. No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until bin storage and/or bin collection 

points serving it has been provided in accordance with the approved details.  The bin 
storage and bin collection points shall thereafter be retained. 
REASON: To ensure the provision of satisfactory waste collection facilities in the 
interests of amenity. 
[Relevant Policies: BWLP WLP6 and WLP9] 

 
Drainage / Flood risk 

 

67



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

35. No development shall take place until full details of the Drainage System have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These shall include:  

i. full details of all components of the proposed drainage system including 
dimensions, locations, gradients, invert and cover levels, headwall details, 
planting and drawings as appropriate;  

ii. detail to demonstrate that culverts are designed so that wildlife does not become 
trapped and are able to move between ponds and ditches. The design should 
avoid steep drops that could trap species such as newts; and 

iii. further details of the proposals for the proposed mitigation measures for 
managing surface water flood risk within the site. 

The approved details shall thereafter be complied with. 
REASON: To ensure that the site is properly drained and does not increase the risk of 
flooding in accordance with policy CS1 of the Core Strategy. 

 
36. No development shall commence until details of how the surface water drainage system 

(inclusive of flood mitigation measures) shall be maintained and managed after 
completion have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The details shall include confirmation of the required maintenance activities 
with expected frequency, with site specific assessments included to demonstrate that 
health and safety has been fully considered in the design and that access and egress for 
future residents will be maintained during any operations to repair or replace drainage 
features. The approved details shall thereafter be complied with. 
REASON: To ensure that the site is properly drained and does not increase the risk of 
flooding in accordance with policy CS1 of the Core Strategy. 

 
37. No dwelling shall be occupied until the sustainable drainage scheme for this site has 

been completed in accordance with the submitted details. The sustainable drainage 
scheme shall be managed and maintained thereafter in accordance with the agreed 
management and maintenance plan. Written confirmation of agreements for the 
management and maintenance of the drainage scheme shall be submitted and approved 
by the local planning authority. 
REASON: To ensure that the site is properly drained and does not increase the risk of 
flooding in accordance with policy CS1 of the Core Strategy. 

 
38. Prior to occupation of any property in each phase a verification report, appended with 

substantiating evidence demonstrating the agreed/approved construction details and 
specifications have been implemented, will need to be submitted and approved (in 
writing) by the Council. This will include photos of excavations and soil profiles/horizons, 
any placement of tanking, crating, connecting pipe work, hydrobrakes or control 
mechanisms, cover systems, etc. 

REASON: To ensure that the site is properly drained and does not increase the risk 
of flooding in accordance with policy CS1 of the Core Strategy. 

 
39. No dwelling shall be occupied until evidence of legal covenants associated with the 

deeds of properties relating to any aspects of a drainage system(s) that passes through 
privately owned property but serves multiple properties is submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority.  

68



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

REASON: To ensure that the site is properly drained and does not increase the risk of 
flooding in accordance with policy CS1 of the Core Strategy. 

 
40. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted flood risk 

assessment (FRA by Cole Easdon Consultants dated June 2023) and the following 
mitigation measure it details: 

- Finished floor levels shall be set no lower than 600mm above the 1%+35%CC flood 
level as shown in Drawing No 7736.501 dated March 2021 

These mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and 
subsequently in accordance with the scheme’s timing/phasing arrangements. The 
measures detailed above shall be retained and maintained thereafter throughout the 
lifetime of the development. 
REASON: To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future  
occupants. 

 
Construction management 

 
41. No demolition or construction work shall take place on any Phase or Sub-phase outside 

the hours of 08:00hrs and 18:00hrs Monday to Friday; 08:00hrs and 13:00hrs on 
Saturday and not at all on Sundays and Public Holidays. 
REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area. 
[Relevant Policies: SEP NRM10, BFBLP EN25] 

 
42. No development including demolition and site clearance shall commence until a detailed 

Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, which shall include as a minimum: 
i. Location of the access for demolition and construction vehicles; 
ii. Routing of construction and demolition traffic (including directional signage and 

appropriate traffic management measures); 
iii. Details of the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 
iv. Areas for loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
v. Areas for the storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development; 
vi. Location of any temporary portacabins and welfare buildings for site operatives; 
vii. Details of any security hoarding; 
viii. Details of any external lighting of the site; 
ix. Details of the method of piling for foundations; 
x. Measures to control the emission of dust, dirt, odour and other effluvia; 
xi. Measures to control noise (including noise from any piling and permitted working 

hours); 
xii. Measures to control rats and other vermin (particularly during site clearance); 
xiii. Measures to control surface water run-off during demolition and construction; 
xiv. Measures to control noise from delivery vehicles, and times when deliveries are 

accepted and when materials can be removed from the site; 
xv. Measures to prevent ground and water pollution from contaminants on-site; 
xvi. Construction and demolition working hours and hours during which delivery 

vehicles or vehicles taking materials away are allowed to enter or leave the site; 
xvii. Details of wheel-washing facilities during both demolition and construction phases; 

69



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

xviii. Measures to minimise, re-use and re-cycle materials and waste arising from 
demolition; 

xix. Measures to minimise the pollution potential of unavoidable waste; 
xx. Measures to dispose of unavoidable waste in an environmentally acceptable 

manner; 
xxi. Details of measures to mitigate the impact of demolition and construction activities 

on ecology, which should cover: 
a. risk assessment of potentially damaging development activities 
b. identification of "biodiversity protection zones". 
c. practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working practices) to 

avoid or reduce impacts during development (may be provided as a set of 
method statements). 

d. the location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity features 
e. the times during development when specialist ecologists need to be present on 

site to oversee works. 
f. responsible persons and lines of communication. 
g. the role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works or similarly 

competent person. 
h. the use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs. 

xxii. Details of a monitoring regime to demonstrate compliance with the CEMP including 
timings for reports to be submitted to the Local Planning Authority. 

The approved Construction Environmental Management Plan shall be adhered to 
throughout the demolition and construction period.  

REASON: To mitigate and control environmental effects during the demolition and 
construction phases. 
Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN20, EN25; Core Strategy DPD CS1, CS7 

 
Biodiversity 

 
43. A Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to, and 

approved in writing by, the local planning authority prior to the practical completion of the 
development. The content of the LEMP shall include the following: 

a. A final plan showing the type, quantity and location of biodiversity units to be 
delivered on site using UKHabs types. The plan should be substantially in 
accordance with the ‘Biodiversity Net Gain Plan – Proposed Habitats and Hedges’ 
(Drawing no. RED23091_BNG_REVE) and ‘Biodiversity Net Gain Plan – Proposed 
Rivers and Streams’ (Drawing no. RED23091_BNG_River_REVB) - Appendix 14 
and 15 within the Ecological Impact Assessment Rev G (ACD Environmental, 
12/06/2023) - as already submitted;  

b. A final Biodiversity Metric showing the calculations for the type, quantity and 
condition of habitats. The metric should be substantially in accordance with the 
Biodiversity Metric as already submitted; 

c. Ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management; 
d. Aims and objectives of management including biodiversity net gain target habitat 

types and condition; 
e. Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives; 
f. Prescriptions for management actions; 

70



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

g. Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of being 
rolled forward over a five-year period); 

h. Details of the body or organization responsible for implementation of the plan; and 
i. On-going monitoring and remedial measures. 

The LEMP shall also include details of the legal and funding mechanism(s) by which the 
long-term implementation of the plan will be secured by the developer with the 
management bodies responsible for its delivery.  The plan shall also set out (where the 
results from monitoring show that conservation aims and objectives of the LEMP are not 
being met) how contingencies and/or remedial action will be identified, agreed and 
implemented so that the development still delivers the predicted biodiversity net gain of 
the originally approved scheme as shown in the biodiversity metric. 
The approved plan will be implemented in accordance with the approved details. 
REASON: In the interests of nature conservation  
[Relevant Plans and Policies: CSDPD CS1] 

 
44. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the mitigation 

measures specified in the submitted Ecological Impact Assessment (12th August 2020), 
which shall thereafter be retained in accordance with the approved details. An ecological 
site inspection report confirming use/installation of the approved measures shall be 
submitted prior to practical completion of any dwelling hereby approved.  
REASON: In the interests of nature conservation. 
[Relevant Plans and Policies: Core Strategy DPD CS1, CS7] 

 
45. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until a scheme has been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for external site 
lighting, including details of lighting units and levels of illumination. No lighting other than 
domestic security or garden lighting installed in individual dwellings shall be provided at 
the site other than in accordance with the approved details.  The development shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved scheme. 
REASON: In the interests of the character of the area, biodiversity and safety of 
pedestrians. 
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN20 and EN25, Core Strategy DPD CS1 and CS7] 

 
46. No site clearance shall take place during the main bird-nesting period of 1st March to 31st 

August inclusive, unless in accordance with a scheme to minimise the impact on nesting 
birds which has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
REASON: In the interests of nature conservation. 

[Relevant Plans and Policies: BFBLP EN3, Core Strategy DPD CS1, CS7] 
 
47. If more than 2 years elapse between the previous reptile and bat surveys and the 

commencement date of works, an updated survey shall be carried out by a suitably 
qualified ecologist. A report confirming the results and implications of the assessment, 
including any revised mitigation measures, shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority before construction works commence on site. 

REASON: To ensure the status of reptiles and bats on site has not changed since the 
last survey. 
 

71



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

48. No development shall commence above ground level until a scheme for the provision of 
biodiversity enhancements (not mitigation), including a plan or drawing showing the 
location of these enhancements, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
local planning authority. An ecological site inspection report shall be submitted within 
three months of the first occupation. 

The development shall be implemented in accordance with the scheme. 
REASON: In the interests of nature conservation  
[Relevant Plans and Policies: CSDPD CS1, CS7] 
 

49. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) or any Order revoking and re-
enacting that order, no external lighting shall be installed on the site or affixed to any 
buildings on the site except in accordance with details set out in a lighting design strategy 
for biodiversity that has first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The strategy shall: 
a. identify those area/features on site that are particularly sensitive for bats and that are 

likely to cause disturbance in or around their breeding sites and resting places or 
along important routes used to access key areas of their territory, for example, for 
foraging; and 

b. show how and where external lighting will be installed (through the provision of 
appropriate lighting contour plans with vertical calculation planes and technical 
specifications) so that it can be clearly demonstrated that areas to be lit will not 
disturb or prevent bats using their territory or having access to their breeding sites 
and resting places. 

All external lighting shall be installed in accordance with the specifications and locations 
set out in the strategy, and these shall be maintained thereafter in accordance with the 
strategy. Under no circumstances should any other external lighting be installed without 
prior consent from the Local Planning Authority. 
REASON: In the interests of nature conservation  
[Relevant Plans and Policies: CSDPD CS1, CS7] 

 
Contamination 

 
50. An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment provided with the 

planning application, must be completed in accordance with a scheme to assess the 
nature and extent of any contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the 
site. The contents of the scheme are subject to the approval in writing of the Local 
Planning Authority. The investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken by 
competent persons and a written report of the findings must be produced. The written 
report is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The report of 
the findings must include:  

 
i. a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination;  
ii. an assessment of the potential risks to:  

a. human health,  
b. property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 

woodland and service lines and pipes,  
c. adjoining land,  

72



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

d. groundwaters and surface waters,  
e. ecological systems,  
f. archaeological sites and ancient monuments;  

iii. an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s). 
 
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency’s 
‘Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11’. 
REASON: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property 
and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely 
without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors. 

 
51. A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended 

use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and 
the natural and historical environment must be prepared, and is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be 
undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works 
and site management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify 
as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation 
to the intended use of the land after remediation. 
REASON: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property 
and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely 
without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors. 
 

52. The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its terms prior 
to the commencement of development (except for the demolition of the existing buildings) 
other than that required to carry out remediation. The Local Planning Authority must be 
given two weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme works.  
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a 
verification report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must 
be produced, and, is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 
REASON: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property 
and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely 
without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors. 
 

53. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved 
development that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing immediately 
to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be 
undertaken in accordance with the requirements of condition 50, and where remediation 
is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of condition 51, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local 
Planning Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved 
remediation scheme a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the 
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with condition 52. 
REASON: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property 

73



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely 
without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors. 
 

54. A monitoring and maintenance scheme, to include monitoring the long-term effectiveness 
of the proposed remediation over a period to be agreed with LPA, and the reports on the 
same must be prepared and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
The measures identified in that scheme must be complied with and completed, and when 
the remediation objectives have been achieved, reports that demonstrate the 
effectiveness of the monitoring and maintenance carried out must be produced, and 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority.  
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency’s 
‘Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11’.  
REASON: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property 
and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely 
without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors. 
 
Noise 
 

55. A noise impact assessment shall be carried out to determine the noise impact of the 
adjacent Electricity Distribution Site on the proposed dwellings of the development, 
hereby approved. The assessment and a scheme for protecting future occupants of the 
proposed development from noise shall be submitted for approval by the local planning 
authority prior to the commencement of works.  
The development shall not be occupied until the noise mitigation measures identified in 
the approved scheme have been fully implemented. The noise mitigation measures shall 
be retained and maintained thereafter. 
REASON: To protect future occupants from noise from the electricity distribution site. 
 

Archaeology 
 

56. No development shall take place until the applicant or their agents or successors in title 
have secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work (which may 
comprise more than one phase of work) in accordance with a written scheme of 
investigation, which has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority. The development shall only take place in accordance with the 
detailed scheme approved pursuant to this condition. 
REASON: The site lies in an area of archaeological potential. The potential impacts on 
the buried archaeological heritage can be mitigated by a programme of archaeological 
work so as to record and advance understanding of any heritage assets in accordance 
with national and local planning policy. 

 
Sewerage  

 
57. No development shall commence until either:  

a. confirmation has been provided to the Local Planning Authority from the sewerage 
undertaker that sufficient capacity within the sewerage infrastructure exists to serve 
the development; or 

74



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

b. confirmation has been provided to the Local Planning Authority from the sewerage 
undertaker that a scheme will be implemented for the improvement of the existing 
sewerage system by the sewerage undertaker to ensure that sufficient capacity is 
provided to serve the development. No dwelling shall be occupied until the scheme 
for improvement of the existing sewerage system has been completed in full as 
approved.  

REASON: To ensure that the development is adequately served by sewerage 
infrastructure. 

Informative(s) 
 

1. The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 
application by identifying matters of concern within the application (as originally 
submitted) and negotiating, with the Applicant, acceptable amendments to the 
proposal to address those concerns. As a result, the Local Planning Authority has 
been able to grant planning permission for an acceptable proposal, in accordance 
with the presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
2. The Highways and Transport Section should be contacted at Time Square, Market 

Street, Bracknell, RG12 1JD, telephone 01344 352000 or via email at 
Highways.Transport@bracknell-forest.gov.uk, to agree the access construction 
details and to grant a licence before any work is carried out within the highway.  A 
formal application should be made allowing at least 12 weeks prior to when works are 
required to allow for processing of the application, agreement of the details and 
securing the appropriate agreements and licences to undertake the work.  Any work 
carried out on the public highway without proper consent from the Highway Authority 
could be subject to prosecution and fines related to the extent of work carried out. 

 
3. Notwithstanding the wording of Bracknell Forest Council's Parking Standards SPD, 

the Building Regulations part S "Infrastructure for the charging of electric vehicles" 
2021 edition takes effect on 15 June 2022 for use in England. It does not apply to 
work subject to a building notice, full plans applications or initial notices submitted 
before that date, provided the work is started on site before 15 June 2023. The 
applicant should familiarise themselves with, and comply with, the requirements of 
this document with regard to provision of electric vehicle charging infrastructure. 

 
4. Trees on and adjacent to this site are protected by a confirmed Tree Preservation 

Order. Damage to any protected trees on and/ or adjacent to the site as a result of 
non-compliance may be subject planning enforcement action and also separate legal 
action under the Tree Preservation Order legislation.     

 
5. Under the terms of the Land Drainage Act 1991 and the Floods and Water 

Management Act 2010, the prior consent of the LLFA is required for any proposed 
works or structures, in the watercourses. 

 
 

75



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

In the event of the s106 planning obligations not being completed by 15.04.2024 the 
Assistant Director: Planning be authorised to either extend the deadline or REFUSE the 
application for the following reasons:   
 
1. The occupants of the development would put extra pressure on the Thames Basin 

Heaths Special Protection Area and the proposal would not satisfactorily mitigate its 
impacts in this respect.  In the absence of a planning obligation to secure suitable 
avoidance and mitigation measures and access management monitoring arrangements, 
in terms that are satisfactory to the Local Planning Authority, the proposal would be 
contrary to Policy NRM6 of the South East Plan, Policy EN3 of the Bracknell Forest 
Borough Local Plan, Policies CS5 and CS14 of the Core Strategy Development Plan 
Document, Policy SA9 of the Site Allocations Local Plan, the Thames Basin Heaths 
Special Protection Area Avoidance and Mitigation Supplementary Planning Document 
(2012) and the Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (2015). 

 
2. In the absence of a planning obligation to secure affordable housing in terms that are 

satisfactory to the Local Planning Authority, the proposal is contrary to Policy H8 of the 
Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan, Policies CS16 and CS17 of the Core Strategy 
Development Plan Document, the Planning Obligations SPD and the resolution on 
affordable housing made by BFC Executive on 29 March 2011. 

 
3. The proposed development would unacceptably increase the pressure on highways and 

transportation infrastructure, public open space and community facilities. In the absence 
of a planning obligation in terms that are satisfactory to the Local Planning Authority, and 
which secure contributions towards integrated transport and highway safety measures, a 
travel plan, open space and community facilities, the proposal is contrary to Policies R5 
and M4 of the Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan, Policies CS6, CS8, and CS24 of the 
Core Strategy Development Plan Document, Policy SA9 of the Site Allocations Local 
Plan, the Warfield Supplementary Planning Document (2012) and the Planning 
Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (2015). 

 
4. In the absence of a planning obligation to secure a biodiversity net gain which would 

deliver measurable improvements for biodiversity by creating or enhancing habitats in 
association with the development the proposal is contrary to paras 8c and 170d of the 
NPPF. 

 
5. It has not been demonstrated that the proposed development would incorporate a 

sustainable drainage system (SuDS) for the management of surface water run-off which 
would be maintained for the lifetime of the development. This is contrary to the House of 
Commons: Written Statement (HCWS161) Sustainable Drainage Systems 18/12/2014, 
the Flood Risk and Coastal Change PPG updated 15/04/2015, and the NPPF. 

  

76



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

Appendix 1 – Drainage Non-Technical Note 

77



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

1 
 

 

L a n d  S o u t h  o f  F o r e s t  R o a d ,  W a r f i e l d  
 
D r a i n a g e  N o n - T e c h n i c a l  N o t e  
O c t o b e r  2 0 2 3  

 

Drainage Overview 

The proposed development site is designed to attenuate surface water flows generated 
from the development for all storm events up to and including the 100year + 40% climate 
change event. The development incorporates mitigation measures to reduce flood risk 
and ensure safety of the people and properties within the site and surrounding land. 

Attenuation is provided in the form of an open pond (located within the central open 
space) which serves the southern section of the site, whilst permeable paving is used in 
the northern section.   

Discharge rates are restricted to 5.6l/s from the northern area and 3.4l/s from the 
southern area. This represents a minimum of 70% reduction in drainage runoff flows from 
the site when compared to existing run of flows, which can only enhance drainage on 
land directly surrounding the site. In further detail the runoff is actually reduced by  72% 
(in the 1yr event), 89% (in the 30yr event) and 91% (in the 100yr CC event). 

The drainage outfalls are into the existing drainage ditch which runs along the western 
side of the development site and discharges into the existing 225mm sewer in Forest 
Road. This is the same sewer into which the current site connects at an unrestricted 
discharge rate. 

The development proposals also include the replacement of an existing culvert which is 
in a poor condition and the opening up of an existing ditchline in the northern region of 
the development. Redrow are currently in discussions with the Council to allow these 
works to take place at the earliest possible opportunity (prior to the implementation of 
the proposed development). These works create additional storage within the upstream 
catchment and will benefit the local catchment. Once the ditch  has been cleared it will 
be regularly maintained as part of the wider site’s landscape and SuDs maintenance 
regime. 

Exceedance routes are indicated on drawing 7736-501 Rev L (Appendix 1) and direct 
exceedance flows to open space, parking areas and the existing/proposed western 
ditchline. 

Further exceedance measures are in place to ensure overland flow from outside of the 
development area does not affect the development or the developments neighbouring 
properties. A shallow 300mm deep ditchline is provided along the sites southern 
boundary transferring flows to the existing ditch to the west. A second 150mm deep 
shallow ditchline is provided along the sites eastern boundary, this falls to the north 
transferring flows towards Forest Road. These ditchlines are located within the site 
boundary and will have no effect on neighbouring property boundary levels. They also 
will intercept any flow from the development gardens, falling towards the boundary. The 

79



 
 

2 
 

operation of these shallow ditchlines is not limited to extreme events and they therefore 
provide land drainage benefits in the area for all rainfall events if required. Detailed 
sections are provided for these ditchlines which can be found in Appendix 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Example of 300m and 150mm ditchline (to be amended to suit required detpths). 

 

In addition to the on site drainage solutions, Redrow have agreed to pay a financial 
contribution towards off site drainage works which will increase drainage downstream 
from the site. This is not a statutory requirement and has been agreed in good will, to 
assist with overcoming the drainage issues in the local area. 

Drainage Maintenance 

Where ditchlines are located in private gardens they will be maintained by the private 
households under their riparian duties. These riparian duties will be set out within the 
property handover details, which must be read and understood by the purchaser prior to 
the transfer of the home. 

Where the ditch is in open space, the site management company will carry out any 
clearance work.  

Where the ditch cuts through boundaries of rear gardens, close board fencing will be 
placed over the ditch, having no effect on the drainage flow routes. In response to 
concerns raised regarding the potential for residents dogs to escape under the 150mm 
and 300mm ditchline, metal sheep fencing can be located under the fence line. This will 
provide protection from animals escaping and again will have no effect on the flow routes. 

All hedgehog highways will be located in appropriate locations outside of the ditchlines.  

 

 

 

80



 
 

3 
 

Site Levels  

 

All boundary levels around the site tie into existing levels as per the examples below. 
Detailed drawings are provided in Appendix 2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Extracts showing example existing and proposed ground levels tying into existing on the site boundary 

 
 Where existing trees are located on site the existing levels will be maintained. 
 
An earth bund is provided in the north western section of the site between the open ditch 
and the Spice Lounge Restaurant. This will ensure any flows form the site drainage 
system are directed to the existing Forest Road outfalls and The Cut watercourse. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Eastern site boundary 

81



 
 

4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

A p p e n d i x  1   
P r o p o s e d  D r a i n a g e  S t r a t e g y  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

82



N

O

 

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

E

N

T

E

R S1

S100

S101

S102

S103

S2

S3

S4

F

O

R

E

S

T

R

O

A

D

F

O

R

E

S

T

R

O

A

D

V

A

L

E

T

Z

O

N

E

C

A

R

W

A

S

H

C

A

F

E

WARFIELD M.O.T. &

SERVICE CENTRE

No. 6

BRICK

HOUSE

BRICK

HOUSE

BRICK

HOUSE

BRICK

HOUSE

BRICK

HOUSE

BRICK

HOUSE

BRICK

HOUSE

SPICE

LOUNGE

BRICK

HOUSE

Outflow restricted

via 30mm orifice

plate

Outflow

restricted via

30mm orifice

plate

Outflow

restricted via

30mm orifice

plate

Outflow restricted

via 30mm orifice

plate

Outflow

restricted via

30mm orifice

plate

Outflow restricted

via Hydrobrake to

5.6 l/s

POND BASE LEVEL - 54.50

MIN TOP OF BANK LEVEL - 55.80

1 in 100 YR + 40% CC WATER LEVEL -

55.479 (0.979m DEPTH)

OUTFLOW

RESTRICTED TO

3.4L/S VIA

HYDROBRAKE

Outflow restricted

via 30mm orifice

plate

P

P

1

B

a

s

e

 

L

e

v

e

l
 

-

 

5

7

.

1

0

M

i

n

 

s

u

b

-

b

a

s

e

 

d

e

p

t

h

-

 

3

5

0

m

m

P

P

2

B

a

s

e

 

L

e

v

e

l

 

-

 

5

5

.

7

5

M

i

n

 

s

u

b

-

b

a

s

e

 

d

e

p

t

h

-

 

3

7

0

m

m

PP6

Base Level - TBC

Min sub-base depth

- 400mm

P
P

7

B
a
s
e
 
L
e
v
e
l
 
-
 
5
2
.
3
0

M
i
n
 
s
u
b
-
b
a
s
e
 
d
e
p
t
h

-
 
4
0
0
m

m

PP5

Base Level - 53.60

Min sub-base depth

- 570mm

P

P

7

B

a

s

e

 

L

e

v

e

l

 

-

 

5

2

.

4

0

M

i

n

 

s

u

b

-

b

a

s

e

 

d

e

p

t

h

-

 

4

0

0

m

m

PP4

Base Level - 53.60

Min sub-base depth

- 530mm

P

P

3

B

a
s
e
 L

e
v
e
l -

 5
5
.3

0

M

in
 s

u
b
-
b
a
s
e
 d

e
p
th

-
 3

5
0
m

m

N

O

 

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

E

N

T

E

R

S1

S100

S101

S102

S103

S2

S3

S4

F

O

R

E

S

T

R

O

A

D

F

O

R

E

S

T

R

O

A

D

V

A

L

E

T

Z

O

N

E

C

A

R

W

A

S

H

C

A

F

E

WARFIELD M.O.T. &

SERVICE CENTRE

No. 6

BRICK

HOUSE

BRICK

HOUSE

BRICK

HOUSE

BRICK

HOUSE

BRICK

HOUSE

BRICK

HOUSE

BRICK

HOUSE

SPICE

LOUNGE

BRICK

HOUSE

Outflow restricted

via 30mm orifice

plate

Outflow

restricted via

30mm orifice

plate

Outflow

restricted via

30mm orifice

plate

Outflow restricted

via 30mm orifice

plate

Outflow

restricted via

30mm orifice

plate

Outflow restricted

via Hydrobrake to

5.6 l/s

POND BASE LEVEL - 54.50

MIN TOP OF BANK LEVEL - 55.80

1 in 100 YR + 40% CC WATER LEVEL -

55.479 (0.979m DEPTH)

OUTFLOW

RESTRICTED TO

3.4L/S VIA

HYDROBRAKE

Outflow restricted

via 30mm orifice

plate

P

P

1

B

a

s

e

 

L

e

v

e

l
 

-

 

5

7

.

1

0

M

i
n

 

s

u

b

-

b

a

s

e

 

d

e

p

t

h

-

 

3

5

0

m

m

P

P

2

B

a

s

e

 

L

e

v

e

l

 

-

 

5

5

.

7

5

M

i

n

 

s

u

b

-

b

a

s

e

 

d

e

p

t

h

-

 

3

7

0

m

m

PP6

Base Level - TBC

M
in sub-base depth

- 400m
m

P
P

7

B
a
s
e
 
L
e
v
e
l
 
-
 
5
2
.
3
0

M
i
n
 
s
u
b
-
b
a
s
e
 
d
e
p
t
h

-
 
4
0
0
m

m

PP5

Base Level - 53.60

M
in sub-base depth

- 570m
m

P

P

7

B

a

s

e

 

L

e

v

e

l

 

-

 

5

2

.

4

0

M

i

n

 

s

u

b

-

b

a

s

e

 

d

e

p

t

h

-

 

4

0

0

m

m

PP4

Base Level - 53.60

M
in sub-base depth

- 530m
m

P

P

3

B

a
s
e
 
L
e
v
e
l 
-
 
5
5
.
3
0

M

in
 
s
u
b
-
b
a
s
e
 
d
e
p
t
h

-
 
3
5
0
m

m

FFL

54.90

FFL

54.50

F

F

L

5

7

.

3

0

F

F

L

5

7

.

3

0

F

F

L

5

7

.

5

0

F

F

L

5

7

.

6

0

F

F

L

5

8

.

0

0

F

F

L

5

7

.

6

0

F

F

L

5

7

.

6

0

F

F

L

5

7

.

0

0

F

F

L

5

7

.

2

0

F

F

L

5

6

.

6

0

F

F

L

5

6

.

9

5

F

F

L

5

6

.

9

5

F

F

L

5

6

.

2

5

F

F

L

5

6

.

2

0

F

F

L

5

6

.

2

5

F

F

L

5

6

.

5

0

F

F

L

5

6

.

5

0

F
F

L

56.20

F
F

L

55.90

F
F

L

54.70

FFL

54.45

FFL

54.20

F

F

L

5

3

.

7

5

FFL

54.20

F

F

L

5

3

.

5

0

F

F

L

5

7

.

2

0

F

F

L

5

7

.

2

0

F

F

L

5

7

.

0

7

5

F

F

L

5

7

.

0

7

5

F

F

L

5

7

.

1

7

5

F

F

L

5

7

.

3

7

5

F

F

L

5

7

.

3

7

5

F

F

L

5

7

.

6

0

F

F

L

5

7

.

0

2

5

F

F

L

5

6

.

8

7

5

F

F

L

5

6

.

8

2

5

F

F

L

5

6

.

0

7

5

FFL

54.775

F
F

L

54.325

FFL

54.20

FFL

54.20

FFL

54.10

F

F

L

5

3

.

5

5

F

F

L

5

3

.

5

0

F

F

L

5

3

.

5

0

F

F

L

5

4

.

0

0

F

F

L

5

6

.

4

7

5

F

F

L

5

6

.

3

7

5

F
F

L

54.70

F

F

L

5

3

.

4

2

5

FFL

53.975

FFL

53.70

FFL

53.70

FFL

53.70

FFL

54.075

SHAF

E

C

WO
W

E

HARR

W
O

C
W

STRA

E

W
WO

WO
C WOLETC

C WO
W

E

LETC
CWO W

E

E

HA
RR

W
O C

W
W

E

HA
RR

W
O

C
LE

TC
C

W
O

W

E

LE
TC

C
W

O
W

E

OXFOQ W

E

WO
C

W

E

HARR
WO

C

HAM
P

W
O

W
O

E

WC

HIG
5

E W

C

W
O

HIG
5

E W

C

W
O

LETC
C W

O

W
E

LETC

C
W

O

W

E

O
XFO

Q

W
E

W
OC

STRA

E

W

WO

WO
C

WO

STRA

E

W

WO

WO
C

WO
E

W
C

WARW

WO

WO

W C
W

O

AM
BY

E

Bike
Store

Bin
Store

Flat Block A

O
v
e
r
 
1
m

²

o
p
e
n
i
n
g

V

V

Ø
Ø

Ø
Ø

Ø

Ø

V

R

C

P

VV

3

m

 

a

d

o

p

t

e

d

 

f

o

o

t

w

a

y

 

/

 

c

y

c

l
e

w

a

y

PLOTS 34-37

V

WO

WO
rvt

WO
rvt

W
O

rv
t

W
O

rv
t

rvt
WO

R

W

0

.

1

5

R

W

0

.
7

5

2

.

4

m

 

x

 

4

3

m

 

V

i

s

i

b

i

l

i

t

y

 

S

p

l

a

y

2

.

4

m

 

x

 

4

3

m

 

V

i

s

i

b

i

l

i

t

y

 

S

p

l

a

y

LEAM
Q

W

E
C

W
O

LEAM
Q

W

E
C W

O

SHAF

E

C
WO

W

SHAF

E

C

W
O

W

STRA

E

W

WO

WO
C

WO

SHAF

EW

C

WO

HAMP

WO
WO

E

W
C

HIG5

E

W

C

WO

FAIR

WO

E

WO

C

W

HENL

W

C

E

WO

HI
G

5

E

W

C

W
O

CANT

WOWC
E

E

W
C

W
A

RW
W

O
W

O

rvt

Client

Job Title

Drawing Title

ScaleDate

Drg. No.

C Copyright

Rev.

Drawn by: Checked by:Designed by:

COLE EASDON

CONSULTANTS

FOR PLANNING FOR TENDER FOR APPROVAL FOR CONSTRUCTION AS BUILT

Drawing Status:

FOR COMMENT

**CONSTRUCTION AT CLIENT / CONTRACTOR RISK**

UNIT 2 YORK HOUSE

EDISON PARK

DORCAN WAY

SWINDON

WILTSHIRE

SN3 3RB

T: 01793 619965

E: cec@ColeEasdon.com

www.ColeEasdon.com

REDROW HOMES LIMITED

PARCEL 13A

FOREST ROAD

WARFIELD

BRACKNELL

PROPOSED DRAINAGE STRATEGY 

CEC NP RB

March 2021 As shown @A1

7736/501 L

0 10m 20m 30m 40m 50m

Scale 1:500

0 100m20m 40m 60m 80m

Scale 1:1000

83

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED STORM WATER DRAIN / PIPED DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
%%uKEY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
PROPOSED FINISHED FLOOR LEVELS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
APPLICATION BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
TANKED PERMEABLE PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
PROPOSED FOUL WATER DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
FFL 57.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
EXISTING GROUND LEVELS

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
+55.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
EXCEEDANCE/OVERLAND FLOW ROUTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
PROPOSED CULVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
SURFACE WATER ATTENUATION BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
PROPOSED CONTOURS

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
PARAPET 54.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
TEL2

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
PETROL PUMPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
METAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
WOODEN PANEL  FENCING  HT 1.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
THL

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
THL

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
THL

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
FL

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
RIDGE 59.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
RUBBLE AND DEBRIS MOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
NO DEFINED BOUNDARY IN THIS AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
G 1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
HT 10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
G 1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
HT 10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
G 3x0.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
HT 5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
G 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
G 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
G 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
G 0.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
G 0.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
G 0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
BUSH

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
HT 3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
BUSH

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
HT 2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
BUSH

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
HT 3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
53.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
TELEGRAPH WIRE LOW POINT 56.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
52.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
52.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
52.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
52.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
52.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
53.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
53.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
57.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
57.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
57.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
53.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
53.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
53.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
53.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
52.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
52.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
52.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
52.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
52.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
53.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
53.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
52.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
52.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
52.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
52.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
52.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
52.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
SAPLING

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
SAPLING

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
SAPLING

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
SC

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
MW

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
53.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
52.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
52.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
52.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
52.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
53.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
52.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
53.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
53.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
53.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
52.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
52.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
52.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
52.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
52.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
52.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
53.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
53.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
53.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
53.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
52.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
53.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
52.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
53.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
53.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
53.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
53.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
53.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
53.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
53.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
53.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
53.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
53.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
53.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
53.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
57.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
SOFFIT 57.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
SOFFIT 56.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
EAVES 57.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
RIDGE 59.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
52.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
53.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
53.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
53.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
53.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
53.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
DCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
RIDGE 55.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
EAVES 54.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
BRICK WALL HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
52.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
52.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
52.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
C/B FENCE HT 1.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
52.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
52.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
52.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
52.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
52.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
53.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
52.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
52.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
52.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
52.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
52.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
52.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
52.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
52.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
52.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
52.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
53.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
52.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
PARAPET 58.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
PARAPET 61.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
BRAMBLES AVERAGE HT 2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
C/B FENCE  HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
53.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
53.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
53.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
53.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
53.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
53.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
53.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
52.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
52.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
53.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
53.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
53.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
53.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
CONTAINER

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
53.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
53.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
DCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
53.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
53.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
C/B FENCE HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
APPROXIMATE EXTENTS OF TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
C/B FENCE  HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
C/B FENCE  HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
C/B FENCE REMAINS HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
53.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
C/B FENCE HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
53.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
53.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
DENSE BRAMBLES AVERAGE HT 3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
PLASTIC  PANELS

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
52.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
52.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
52.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
CONC PLINTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
DCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
53.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
53.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
53.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
52.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
52.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
52.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
52.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
52.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
52.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
52.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
52.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
53.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
52.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
52.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
52.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
52.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
52.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
52.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
52.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
52.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
52.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
52.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
53.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
52.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
52.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
52.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
52.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
52.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
52.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
52.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
52.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
MIXED HEDGE  AVERAGE HT 3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
52.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
52.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
52.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
52.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
52.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
52.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
RIDGE 61.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
RIDGE 58.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
RIDGE 60.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
EAVES 58.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
53.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
53.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
53.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
53.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
53.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
C/B FENCE HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
53.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
53.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
52.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
RIDGE 60.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
EAVES 58.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
53.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
53.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
53.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
53.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
53.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
53.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
53.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
53.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
BRICK WALL HT 0.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
53.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
53.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
53.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
53.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
RIDGE 60.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
EAVES 58.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
DCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
53.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
53.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
53.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
53.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
53.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
53.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
53.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
DCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
DECKING

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
53.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
53.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
53.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
53.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
53.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
BOLLARDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
DCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
G 2.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
HT 15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
G 1.9

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
HT 14m

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
G 2.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
HT 14m

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
G 1.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
HT 12m

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
G 2.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
HT 15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
G 2.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
HT 17m

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
MG 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
HT 6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
MG 0.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
G 0.9

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
MG 0.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
HT 9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
G 0.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
HT 6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
DEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
G 0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
HT 5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
G 0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
HT 5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
G 1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
HT 6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
G 1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
HT 10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
MG 0.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
HT 4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
G 3x0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
HT 5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
G 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
HT 5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
G 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
HT 6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
MG 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
HT 6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
G 0.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
G 0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
HT 8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
G 1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
HT 14m

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
MIXED HEDGE  AVERAGE HT 4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
MIXED HEDGE  AVERAGE HT 4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
RIDGE 65.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
EAVES 62.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
RIDGE 64.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
EAVES 62.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
EAVES 62.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
RIDGE 65.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
RIDGE 65.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
EAVES 62.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
EAVES 61.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
RIDGE 64.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
RIDGE 67.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
EAVES 63.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
EAVES 64.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
EAVES 61.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
RIDGE 67.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
RIDGE 68.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
53.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
53.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
53.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
C/B FENCE  HT 2.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
53.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
53.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
53.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
53.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
53.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
SHELTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
53.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
P/R FENCE REMAINS HT 1.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
53.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
53.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
RAISED CONCRETE EDGING

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
53.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
53.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
C/B FENCE HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
53.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
TILES

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
53.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
53.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
BRICK RETAINING WALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
53.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
53.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
52.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
52.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
BRICK WALL HT 1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
RIDGE 56.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
SHELTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
OFFSITE CONIFER ROOTLINE AVERAGE HT 9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
RIDGE 58.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
G 2x0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
HT 10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
G 1.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
HT 12m

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
G 1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
HT 10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
G 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
HT 6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
G 4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
HT 15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
G 0.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
HT 5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
G 0.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
G 4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
HT 18m

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
53.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
53.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
53.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
54.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
54.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
54.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
HERAS FENCE HT 2.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
P/R FENCE REMAINS HT 1.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
57.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
56.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
57.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
57.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
56.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
57.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
57.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
P/R FENCE HT 1.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
57.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
57.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
57.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
CONC WALL HT 0.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
I/R FENCE HT 2.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
58.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
OFFSITE CONIFER ROOTLINE AVERAGE HT 4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
OFFSITE CONIFER  ROOTLINE AVERAGE HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
C/B FENCE HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
C/B FENCE HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
C/B FENCE HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
54.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
54.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
54.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
54.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
55.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
55.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
56.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
56.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
57.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
58.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
58.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
C/B FENCE HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
B/W FENCE REMAINS HT 1.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
54.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
54.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
54.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
54.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
54.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
54.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
C/B FENCE HT 1.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
54.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
RIDGE 62.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
EAVES 58.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
RIDGE 60.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
EAVES 58.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
57.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
57.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
57.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
56.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
56.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
55.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
55.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
54.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
54.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
55.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
55.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
55.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
55.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
56.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
56.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
56.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
57.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
57.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
57.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
56.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
56.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
56.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
55.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
55.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
55.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
55.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
54.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
54.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
54.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
54.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
54.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
54.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
54.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
54.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
54.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
55.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
55.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
55.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
55.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
55.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
56.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
56.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
56.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
56.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
56.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
56.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
56.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
56.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
55.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
55.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
55.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
55.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
54.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
54.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
54.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
54.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
53.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
53.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
54.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
54.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
54.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
54.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
54.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
54.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
53.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
54.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
54.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
54.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
54.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
54.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
54.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
55.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
54.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
54.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
54.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
53.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
53.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
54.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
54.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
54.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
54.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
54.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
55.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
55.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
55.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
55.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
55.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
56.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
56.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
56.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
56.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
54.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
DENSE BRAMBLES AVERAGE HT 2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
DENSE BRAMBLES AVERAGE HT 1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
DENSE BRAMBLES AVERAGE HT 3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
DENSE BRAMBLES AVERAGE HT 3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
DENSE BRAMBLES AVERAGE HT 2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
DENSE BRAMBLES AVERAGE HT 2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
DENSE BRAMBLES AVERAGE HT 2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
56.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
56.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
57.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
57.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
57.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
57.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
57.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
57.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
HAWTHORN TREES AVERAGE HT 4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
57.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
57.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
56.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
56.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
56.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
55.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
55.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
55.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
55.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
55.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
55.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
55.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
55.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
54.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
54.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
54.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
54.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
54.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
54.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
53.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
54.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
54.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
53.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
53.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
53.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
53.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
DCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
PARAPET 61.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
PARAPET 55.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
PARAPET 54.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
PARAPET 58.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
PARAPET 61.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
PARAPET 56.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
RIDGE 59.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
EAVES 57.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
EAVES 55.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
BRICK WALL HT 1.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
52.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
52.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
52.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
52.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
52.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
52.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
52.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
52.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
52.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
52.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
52.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
53.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
52.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
52.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
52.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
52.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
52.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
53.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
POs

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
C/B FENCE REMAINS HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
53.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
53.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
53.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
53.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
PORTACABIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
53.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
52.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
52.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
53.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
53.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
53.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
53.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
53.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
52.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
52.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
52.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
53.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
53.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
53.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
53.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
54.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
54.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
54.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
53.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
MANHOLE UNDER DECKING

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
FOOTPATH (TARMAC)

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
FOOTPATH (TARMAC)

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
53.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
RIDGE 56.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
EAVES 55.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
ROOF  56.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
EAVES 54.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
MIXED HEDGE AVERAGE HT 3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
53.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
GATES

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
TRELLIS  HT 1.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
UNABLE TO SURVEY FENCE IN THIS AREA DUE TO DEBRIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
DEBRIS MOUND IN THIS AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
MULTIPLE PARKED CARS IN THIS AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
MULTIPLE PARKED CARS IN THIS AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
APPROXIMATE EXTENTS OF CANOPIES

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
CONSERVATORY

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
C/B FENCE  HT 2.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
55.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
55.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
55.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
55.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
56.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
56.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
56.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
56.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
56.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
55.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
54.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
54.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
54.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
54.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
54.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
54.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
54.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
53.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
TOW 54.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
54.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
54.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
55.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
SETTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
54.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
FOOTPATH (TARMAC)

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
BRICK PIER HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
C/B FENCE HT 1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
BRICK WALL HT 0.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
56.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
56.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
56.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
55.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
55.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
55.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
55.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
55.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
54.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
54.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
54.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
54.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
54.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
54.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
54.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
53.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
53.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
53.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
56.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
56.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
56.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
56.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
56.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
55.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
55.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
55.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
55.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
55.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
55.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
54.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
54.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
54.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
55.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
54.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
54.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
54.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
54.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
54.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
56.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
56.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
56.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
55.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
55.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
55.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
55.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
55.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
54.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
54.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
54.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
54.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
54.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
54.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
54.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
53.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
54.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
54.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
54.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
54.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
54.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
54.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
55.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
55.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
55.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
55.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
55.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
55.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
55.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
56.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
56.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
56.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
56.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
56.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
57.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
54.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
IL 54.40 225 

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
CONCRETE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
d0.15 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
d0.10 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
d0.11 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
d0.10 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
d0.54 

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
d0.60 QB1

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
d0.46 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
d0.46 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
d0.52 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
d0.42 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
d0.41 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
d0.76 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
d0.50 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
52.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
d0.77 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
QB4

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
100%%C VC QB4

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
100%%C VC

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
QB4

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
100%%C VC

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
NFI QB4

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
QB4

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
d0.74 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
d0.25 

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
d0.45 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
d0.48 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
d0.49 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
d0.49 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
d0.51 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
d0.48 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
d0.36 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
d0.38 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
d0.51 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
d0.51 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
d0.38 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
d0.36 QB1

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
d0.48 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
d0.51 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
d0.49 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
d0.49 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
d0.48 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
d0.45 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
d0.28 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
d0.27 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
d0.35 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
d0.47 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
d0.46 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
d0.51 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
d0.57 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
d0.52 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
d0.69 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
d0.55 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
d0.62 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
d0.48 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
Cd0.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
Cd0.44 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
GR

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
Cd0.59 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
d0.52 QB1

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
d0.39 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
d0.41 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
Cd0.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
GR

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
QB4

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
Cd0.62 

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
QB4(AR)

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
d0.86 

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
d0.26 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
d0.73 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
d0.31 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
d0.64 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
d0.29 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
d0.66 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
d0.26 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
d0.75 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
d0.36 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
d0.82 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
d0.26 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
d0.30 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
d0.87 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
d0.86 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
d0.36 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
d0.85 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
d0.42 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
d0.72 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
d0.35 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
d0.37 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
d0.96 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
d0.35 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
d1.09 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
d0.43 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
d1.13 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
d0.40 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
d1.11 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
d0.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
d0.42 

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
d0.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
d0.65 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
d0.56 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
d0.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
d0.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
d0.66 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
d0.61 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
d0.70 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
d0.66 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
d0.70 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
d0.74 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
d0.53 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
d0.13 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
d0.19 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
d0.75 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
d0.79 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
d0.73 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
d0.73 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
d0.49 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
d0.57 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
d0.68 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
d1.21 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
d1.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
d0.58 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
d0.37 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
d0.55 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
SCAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
QB3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
250%%C PE L/P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
250%%C PE L/P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
250%%C PE L/P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
QB4(AR)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
QB4(AR)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
600  (R) QB4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
600  (R) QB4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
MH0401 CL 52.18 IL 50.41 (R)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
NOTE: FLOWS TO: MH0402 CL 52.19 (R) IL 50.34 (R)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
NOTE: FLOWS FROM: MH1402 CL 53.43 (R) IL 50.57 (R)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
d0.47 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
d0.35 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
d0.73 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
d0.30 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
d0.59 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
d0.18 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
d0.69 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
d0.15 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
d0.62 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
d0.17 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
d0.76 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
d0.37 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
d0.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
(AG)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
QA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
d0.13 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
d0.32 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
d0.32 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
d0.28 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
d0.65 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
d0.40 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
d0.37 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
d0.40 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
d0.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
d0.47 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
d0.46 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
MH1 ELEC Bd0.51 Cd0.32 QA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
MH2 ELEC Bd0.37 Cd0.17 QA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
1x100%%C PVC-U

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
1x100%%C PVC-U

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
2x100%%C PVC-U

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
50%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
SENSOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
MH3 ELEC Bd0.36 Cd0.14 QA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
1x100%%C PVC-U

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
50%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
SENSOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
MH4 ELEC Bd0.36 Cd0.14 QA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
MH5 ELEC FUSE BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
MH1 SW CP CL 52.11 BL 51.22 IL 51.23 (x) QA 225  COIL 51.59 (a) QA 100  VCIL 51.66 (b) QA 150  COIL 51.52 (c) QA 150  COIL 51.24 (d) QA 225  VC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
MH041A CL 52.38 BL 51.49 IL 51.67 (x) QA 225  COIL 51.82 (a) QA 150  C0IL 51.68 (b,c) QA 225 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
MH3 SW INT CL 52.59 BL 50.35 IL 51.15 (x,a) QA ALL 100 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
MH4 SW INT CL 52.59 BL 50.29 IL 51.16 (x,a) ALL 100 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
MH5 SW INT CL 52.60 BL 50.31 IL 52.05 (a) QA ALL 100 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
MH6 CW CL 52.58 IL 51.03 (x,a) QA IL 51.08 (b) QA ALL 100  VC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
MH7 CL 52.66 UTS C/FAST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
MH8 FW CL 53.04 IL 52.45 (x) QA IL 52.47 (a) QA ALL 100  VC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
MH9 SW CL 53.23 BL 51.71 IL 52.00 (x) QA IL 52.09 (a) QA ALL 100  PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
MH10 FW CL 53.35 IL 52.77 (x) QA IL 52.78 (a) QA IL 52.79 (b) QA ALL 100  VC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
MH11 FW CL 53.41 UTS FLOODED/BLOCKED NPV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
MH12 FW CL 53.39 IL 52.95 (x) QA IL 52.97 (a) QA ALL 100  VC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
MH14 FW CL 53.49 IL 53.10 (x) QA IL 53.12 (a) QA IL 53.19 (b) QA ALL 100  VC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
CTG

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
MH13 SW CP CL 53.19 BL 52.38 IL 52.39 (x) QA IL 52.47 (a) QA IL 52.62 (b) QA IL 52.40 (c) QA ALL 150  (UNABLE TO DETERMINEMATERIALS)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
TEL1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
TEL3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
TEL4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
NOTE: UNABLE TO LOCATE POWER SUPPLY TO GARAGE. NFI. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
3" CI

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
NFI

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
EOT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
MH1 FUEL CL 52.68 BL 52.13 FILLING POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
MH2 FUEL Bd0.72 Cd0.36 QA FUEL PIPES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
MH3 FUEL CL 53.00 UTS C/FAST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
MH5 FUEL CL 53.01 BL 52.43 FILLING POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
MH4 FUEL CL 52.93 BL 52.65 FILLING POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
NOTE: PETROL STATION PUMPS AND FILLING POINTS ARE REDUNDANT. UNABLE TO LOCATE ALL PIPE WORK, TANK LOCATIONS AND POWER SUPPLIES TO FUEL NETWORK. . 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
(AG)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
Z

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
VP's

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
UTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
Z

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
b

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
b

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
b

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
c

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
b

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
c

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
b

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
c

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
d

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
MH3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
MH4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
MH5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
MH6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
b

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
x/a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
Cd0.57 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
Cd0.36 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
Cd0.57 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
Cd0.50 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
QB4(AR)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
EOT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
3" CI

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
NFI

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
SCAR QB3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
GR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
54.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
54.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
54.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
54.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
54.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
54.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
54.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
53.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
53.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
53.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
53.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
53.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
53.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
53.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
53.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
53.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
53.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
53.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
53.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
54.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
53.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
53.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
53.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
54.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
C/B FENCE  HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
C/B FENCE  HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
IL 52.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
300%%C PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
P/R FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
OUTFALL 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
OF BROKEN PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
APPROX LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
IL:54.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
OUTFLOW 3.4L/S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
IL:54.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
IL:52.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
IL:54.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
450Ø @ 1:250

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
IL:54.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
450Ø @ 1:250

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
IL:54.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
450Ø @ 1:250

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
450Ø @ 1:250

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
IL:54.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
IL:54.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
450Ø @ 1:250

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
IL:54.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
450Ø @ 1:250

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
IL:54.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
450Ø @ 1:250

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
IL:55.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
300Ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
150Ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
300Ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
150Ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
56.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
56.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
56.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
56.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
56.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
56.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
56.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
56.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
56.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
56.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
56.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
57.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
57.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
57.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
57.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
57.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
57.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
57.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
57.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
57.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
57.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
57.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
56.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
56.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
56.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
56.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
56.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
56.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
56.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
56.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
56.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
56.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
56.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
56.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
56.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
56.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
56.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
56.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
56.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
56.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
56.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
56.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
56.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
56.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
56.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
57.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
57.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
57.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
57.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
57.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
57.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
57.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
57.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
57.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
57.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
57.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
57.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
57.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
57.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
56.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
56.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
56.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
56.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1261
56.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1262
56.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1263
56.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1264
56.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1265
52.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1266
52.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1267
52.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1268
52.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1269
53.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1270
53.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1271
53.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1272
53.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1273
53.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1274
53.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1275
53.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1276
53.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1277
53.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1278
53.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1279
53.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1280
53.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1281
53.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1282
53.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1283
53.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1284
53.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1285
53.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1286
53.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1287
53.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1288
53.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1289
53.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1290
53.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1291
53.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1292
53.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1293
53.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1294
53.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1295
53.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1296
53.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1297
54.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1298
54.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1299
54.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1300
53.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1301
53.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1302
53.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1303
53.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1304
53.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1305
53.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1306
53.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1307
53.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1308
52.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1309
52.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1310
52.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1311
52.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1312
52.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1313
52.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1314
52.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1315
52.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1316
52.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1317
52.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1318
52.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1319
52.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1320
52.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1321
52.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1322
52.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1323
52.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1324
52.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1325
52.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1326
52.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1327
52.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1328
53.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1329
53.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1330
53.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1331
53.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1332
53.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1333
52.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1334
52.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1335
52.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1336
52.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1337
52.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1338
56.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1339
IL:51.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1340
IL:51.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1341
150  @ 1:50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1342
150  @ 1:50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1343
IL:51.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1344
150  @ 1:50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1345
IL:52.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1346
150  @ 1:49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1347
IL:52.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1348
150  @ 1:65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1349
IL:53.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_1350
150  @ 1:50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1351
IL:53.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1352
150  @ 1:50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1353
IL:53.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1354
150  @ 1:49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1355
IL:54.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1356
150  @ 1: 50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1357
IL:54.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1358
150  @ 1:50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1359
IL:55.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1360
150  @ 1:49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1361
IL:55.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1362
150  @ 1:78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1363
IL:55.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1364
100  @ 1:76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1365
IL:56.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1366
IL:52.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1367
150  @ 1:147

AutoCAD SHX Text_1368
IL:51.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1369
IL:51.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1370
225Ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_1371
IL:51.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1372
225Ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_1373
AREAS DRAINING INTO POND

AutoCAD SHX Text_1374
AREAS DRAINING INTO POND VIA  PERMEABLE PAVING SYSTEM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1375
AREAS DRAINING INTO PERMEABLE PAVING SYSTEM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1376
%%uKEY:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1377
PARAPET 54.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1378
TEL2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1379
PETROL PUMPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1380
METAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1381
WOODEN PANEL  FENCING  HT 1.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1382
THL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1383
THL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1384
THL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1385
FL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1386
RIDGE 59.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1387
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1388
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1389
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1390
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1391
RUBBLE AND DEBRIS MOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text_1392
NO DEFINED BOUNDARY IN THIS AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1393
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1394
G 1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1395
HT 10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1396
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1397
G 1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1398
HT 10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1399
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1400
G 3x0.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1401
HT 5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1402
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1403
G 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1404
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1405
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1406
G 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1407
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1408
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1409
G 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1410
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1411
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1412
G 0.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1413
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1414
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1415
G 0.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1416
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1417
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1418
G 0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1419
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1420
BUSH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1421
HT 3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1422
BUSH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1423
HT 2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1424
BUSH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1425
HT 3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1426
53.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1427
TELEGRAPH WIRE LOW POINT 56.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1428
52.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1429
52.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1430
52.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1431
52.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1432
52.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1433
53.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1434
53.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1435
57.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1436
57.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1437
57.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1438
53.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1439
53.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1440
53.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1441
53.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1442
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1443
52.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1444
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1445
52.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1446
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1447
52.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1448
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1449
52.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1450
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1451
52.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1452
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1453
53.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_1454
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1455
53.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1456
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1457
52.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1458
52.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1459
52.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1460
52.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1461
52.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1462
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1463
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1464
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1465
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1466
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1467
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1468
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1469
SAPLING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1470
SAPLING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1471
SAPLING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1472
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1473
SC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1474
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1475
MW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1476
53.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1477
52.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1478
52.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1479
52.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1480
52.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1481
53.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1482
52.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1483
53.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1484
53.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1485
53.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1486
52.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1487
52.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1488
52.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1489
52.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1490
52.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1491
52.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1492
53.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1493
53.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1494
53.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1495
53.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1496
52.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1497
53.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1498
52.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1499
53.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1500
53.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1501
53.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1502
53.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1503
53.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1504
53.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1505
53.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1506
53.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1507
53.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1508
53.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1509
53.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1510
53.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1511
57.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1512
SOFFIT 57.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1513
SOFFIT 56.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1514
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1515
SVP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1516
EAVES 57.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1517
RIDGE 59.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1518
52.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1519
53.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1520
53.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1521
53.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1522
53.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1523
53.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1524
DCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1525
RIDGE 55.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1526
EAVES 54.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1527
BRICK WALL HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1528
52.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1529
52.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1530
52.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1531
C/B FENCE HT 1.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1532
52.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1533
52.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1534
52.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1535
52.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1536
52.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1537
53.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1538
52.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1539
52.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1540
52.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1541
52.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1542
52.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1543
52.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1544
52.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1545
52.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1546
52.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1547
52.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1548
53.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1549
52.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1550
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1551
PARAPET 58.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1552
PARAPET 61.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1553
BRAMBLES AVERAGE HT 2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1554
C/B FENCE  HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1555
53.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1556
53.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1557
53.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1558
53.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1559
53.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1560
53.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1561
53.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1562
52.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1563
52.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1564
53.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1565
53.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1566
53.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1567
53.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1568
CONTAINER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1569
53.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1570
53.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1571
DCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1572
53.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1573
53.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1574
C/B FENCE HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1575
APPROXIMATE EXTENTS OF TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1576
C/B FENCE  HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1577
C/B FENCE  HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1578
C/B FENCE REMAINS HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1579
53.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1580
C/B FENCE HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1581
53.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1582
53.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1583
DENSE BRAMBLES AVERAGE HT 3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1584
PLASTIC  PANELS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1585
52.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1586
52.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1587
52.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1588
CONC PLINTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1589
DCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1590
53.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1591
53.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1592
53.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_1593
52.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1594
52.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1595
52.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1596
52.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1597
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1598
52.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1599
52.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1600
52.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1601
STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1602
52.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1603
53.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1604
52.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1605
52.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1606
52.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1607
52.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1608
52.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1609
52.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1610
52.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1611
52.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1612
52.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1613
53.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1614
52.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1615
52.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1616
52.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1617
52.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1618
52.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1619
52.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1620
52.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1621
52.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1622
MIXED HEDGE  AVERAGE HT 3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1623
52.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1624
52.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1625
52.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1626
52.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1627
52.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1628
52.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1629
RIDGE 61.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1630
RIDGE 58.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1631
RIDGE 60.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1632
EAVES 58.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1633
53.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1634
53.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1635
53.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1636
53.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1637
53.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1638
C/B FENCE HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1639
53.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1640
53.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1641
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1642
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1643
52.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1644
RIDGE 60.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1645
EAVES 58.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1646
53.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1647
53.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1648
53.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1649
53.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1650
53.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1651
53.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1652
53.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1653
53.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1654
STEP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1655
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1656
BRICK WALL HT 0.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1657
53.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1658
53.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1659
53.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1660
53.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1661
RIDGE 60.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1662
EAVES 58.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1663
DCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1664
53.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1665
53.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1666
53.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1667
53.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1668
53.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1669
53.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1670
53.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1671
DCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1672
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1673
DECKING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1674
53.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1675
53.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1676
53.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1677
53.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1678
53.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1679
BOLLARDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1680
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1681
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1682
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1683
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1684
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1685
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1686
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1687
DCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1688
G 2.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1689
HT 15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1690
G 1.9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1691
HT 14m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1692
G 2.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1693
HT 14m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1694
G 1.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1695
HT 12m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1696
G 2.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1697
HT 15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1698
G 2.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1699
HT 17m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1700
MG 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1701
HT 6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1702
MG 0.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1703
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1704
G 0.9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1705
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1706
MG 0.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1707
HT 9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1708
G 0.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1709
HT 6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1710
DEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1711
G 0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1712
HT 5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1713
G 0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1714
HT 5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1715
G 1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1716
HT 6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1717
G 1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1718
HT 10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1719
MG 0.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1720
HT 4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1721
G 3x0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1722
HT 5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1723
G 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1724
HT 5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1725
G 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1726
HT 6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1727
MG 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1728
HT 6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1729
G 0.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1730
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1731
G 0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1732
HT 8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1733
G 1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1734
HT 14m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1735
MIXED HEDGE  AVERAGE HT 4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1736
MIXED HEDGE  AVERAGE HT 4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1737
RIDGE 65.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1738
EAVES 62.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1739
RIDGE 64.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1740
EAVES 62.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1741
EAVES 62.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1742
RIDGE 65.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1743
RIDGE 65.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1744
EAVES 62.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1745
EAVES 61.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1746
RIDGE 64.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1747
RIDGE 67.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1748
EAVES 63.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1749
EAVES 64.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1750
EAVES 61.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1751
RIDGE 67.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1752
RIDGE 68.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1753
53.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1754
53.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1755
53.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1756
C/B FENCE  HT 2.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1757
53.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1758
53.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1759
53.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1760
53.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1761
53.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1762
SHELTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1763
53.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1764
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1765
P/R FENCE REMAINS HT 1.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1766
53.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1767
53.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1768
RAISED CONCRETE EDGING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1769
53.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1770
53.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1771
C/B FENCE HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1772
53.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1773
TILES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1774
53.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1775
53.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1776
BRICK RETAINING WALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1777
53.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1778
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1779
53.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1780
52.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1781
52.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1782
BRICK WALL HT 1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1783
RIDGE 56.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_1784
SHELTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1785
OFFSITE CONIFER ROOTLINE AVERAGE HT 9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1786
RIDGE 58.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1787
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1788
G 2x0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1789
HT 10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1790
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1791
G 1.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1792
HT 12m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1793
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1794
G 1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1795
HT 10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1796
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1797
G 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1798
HT 6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1799
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1800
G 4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1801
HT 15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1802
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1803
G 0.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1804
HT 5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1805
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1806
G 0.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1807
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1808
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1809
G 4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1810
HT 18m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1811
53.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1812
53.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1813
53.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1814
54.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_1815
54.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1816
54.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1817
HERAS FENCE HT 2.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1818
P/R FENCE REMAINS HT 1.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1819
57.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1820
56.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1821
57.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1822
57.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1823
56.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1824
57.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1825
57.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1826
P/R FENCE HT 1.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1827
57.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1828
57.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1829
57.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1830
CONC WALL HT 0.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1831
I/R FENCE HT 2.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1832
58.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1833
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1834
OFFSITE CONIFER ROOTLINE AVERAGE HT 4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1835
OFFSITE CONIFER  ROOTLINE AVERAGE HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1836
C/B FENCE HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1837
C/B FENCE HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1838
C/B FENCE HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1839
54.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1840
54.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1841
54.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1842
54.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1843
55.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1844
55.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1845
56.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1846
56.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1847
57.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1848
58.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1849
58.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1850
C/B FENCE HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1851
B/W FENCE REMAINS HT 1.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1852
54.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1853
54.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1854
54.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1855
54.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1856
54.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1857
54.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1858
C/B FENCE HT 1.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1859
54.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1860
RIDGE 62.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1861
EAVES 58.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1862
RIDGE 60.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1863
EAVES 58.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1864
57.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1865
57.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1866
57.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_1867
56.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1868
56.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1869
55.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1870
55.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1871
54.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1872
54.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1873
55.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1874
55.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1875
55.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1876
55.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1877
56.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1878
56.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1879
56.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1880
57.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1881
57.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1882
57.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1883
56.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1884
56.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1885
56.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1886
55.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1887
55.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1888
55.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1889
55.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1890
54.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1891
54.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1892
54.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1893
54.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1894
54.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1895
54.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1896
54.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1897
54.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1898
54.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1899
55.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_1900
55.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1901
55.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1902
55.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1903
55.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1904
56.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1905
56.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1906
56.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1907
56.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1908
56.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1909
56.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1910
56.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1911
56.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1912
55.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1913
55.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1914
55.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1915
55.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1916
54.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1917
54.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1918
54.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1919
54.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1920
53.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1921
53.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1922
54.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1923
54.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1924
54.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1925
54.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1926
54.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1927
54.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1928
53.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1929
54.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1930
54.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1931
54.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1932
54.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1933
54.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1934
54.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1935
55.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1936
54.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1937
54.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1938
54.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_1939
53.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1940
53.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1941
54.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_1942
54.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1943
54.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1944
54.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1945
54.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1946
55.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1947
55.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1948
55.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1949
55.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1950
55.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1951
56.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1952
56.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1953
56.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1954
56.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1955
54.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1956
DENSE BRAMBLES AVERAGE HT 2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1957
DENSE BRAMBLES AVERAGE HT 1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1958
DENSE BRAMBLES AVERAGE HT 3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1959
DENSE BRAMBLES AVERAGE HT 3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1960
DENSE BRAMBLES AVERAGE HT 2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1961
DENSE BRAMBLES AVERAGE HT 2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1962
DENSE BRAMBLES AVERAGE HT 2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1963
56.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1964
56.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1965
57.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1966
57.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1967
57.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1968
57.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1969
57.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1970
57.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1971
HAWTHORN TREES AVERAGE HT 4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1972
57.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1973
57.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1974
56.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1975
56.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1976
56.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1977
55.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1978
55.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1979
55.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1980
55.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1981
55.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1982
55.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1983
55.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_1984
55.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1985
54.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1986
54.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1987
54.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1988
54.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1989
54.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1990
54.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1991
53.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1992
54.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1993
54.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_1994
53.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1995
53.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1996
53.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1997
53.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1998
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1999
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2000
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2001
DCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2002
PARAPET 61.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2003
PARAPET 55.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_2004
PARAPET 54.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_2005
PARAPET 58.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2006
PARAPET 61.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2007
PARAPET 56.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2008
RIDGE 59.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_2009
EAVES 57.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_2010
EAVES 55.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2011
BRICK WALL HT 1.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2012
52.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_2013
52.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2014
52.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2015
52.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2016
52.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2017
52.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2018
52.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2019
52.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2020
52.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_2021
52.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2022
53.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2023
52.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_2024
52.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2025
52.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2026
52.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2027
52.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_2028
53.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2029
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2030
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2031
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2032
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2033
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2034
POs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2035
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2036
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2037
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2038
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2039
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2040
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2041
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2042
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2043
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2044
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2045
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2046
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2047
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2048
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2049
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2050
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2051
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2052
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2053
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2054
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2055
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2056
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2057
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2058
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2059
C/B FENCE REMAINS HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2060
53.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2061
53.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2062
53.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2063
53.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2064
PORTACABIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2065
53.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2066
52.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2067
52.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_2068
53.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_2069
53.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2070
53.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2071
53.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2072
53.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2073
52.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2074
52.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2075
52.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_2076
53.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_2077
53.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2078
53.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2079
53.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2080
54.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_2081
54.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2082
54.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2083
53.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2084
MANHOLE UNDER DECKING

AutoCAD SHX Text_2085
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2086
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2087
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2088
PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_2089
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2090
FOOTPATH (TARMAC)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2091
FOOTPATH (TARMAC)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2092
53.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_2093
RIDGE 56.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2094
EAVES 55.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_2095
ROOF  56.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_2096
EAVES 54.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2097
MIXED HEDGE AVERAGE HT 3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2098
53.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2099
GATES

AutoCAD SHX Text_2100
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2101
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2102
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text_2103
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text_2104
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text_2105
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text_2106
TRELLIS  HT 1.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2107
CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2108
CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2109
UNABLE TO SURVEY FENCE IN THIS AREA DUE TO DEBRIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2110
DEBRIS MOUND IN THIS AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_2111
MULTIPLE PARKED CARS IN THIS AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_2112
MULTIPLE PARKED CARS IN THIS AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_2113
APPROXIMATE EXTENTS OF CANOPIES

AutoCAD SHX Text_2114
CONSERVATORY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2115
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2116
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2117
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2118
C/B FENCE  HT 2.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2119
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2120
55.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2121
55.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2122
55.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_2123
55.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_2124
56.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_2125
56.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2126
56.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_2127
56.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_2128
56.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2129
55.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2130
54.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2131
54.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_2132
54.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_2133
54.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_2134
54.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_2135
54.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2136
54.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_2137
53.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_2138
TOW 54.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_2139
54.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2140
54.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_2141
55.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2142
SETTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2143
54.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_2144
FOOTPATH (TARMAC)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2145
BRICK PIER HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2146
C/B FENCE HT 1.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2147
BRICK WALL HT 0.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2148
56.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2149
56.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2150
56.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_2151
55.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_2152
55.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_2153
55.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2154
55.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2155
55.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2156
54.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2157
54.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2158
54.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2159
54.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_2160
54.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2161
54.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2162
54.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2163
53.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_2164
53.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_2165
53.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_2166
56.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_2167
56.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_2168
56.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2169
56.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2170
56.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2171
55.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2172
55.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2173
55.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2174
55.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2175
55.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_2176
55.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2177
54.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_2178
54.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2179
54.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_2180
55.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_2181
54.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_2182
54.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_2183
54.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_2184
54.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2185
54.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_2186
56.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2187
56.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2188
56.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_2189
55.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_2190
55.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2191
55.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2192
55.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2193
55.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_2194
54.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_2195
54.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2196
54.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_2197
54.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2198
54.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2199
54.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2200
54.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_2201
53.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_2202
54.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2203
54.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_2204
54.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_2205
54.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_2206
54.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_2207
54.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_2208
55.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2209
55.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2210
55.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2211
55.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2212
55.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2213
55.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2214
55.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_2215
56.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2216
56.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2217
56.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2218
56.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_2219
56.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_2220
57.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2221
54.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_2222
IL 54.40 225 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2223
CONCRETE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2224
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2225
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2226
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2227
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2228
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2229
d0.15 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2230
d0.10 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2231
d0.11 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2232
d0.10 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2233
d0.54 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2234
d0.60 QB1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2235
d0.46 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2236
d0.46 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2237
d0.52 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2238
d0.42 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2239
d0.41 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2240
d0.76 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2241
d0.50 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2242
52.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_2243
GY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2244
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2245
d0.77 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2246
QB4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2247
100%%C VC QB4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2248
100%%C VC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2249
QB4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2250
100%%C VC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2251
NFI QB4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2252
QB4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2253
d0.74 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2254
d0.25 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2255
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2256
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2257
d0.48 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2258
d0.49 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2259
d0.49 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2260
d0.51 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2261
d0.48 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2262
d0.36 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2263
d0.38 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2264
d0.51 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2265
d0.51 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2266
d0.38 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2267
d0.36 QB1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2268
d0.48 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2269
d0.51 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2270
d0.49 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2271
d0.49 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2272
d0.48 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2273
d0.28 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2274
d0.27 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2275
d0.35 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2276
d0.47 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2277
d0.46 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2278
d0.51 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2279
d0.57 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2280
d0.52 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2281
d0.69 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2282
d0.55 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2283
d0.62 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2284
d0.48 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2285
Cd0.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_2286
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2287
Cd0.44 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2288
GR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2289
Cd0.59 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2290
d0.52 QB1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2291
d0.39 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2292
d0.41 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2293
Cd0.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2294
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2295
GR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2296
QB4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2297
Cd0.62 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2298
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2299
QB4(AR)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2300
d0.86 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2301
d0.64 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2302
d0.29 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2303
d0.66 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2304
d0.26 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2305
d0.75 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2306
d0.36 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2307
d0.82 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2308
d0.26 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2309
d0.30 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2310
d0.87 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2311
d0.86 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2312
d0.36 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2313
d0.85 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2314
d0.42 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2315
d0.72 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2316
d0.35 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2317
d0.37 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2318
d0.96 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2319
d0.35 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2320
d1.09 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2321
d0.43 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2322
d1.13 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2323
d0.40 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2324
d1.11 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2325
d0.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_2326
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2327
d0.42 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2328
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2329
d0.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2330
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2331
d0.65 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2332
d0.56 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2333
d0.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2334
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2335
d0.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_2336
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2337
d0.66 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2338
d0.61 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2339
d0.70 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2340
d0.66 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2341
d0.70 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2342
d0.74 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2343
d0.53 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2344
d0.13 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2345
d0.19 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2346
d0.75 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2347
d0.79 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2348
d0.73 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2349
d0.73 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2350
d0.49 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2351
d0.57 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2352
d0.68 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2353
d1.21 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2354
d1.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_2355
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2356
d0.58 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2357
d0.37 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2358
d0.55 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2359
SCAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2360
QB3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2361
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2362
250%%C PE L/P

AutoCAD SHX Text_2363
250%%C PE L/P

AutoCAD SHX Text_2364
250%%C PE L/P

AutoCAD SHX Text_2365
QB4(AR)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2366
QB4(AR)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2367
600  (R) QB4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2368
LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2369
LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2370
600  (R) QB4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2371
MH0401 CL 52.18 IL 50.41 (R)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2372
NOTE: FLOWS FROM: MH1402 CL 53.43 (R) IL 50.57 (R)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2373
d0.47 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2374
d0.35 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2375
d0.73 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2376
d0.30 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2377
d0.59 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2378
d0.18 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2379
d0.69 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2380
d0.15 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2381
d0.62 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2382
d0.17 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2383
d0.76 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2384
d0.37 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2385
d0.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2386
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2387
(AG)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2388
QA

AutoCAD SHX Text_2389
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2390
d0.13 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2391
d0.32 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2392
d0.32 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2393
d0.28 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2394
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2395
d0.65 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2396
d0.40 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2397
d0.37 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2398
d0.40 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2399
d0.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2400
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2401
d0.47 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2402
d0.46 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2403
MH1 ELEC Bd0.51 Cd0.32 QA

AutoCAD SHX Text_2404
MH2 ELEC Bd0.37 Cd0.17 QA

AutoCAD SHX Text_2405
1x100%%C PVC-U

AutoCAD SHX Text_2406
1x100%%C PVC-U

AutoCAD SHX Text_2407
2x100%%C PVC-U

AutoCAD SHX Text_2408
50%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2409
SENSOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2410
MH3 ELEC Bd0.36 Cd0.14 QA

AutoCAD SHX Text_2411
1x100%%C PVC-U

AutoCAD SHX Text_2412
50%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2413
SENSOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2414
MH4 ELEC Bd0.36 Cd0.14 QA

AutoCAD SHX Text_2415
MH5 ELEC FUSE BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text_2416
MH1 SW CP CL 52.11 BL 51.22 IL 51.23 (x) QA 225  COIL 51.59 (a) QA 100  VCIL 51.66 (b) QA 150  COIL 51.52 (c) QA 150  COIL 51.24 (d) QA 225  VC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2417
MH041A CL 52.38 BL 51.49 IL 51.67 (x) QA 225  COIL 51.82 (a) QA 150  C0IL 51.68 (b,c) QA 225 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2418
MH3 SW INT CL 52.59 BL 50.35 IL 51.15 (x,a) QA ALL 100 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2419
MH4 SW INT CL 52.59 BL 50.29 IL 51.16 (x,a) ALL 100 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2420
MH5 SW INT CL 52.60 BL 50.31 IL 52.05 (a) QA ALL 100 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2421
MH6 CW CL 52.58 IL 51.03 (x,a) QA IL 51.08 (b) QA ALL 100  VC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2422
MH7 CL 52.66 UTS C/FAST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2423
MH8 FW CL 53.04 IL 52.45 (x) QA IL 52.47 (a) QA ALL 100  VC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2424
MH9 SW CL 53.23 BL 51.71 IL 52.00 (x) QA IL 52.09 (a) QA ALL 100  PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2425
MH10 FW CL 53.35 IL 52.77 (x) QA IL 52.78 (a) QA IL 52.79 (b) QA ALL 100  VC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2426
MH11 FW CL 53.41 UTS FLOODED/BLOCKED NPV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2427
MH12 FW CL 53.39 IL 52.95 (x) QA IL 52.97 (a) QA ALL 100  VC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2428
MH14 FW CL 53.49 IL 53.10 (x) QA IL 53.12 (a) QA IL 53.19 (b) QA ALL 100  VC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2429
CTG

AutoCAD SHX Text_2430
MH13 SW CP CL 53.19 BL 52.38 IL 52.39 (x) QA IL 52.47 (a) QA IL 52.62 (b) QA IL 52.40 (c) QA ALL 150  (UNABLE TO DETERMINEMATERIALS)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2431
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2432
TEL1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2433
TEL3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2434
TEL4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2435
RWP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2436
NOTE: UNABLE TO LOCATE POWER SUPPLY TO GARAGE. NFI. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2437
3" CI

AutoCAD SHX Text_2438
NFI

AutoCAD SHX Text_2439
EOT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2440
MH1 FUEL CL 52.68 BL 52.13 FILLING POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2441
MH2 FUEL Bd0.72 Cd0.36 QA FUEL PIPES

AutoCAD SHX Text_2442
MH3 FUEL CL 53.00 UTS C/FAST

AutoCAD SHX Text_2443
MH5 FUEL CL 53.01 BL 52.43 FILLING POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2444
MH4 FUEL CL 52.93 BL 52.65 FILLING POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2445
NOTE: PETROL STATION PUMPS AND FILLING POINTS ARE REDUNDANT. UNABLE TO LOCATE ALL PIPE WORK, TANK LOCATIONS AND POWER SUPPLIES TO FUEL NETWORK. . 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2446
(AG)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2447
Z

AutoCAD SHX Text_2448
VP's

AutoCAD SHX Text_2449
UTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2450
Z

AutoCAD SHX Text_2451
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_2452
a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2453
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_2454
a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2455
b

AutoCAD SHX Text_2456
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_2457
a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2458
b

AutoCAD SHX Text_2459
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_2460
a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2461
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_2462
a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2463
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_2464
a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2465
b

AutoCAD SHX Text_2466
c

AutoCAD SHX Text_2467
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_2468
a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2469
b

AutoCAD SHX Text_2470
c

AutoCAD SHX Text_2471
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_2472
a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2473
b

AutoCAD SHX Text_2474
c

AutoCAD SHX Text_2475
d

AutoCAD SHX Text_2476
MH3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2477
MH4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2478
MH5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2479
MH6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2480
x

AutoCAD SHX Text_2481
a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2482
b

AutoCAD SHX Text_2483
a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2484
x/a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2485
Cd0.57 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2486
Cd0.36 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2487
Cd0.57 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2488
Cd0.50 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2489
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2490
QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2491
QB4(AR)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2492
EOT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2493
3" CI

AutoCAD SHX Text_2494
NFI

AutoCAD SHX Text_2495
SCAR QB3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2496
GR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2497
54.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2498
54.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2499
54.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2500
54.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2501
54.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2502
54.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2503
54.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2504
53.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_2505
53.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_2506
53.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_2507
53.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_2508
53.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2509
53.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2510
53.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2511
53.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2512
53.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2513
53.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2514
53.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_2515
53.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2516
54.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_2517
53.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_2518
53.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_2519
53.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2520
54.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2521
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2522
C/B FENCE  HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2523
C/B FENCE  HT 1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2524
IL 52.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_2525
300%%C PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2526
P/R FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2527
OUTFALL 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2528
OF BROKEN PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2529
APPROX LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_2530
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2531
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2532
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2533
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2534
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2535
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2536
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2537
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2538
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2539
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2540
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2541
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2542
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2543
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2544
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2545
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2546
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2547
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2548
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2549
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2550
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2551
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2552
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2553
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2554
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2555
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2556
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2557
IL:54.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2558
OUTFLOW 3.4L/S

AutoCAD SHX Text_2559
IL:54.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2560
IL:52.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_2561
IL:54.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_2562
450Ø @ 1:250

AutoCAD SHX Text_2563
IL:54.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_2564
450Ø @ 1:250

AutoCAD SHX Text_2565
IL:54.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_2566
450Ø @ 1:250

AutoCAD SHX Text_2567
450Ø @ 1:250

AutoCAD SHX Text_2568
IL:54.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_2569
IL:54.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2570
450Ø @ 1:250

AutoCAD SHX Text_2571
IL:54.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2572
450Ø @ 1:250

AutoCAD SHX Text_2573
IL:54.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_2574
450Ø @ 1:250

AutoCAD SHX Text_2575
IL:55.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_2576
300Ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_2577
150Ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_2578
300Ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_2579
150Ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_2580
56.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2581
56.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2582
56.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2583
56.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2584
56.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2585
56.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2586
56.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2587
56.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2588
56.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_2589
56.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2590
56.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2591
57.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_2592
57.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_2593
57.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_2594
57.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_2595
57.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2596
57.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2597
57.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2598
57.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2599
57.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2600
57.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2601
57.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2602
56.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2603
56.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2604
56.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2605
56.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2606
56.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2607
56.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2608
56.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2609
56.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2610
56.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2611
56.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2612
56.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2613
56.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2614
56.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2615
56.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2616
56.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2617
56.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2618
56.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2619
56.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2620
56.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2621
56.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2622
56.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_2623
56.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2624
56.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2625
57.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_2626
57.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_2627
57.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2628
57.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2629
57.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2630
57.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2631
57.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2632
57.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2633
57.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2634
57.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2635
57.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2636
57.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2637
57.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2638
57.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2639
56.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2640
56.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2641
56.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2642
56.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2643
56.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2644
56.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2645
56.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2646
56.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2647
52.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_2648
52.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2649
52.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2650
52.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2651
53.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_2652
53.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_2653
53.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2654
53.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2655
53.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2656
53.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2657
53.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2658
53.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2659
53.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2660
53.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2661
53.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2662
53.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2663
53.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2664
53.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2665
53.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2666
53.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2667
53.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2668
53.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2669
53.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2670
53.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2671
53.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2672
53.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2673
53.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_2674
53.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_2675
53.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2676
53.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2677
53.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2678
53.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2679
54.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_2680
54.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_2681
54.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_2682
53.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2683
53.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2684
53.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2685
53.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2686
53.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2687
53.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2688
53.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_2689
53.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2690
52.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_2691
52.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2692
52.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2693
52.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2694
52.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2695
52.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2696
52.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2697
52.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2698
52.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2699
52.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2700
52.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2701
52.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2702
52.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2703
52.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2704
52.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2705
52.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2706
52.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2707
52.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_2708
52.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2709
52.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2710
53.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_2711
53.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_2712
53.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2713
53.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2714
53.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2715
52.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2716
52.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2717
52.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2718
52.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2719
52.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_2720
56.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2721
IL:51.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_2722
IL:51.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2723
150  @ 1:50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2724
150  @ 1:50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2725
IL:51.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2726
150  @ 1:50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2727
IL:52.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2728
150  @ 1:49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2729
IL:52.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2730
150  @ 1:65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2731
IL:53.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_2732
150  @ 1:50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2733
IL:53.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2734
150  @ 1:50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2735
IL:53.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_2736
150  @ 1:49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2737
IL:54.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2738
150  @ 1: 50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2739
IL:54.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_2740
150  @ 1:50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2741
IL:55.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2742
150  @ 1:49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2743
IL:55.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2744
150  @ 1:78

AutoCAD SHX Text_2745
IL:55.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2746
100  @ 1:76

AutoCAD SHX Text_2747
IL:56.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_2748
IL:52.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2749
150  @ 1:147

AutoCAD SHX Text_2750
IL:51.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2751
IL:51.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2752
225Ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_2753
IL:51.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2754
225Ø

AutoCAD SHX Text_2755
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2756
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_2757
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2758
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2759
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2760
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2761
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2762
Crozier Lane

AutoCAD SHX Text_2763
Forest Road

AutoCAD SHX Text_2764
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2765
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2766
screening

AutoCAD SHX Text_2767
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2768
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2769
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2770
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2771
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2772
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2773
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2774
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2775
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2776
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2777
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2778
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2779
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2780
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2781
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2782
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2783
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2784
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2785
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2786
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2787
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2788
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2789
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2790
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2791
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2792
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2793
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2794
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2795
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2796
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2797
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2798
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2799
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2800
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2801
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2802
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2803
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2804
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2805
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2806
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2807
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2808
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2809
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2810
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2811
2x2B

AutoCAD SHX Text_2812
1x1B M4(3)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2813
1X2B

AutoCAD SHX Text_2814
1X1B

AutoCAD SHX Text_2815
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2816
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2817
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2818
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2819
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2820
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2821
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2822
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2823
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2824
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2825
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2826
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2827
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2828
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2829
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2830
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2831
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2832
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2833
Detailed Basin

AutoCAD SHX Text_2834
3M Adopted Footway / Cycleway

AutoCAD SHX Text_2835
3M Adopted Footway / Cycleway

AutoCAD SHX Text_2836
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2837
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2838
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2839
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2840
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2841
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2842
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2843
3M Adopted Footway / Cycleway

AutoCAD SHX Text_2844
Open Space

AutoCAD SHX Text_2845
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2846
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2847
M4(3)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2848
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2849
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2850
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2851
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2852
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2853
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2854
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2855
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2856
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2857
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2858
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2859
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2860
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2861
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2862
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2863
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2864
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2865
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2866
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2867
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2868
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2869
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2870
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2871
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2872
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2873
h=1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2874
h=1.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2875
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_2876
RW0.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2877
GB 0.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2878
GB 0.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2879
GB 0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2880
GB 0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2881
GB 0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2882
GB 0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2883
GB 0.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2884
RW0.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2885
RW1.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2886
RW1.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2887
RW1.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2888
RW0.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2889
RW1.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2890
RW0.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2891
RW1.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2892
RW 0.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2893
2Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_2894
54.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2895
54.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2896
55.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2897
55.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2898
RW1.90 with timber screen on the top

AutoCAD SHX Text_2899
6Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_2900
RW 0.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2901
4Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_2902
4Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_2903
5Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_2904
4Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_2905
RW0.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2906
RW0.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2907
RW0.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2908
RW0.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2909
2Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_2910
RW0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2911
RW0.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2912
RW0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2913
RW0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2914
RW0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2915
RW0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2916
6Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_2917
5Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_2918
1/5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2919
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2920
1/5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2921
1/5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2922
Connection to 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2923
be established

AutoCAD SHX Text_2924
Footpath / cycleway

AutoCAD SHX Text_2925
link over private road

AutoCAD SHX Text_2926
subject to legal agreement

AutoCAD SHX Text_2927
Site access, footway / cycleway

AutoCAD SHX Text_2928
and footpath links to Forest Road

AutoCAD SHX Text_2929
together with street lighting subject to

AutoCAD SHX Text_2930
S278 agreement

AutoCAD SHX Text_2931
Footway to tie in 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2932
to exisiting

AutoCAD SHX Text_2933
EV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2934
EV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2935
EV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2936
EV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2937
EV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2938
EV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2939
EV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2940
EV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2941
EV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2942
EV Kiosk

AutoCAD SHX Text_2943
Application site area 2.06ha Greenfield rate (Qbar) 9.0l/s Impermeable area Private area     4,346m  4,346m  24,780m   2(with 10% urban creep)   Shared road/drive/apartment block 3,496m  3,496m  2Total impermeable area    8,276m  8,276m  2100yr+40% storage provision 508m  3Storage Basin  290m  290m  3Permeable Paving 218m 218m 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2944
Drainage Notes: 1. Surface water runoff to drain into the Surface water runoff to drain into the  water runoff to drain into the water runoff to drain into the  runoff to drain into the runoff to drain into the  to drain into the to drain into the  drain into the drain into the  into the into the  the the adjoining watercourse/ditch at the greenfield  watercourse/ditch at the greenfield watercourse/ditch at the greenfield  at the greenfield at the greenfield  the greenfield the greenfield  greenfield greenfield rate (Qbar) of 9l/s in total.  2. Storage to be provided within a storage basin Storage to be provided within a storage basin and permeable paving, designed for the 100yr + 40% event.  3. Finished Floor Levels to be set at least Finished Floor Levels to be set at least  Floor Levels to be set at least Floor Levels to be set at least  Levels to be set at least Levels to be set at least  to be set at least to be set at least  be set at least be set at least  set at least set at least  at least at least  least least 600mm above the 100yr+35%CC flood level. 4. Foul water to discharge into the public foul Foul water to discharge into the public foul  water to discharge into the public foul water to discharge into the public foul  to discharge into the public foul to discharge into the public foul  discharge into the public foul discharge into the public foul  into the public foul into the public foul  the public foul the public foul  public foul public foul  foul foul sewer at Forest Road in agreement with  at Forest Road in agreement with at Forest Road in agreement with  Forest Road in agreement with Forest Road in agreement with  Road in agreement with Road in agreement with  in agreement with in agreement with  agreement with agreement with  with with Thames Water. 5. The proposed headwalls at the ditch subject The proposed headwalls at the ditch subject  proposed headwalls at the ditch subject proposed headwalls at the ditch subject  headwalls at the ditch subject headwalls at the ditch subject  at the ditch subject at the ditch subject  the ditch subject the ditch subject  ditch subject ditch subject  subject subject to the Land Drainge Consent with Bracknell  the Land Drainge Consent with Bracknell the Land Drainge Consent with Bracknell  Land Drainge Consent with Bracknell Land Drainge Consent with Bracknell  Drainge Consent with Bracknell Drainge Consent with Bracknell  Consent with Bracknell Consent with Bracknell  with Bracknell with Bracknell  Bracknell Bracknell Council. 6. Drainage as shown subject to detailed design.Drainage as shown subject to detailed design.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2945
DRAINAGE AREA PLAN SCALE 1:1,000

AutoCAD SHX Text_2946
DRAINAGE PLAN SCALE 1:500

AutoCAD SHX Text_2947
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2948
By

AutoCAD SHX Text_2949
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_2950
Revision Details

AutoCAD SHX Text_2951
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2952
29.11.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2953
New layout added, drainage revised

AutoCAD SHX Text_2954
to reflect EA/LLFA comments

AutoCAD SHX Text_2955
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2956
Reproduced from Ordnance Survey map with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. Crown copyright reserved. Licence No. 100005881 Cole Easdon Consultants Limited

AutoCAD SHX Text_2957
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_2958
09.03.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2959
New layout added, drainage revised to suit

AutoCAD SHX Text_2960
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2961
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2962
JG

AutoCAD SHX Text_2963
28.10.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2964
Layout updated, drainage amended to suit

AutoCAD SHX Text_2965
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_2966
07.11.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2967
New layout added - rev S4. FFLs amended

AutoCAD SHX Text_2968
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_2969
REFERENCE DRAWINGS:

AutoCAD SHX Text_2970
Drawing No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2971
Drawing Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_2972
Revision

AutoCAD SHX Text_2973
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_2974
Company

AutoCAD SHX Text_2975
MK Surveys

AutoCAD SHX Text_2976
Thrive Architects

AutoCAD SHX Text_2977
01.11.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2978
31.01.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2979
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2980
Z9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2981
Topo Survey

AutoCAD SHX Text_2982
Site Layout

AutoCAD SHX Text_2983
29286

AutoCAD SHX Text_2984
REDR201013 SL01

AutoCAD SHX Text_2985
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2986
09.03.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2987
Drawing updated to new site layout

AutoCAD SHX Text_2988
rev X, Email dated 07.03.23.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2989
AJM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2990
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_2991
10.03.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2992
Drawing updated to new site layout

AutoCAD SHX Text_2993
rev Y, Email dated 08.03.23.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2994
AJM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2995
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_2996
17.03.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2997
Drawing updated to new site layout

AutoCAD SHX Text_2998
rev Z3, Email dated 16.03.23.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2999
AJM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3000
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_3001
23.03.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3002
Drawing updated to new site layout

AutoCAD SHX Text_3003
rev Z3, Email dated 16.03.23.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3004
AJM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3005
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3006
24.03.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3007
Headwall and ditch amended towards 

AutoCAD SHX Text_3008
Forest Road as requested by Client. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_3009
AJM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3010
J

AutoCAD SHX Text_3011
27.03.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3012
Plot 13 carport level adjusted to suit 

AutoCAD SHX Text_3013
revised Thrive layouts. Scale Bar added.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3014
AJM

AutoCAD SHX Text_3015
K

AutoCAD SHX Text_3016
21.06.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3017
Drawing updated to new site layout

AutoCAD SHX Text_3018
rev Z9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3019
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3020
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3021
23.10.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3022
Drawing updated to new site layout

AutoCAD SHX Text_3023
Exceedance/Overland flow arrows added

AutoCAD SHX Text_3024
RB



 
 

5 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A p p e n d i x  2  
F l o o d  R o u t e  S e c t i o n s   

( S h e e t s  1  –  3 )  

84



Proposed Levels

Existing Levels

SECTION A-A

57
.1

3

57
.6

0

57
.6

7

57
.8

2

57
.6

7
57

.8
2

57
.8

2

57
.4

5

57
.4

5
57

.6
0

57
.4

5
57

.4
1

57
.4

9

57
.8

2

FFL 57.60

Proposed Levels

Existing Levels

SECTION B-B

56
.0

0

56
.1

8
56

.1
8

56
.0

3
56

.1
8

56
.6

25

FFL 57.00

55
.8

5

57
.0

0
56

.8
5

56
.8

5

56
.8

75

56
.6

25

S103

Ty
pe

 A
MB

Y

Type WARW

Type STRA

Type STRA

Type STRA

Type HARR

Type SHAF

Type OXFOQ

Type LETC

Type LETC

Ty
pe

 H
IG

5

Ty
pe

 H
IG

5

Type LEAMQ

Type CP - DOUBLE

Type CP - DOUBLE

Type CP - SINGLE

Type CP - SINGLE

Type CP - SINGLE

Type CP - SINGLE

Type CP - DOUBLE

171320.00mN

171260.00mN

171280.00mN

171300.00mN

55.32

55.69

55.55

55.50

55.52

56.00

55.97

55.96

56.06

56.44

56.46

56.43

56.48

56.54

57.14

56.94

56.74

56.75

56.79

57.09

57.10

57.36

57.63

57.98

58.28

58.02

57.84

57.18

56.99

56.63

56.54

56.00

56.32

56.78

58.20

58.06

58.03

58.24

58.00

57.98

57.70

57.73

57.12

56.90

56.72

56.48

56.27

55.97

55.91

UK 10h

56

56

57

57

A

A

B

B FLOOD ROUTE DETAIL
WITH SANDBAG

Client

Job Title

Drawing Title

ScaleDate

Drg. No.

C Copyright

Rev.

Drawn by: Checked by:Designed by:

FOR PLANNING FOR TENDER FOR APPROVAL FOR CONSTRUCTION AS BUILT

Drawing Status:

FOR COMMENT

**CONSTRUCTION AT CLIENT / CONTRACTOR RISK**

01793 619 965 | cec@ColeEasdon.com | www.ColeEasdon.com

Redrow Homes Ltd.

Parcel 13A
Forest Road
Warfield
Bracknell

Flood Route Sections
(Sheet 1 of 3)

AJM AJM RB

June 2023 1:200 @ A1

7736/15/01 -

85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3025
Level

AutoCAD SHX Text_3026
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3027
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3028
EXISTING GROUND PROFILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3029
PROPOSED GROUND PROFILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3030
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3031
PROPOSED 1.8m  HIGH FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3032
Level

AutoCAD SHX Text_3033
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3034
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3035
EXISTING GROUND PROFILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3036
PROPOSED GROUND PROFILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3037
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3038
PROPOSED 1.8m  HIGH FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3039
57.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_3040
57.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_3041
57.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_3042
SAPLING

AutoCAD SHX Text_3043
57.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3044
G 0.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3045
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3046
57.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_3047
57.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3048
57.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_3049
57.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_3050
57.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3051
57.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3052
58.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3053
56.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3054
56.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_3055
57.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_3056
58.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3057
58.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3058
57.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3059
57.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3060
57.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_3061
56.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3062
56.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_3063
55.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_3064
55.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_3065
55.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3066
55.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3067
55.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3068
56.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_3069
56.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_3070
56.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3071
57.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3072
57.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3073
57.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_3074
56.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3075
56.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_3076
56.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3077
55.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3078
55.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3079
55.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3080
55.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3081
55.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3082
55.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3083
55.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_3084
56.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3085
56.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_3086
56.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3087
56.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_3088
56.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_3089
56.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3090
56.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3091
56.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3092
55.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3093
55.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3094
55.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3095
55.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3096
56.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3097
56.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3098
56.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_3099
56.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3100
56.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3101
56.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3102
57.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3103
57.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3104
57.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3105
57.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3106
57.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3107
57.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3108
57.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_3109
57.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3110
56.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3111
56.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_3112
56.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3113
55.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_3114
55.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3115
55.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3116
55.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_3117
56.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_3118
56.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3119
ROAD2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3120
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3121
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3122
GB 0.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3123
RW0.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3124
FFL 57.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3125
FFL 57.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3126
FFL 57.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3127
FFL 57.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3128
FFL 58.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3129
FFL 57.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3130
FFL 57.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3131
FFL 57.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3132
FFL 56.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3133
FFL 56.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3134
FFL 56.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3135
FFL 57.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3136
FFL 57.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3137
FFL 57.075

AutoCAD SHX Text_3138
FFL 57.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3139
FFL 56.925

AutoCAD SHX Text_3140
FFL 56.875

AutoCAD SHX Text_3141
FFL 56.825

AutoCAD SHX Text_3142
FFL 56.475

AutoCAD SHX Text_3143
+57.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_3144
57.08+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3145
+57.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3146
+57.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3147
+57.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3148
+57.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_3149
56.93+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3150
56.98+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3151
57.07+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3152
57.13+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3153
56.95+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3154
+56.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_3155
+57.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3156
+57.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3157
+57.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3158
+57.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_3159
+57.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3160
+57.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3161
+57.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3162
+57.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3163
+56.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3164
+56.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3165
+56.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3166
56.63+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3167
56.72+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3168
+56.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3169
+57.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_3170
+57.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_3171
+57.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3172
+57.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3173
57.075+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3174
+57.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3175
+57.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3176
+57.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3177
+57.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3178
+57.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3179
+57.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3180
+57.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3181
+57.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3182
+56.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3183
+56.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3184
57.15+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3185
57.35+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3186
57.35+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3187
+57.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3188
+57.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3189
+57.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3190
+56.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3191
57.05+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3192
57.05+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3193
+56.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3194
+56.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3195
1/39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3196
57.375+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3197
57.375+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3198
1/66

AutoCAD SHX Text_3199
56.85+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3200
+56.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3201
+57.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3202
+56.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3203
56.80+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3204
+56.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3205
+56.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3206
+57.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3207
+56.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3208
+56.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3209
1/65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3210
1/50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3211
57.15+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3212
57.35+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3213
57.35+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3214
+57.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3215
+57.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3216
1/12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3217
1/18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3218
+57.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3219
1/21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3220
57.70+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3221
56.10+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3222
1/13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3223
+56.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3224
+56.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3225
56.80+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3226
1/22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3227
1/41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3228
56.85+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3229
1/55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3230
+57.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3231
1/25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3232
+56.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3233
1/37

AutoCAD SHX Text_3234
+56.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3235
56.90+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3236
+56.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3237
+57.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3238
1/36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3239
1/12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3240
1/13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3241
57.45+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3242
57.45+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3243
1/23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3244
57.85+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3245
1/40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3246
57.70+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3247
+57.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3248
1/68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3249
1/25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3250
57.70+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3251
1/33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3252
1/28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3253
1/43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3254
1/34

AutoCAD SHX Text_3255
1/47

AutoCAD SHX Text_3256
57.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3257
56.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3258
56.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3259
57.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3260
57.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3261
57.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3262
56.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3263
56.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3264
56.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3265
56.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3266
57.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_3267
57.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_3268
57.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3269
57.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3270
57.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3271
56.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3272
56.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3273
56.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3274
56.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3275
56.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3276
56.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3277
56.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3278
56.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3279
56.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3280
56.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3281
56.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_3282
56.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3283
56.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3284
56.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3285
56.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3286
57.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_3287
57.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3288
57.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3289
57.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3290
57.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3291
57.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3292
57.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3293
57.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3294
57.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3295
57.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3296
25.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3297
30.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3298
35.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3299
40.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3300
45.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3301
50.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3302
55.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3303
60.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3304
65.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3305
70.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3306
75.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3307
80.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3308
84.699

AutoCAD SHX Text_3309
30.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3310
35.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3311
40.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3312
45.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3313
50.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3314
55.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3315
60.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3316
65.283

AutoCAD SHX Text_3317
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3318
57.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3319
57.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3320
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3321
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3322
Ex BW 0.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3323
Ex BW 0.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3324
Ex BW 0.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3325
Ex BW 0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3326
Ex BW 0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3327
Ex BW 0.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3328
Ex BW 0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3329
57.05+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3330
57.05+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3331
56.95+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3332
1/65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3333
1/65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3334
1/63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3335
1/63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3336
+56.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3337
1/57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3338
1/29

AutoCAD SHX Text_3339
1/55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3340
+56.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3341
1/32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3342
57.15+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3343
1/52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3344
1/55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3345
1/27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3346
Ex BW 0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3347
Ex BW 0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3348
+57.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3349
ACO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3350
1/65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3351
1/27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3352
57.20+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3353
Ex BW 0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3354
57.30+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3355
+57.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3356
1/66

AutoCAD SHX Text_3357
Ex BW 0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3358
1/69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3359
1/25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3360
1/39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3361
ACO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3362
1/12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3363
2Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_3364
56.85+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3365
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3366
Ex BW 0.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3367
ACO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3368
1/65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3369
1/65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3370
1/23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3371
55.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3372
1/80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3373
+56.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3374
1/70

AutoCAD SHX Text_3375
1/80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3376
1/33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3377
1/18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3378
1/22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3379
FFL 57.375

AutoCAD SHX Text_3380
FFL 57.375

AutoCAD SHX Text_3381
FFL 57.175

AutoCAD SHX Text_3382
57.375+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3383
57.375+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3384
57.175+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3385
+57.075

AutoCAD SHX Text_3386
+57.075

AutoCAD SHX Text_3387
+56.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3388
4Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_3389
RW0.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3390
+56.625

AutoCAD SHX Text_3391
56.625+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3392
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3393
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3394
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3395
56.575+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3396
56.625+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3397
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3398
56.535+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3399
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3400
56.925+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3401
+56.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3402
56.925+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3403
2Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_3404
RW0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3405
RW0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3406
RW0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3407
RW0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3408
RW0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3409
56.80+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3410
+56.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3411
+56.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3412
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3413
RW0.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3414
+58.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_3415
1/48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3416
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3417
+57.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_3418
Lintel to be provided under screen wall to allow water to pass through for flow route

AutoCAD SHX Text_3419
+57.375

AutoCAD SHX Text_3420
57.25+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3421
+57.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_3422
+57.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_3423
58.00+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3424
57.85+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3425
57.15+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3426
56.63+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3427
56.03+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3428
55.85+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3429
150mm deep overland flow channel 

AutoCAD SHX Text_3430
150mm deep overland flow channel 

AutoCAD SHX Text_3431
150mm deep overland flow  channel 

AutoCAD SHX Text_3432
ACO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3433
ACO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3434
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3435
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3436
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3437
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3438
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3439
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3440
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3441
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3442
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3443
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3444
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3445
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3446
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3447
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3448
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3449
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3450
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3451
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3452
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3453
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3454
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3455
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3456
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3457
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3458
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3459
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3460
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3461
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3462
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3463
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3464
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3465
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3466
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3467
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3468
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3469
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3470
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3471
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3472
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3473
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3474
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3475
Sand bagwork,  Bagwork to be keyed  into channel slope 

AutoCAD SHX Text_3476
REFERENCE DRAWINGS:

AutoCAD SHX Text_3477
Drawing No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3478
Drawing Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_3479
Revision

AutoCAD SHX Text_3480
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_3481
Company

AutoCAD SHX Text_3482
SL.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_3483
Site Layout

AutoCAD SHX Text_3484
Z8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3485
31.05.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3486
Thrive Architects

AutoCAD SHX Text_3487
29286

AutoCAD SHX Text_3488
Topographical and PAS 128:2014 Utility Survey

AutoCAD SHX Text_3489
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3490
01/11/2020

AutoCAD SHX Text_3491
M K Surveys

AutoCAD SHX Text_3492
%%UCROSS SECTIONS (SCALE H 1:100, V 1:100)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3493
%%UCROSS SECTIONS (SCALE H 1:100, V 1:100)



Proposed Levels

Existing Levels

SECTION C-C

56
.9

3

FFL 56.25

55
.2

4

56
.2

5
56

.1
0

56
.0

5

56
.0

5

55
.6

5
54

.9
0

55
.0

5
55

.0
5

55
.2

4
56

.1
0

56
.2

5

Proposed Levels

Existing Levels

54
.3

5

FFL 56.25

54
.5

3

56
.2

5
54

.3
5

54
.3

5

56
.1

0
56

.2
5

SECTION D-D

54
.2

0

54
.3

5

S102

Type SHAF
Type LEAMQ

Ty
pe

 L
EA

MQ

Ty
pe

 H
AM

P

Type HIG5

Type OXFOQ

Type CP - SINGLE

Type CP - SINGLE

Type CP - SINGLE

Type CP - DOUBLE

Type FA
IR

54.75

54.80

54.88

54.92

54.90

54.97

54.94

54.93

55.12

55.05

54.91

54.92

54.76
54.69

54.72
54.67

54.90

54.89

55.05

55.06
55.09

EL 5
8.5

8

S192

54.71

54.75

54.89

55.00

54.92 54.87

54.75

54.60

54.84

54.98

54.88

54.67

54.95

55.16

55.32

55.04

55.07
54.92

54.90
PO

UK 6h

Ash 9h

53.96

54.18

54.88

54.68

54.44

54.23

54.49

54.70

54.90

55.12

55.45

55.38

54.94

54.84

54.67

55.09

55.09

55.32

55.42

55.50

55.52

56.00

55.29

55.18

55.16

53.92
54.01

54.21

54.53

54.62 54.85

54.76

55.18

55.84

56.00

56.32

56.27

55.97

55.91

55.61
55.43

57.00

56.93

55.18

54.69

54.76

54.5954.61

54.57

54.54

54.48

54.41

54.40

54.26

54.12

54.02

Willow 12h

Ash 12h

UK 8h

55

55

56

C

C

D

D

FLOOD ROUTE DETAIL
WITH SANDBAG

Client

Job Title

Drawing Title

ScaleDate

Drg. No.

C Copyright

Rev.

Drawn by: Checked by:Designed by:

FOR PLANNING FOR TENDER FOR APPROVAL FOR CONSTRUCTION AS BUILT

Drawing Status:

FOR COMMENT

**CONSTRUCTION AT CLIENT / CONTRACTOR RISK**

01793 619 965 | cec@ColeEasdon.com | www.ColeEasdon.com

Redrow Homes Ltd.

Parcel 13A
Forest Road
Warfield
Bracknell

Flood Route Sections
(Sheet 2 of 3)

AJM AJM RB

June 2023 1:200 @ A1

7736/15/02 -

86

AutoCAD SHX Text_3494
Level

AutoCAD SHX Text_3495
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3496
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3497
EXISTING GROUND PROFILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3498
PROPOSED GROUND PROFILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3499
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3500
PROPOSED 1.8m  HIGH FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3501
Level

AutoCAD SHX Text_3502
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3503
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3504
EXISTING GROUND PROFILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3505
PROPOSED GROUND PROFILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3506
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3507
PROPOSED 1.8m  HIGH FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3508
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3509
G 3x0.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3510
HT 5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3511
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3512
G 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3513
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3514
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3515
G 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3516
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3517
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3518
G 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3519
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3520
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3521
G 0.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3522
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3523
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3524
G 0.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3525
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3526
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3527
G 0.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3528
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3529
G 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3530
HT 5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3531
G 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3532
HT 6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3533
53.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_3534
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_3535
G 4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_3536
HT 15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3537
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_3538
G 0.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3539
HT 5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3540
OAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_3541
G 0.8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3542
HT 7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3543
54.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_3544
54.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_3545
54.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3546
54.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_3547
55.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_3548
55.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3549
56.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3550
54.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_3551
54.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_3552
54.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_3553
54.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_3554
54.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3555
54.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3556
55.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_3557
55.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_3558
54.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_3559
54.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3560
55.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_3561
55.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3562
55.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3563
55.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3564
55.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3565
55.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3566
55.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3567
54.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_3568
54.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3569
54.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_3570
54.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3571
54.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3572
54.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_3573
54.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_3574
54.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_3575
54.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3576
55.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_3577
55.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3578
55.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3579
55.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3580
55.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_3581
54.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3582
54.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_3583
54.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_3584
54.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_3585
54.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_3586
55.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3587
54.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3588
54.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3589
54.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_3590
54.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_3591
54.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3592
55.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_3593
55.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3594
54.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3595
55.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_3596
55.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3597
55.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3598
55.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_3599
55.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3600
55.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3601
55.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_3602
55.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3603
54.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_3604
54.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_3605
54.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3606
54.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3607
54.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_3608
54.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3609
54.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_3610
55.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3611
55.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3612
54.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3613
54.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3614
55.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3615
54.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_3616
54.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3617
d0.46 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3618
d0.42 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3619
d0.50 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3620
d0.77 QB2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3621
SCAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_3622
QB3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3623
3" CI

AutoCAD SHX Text_3624
ACO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3625
ROAD3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3626
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3627
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3628
GB 0.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3629
GB 0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3630
RW0.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3631
RW1.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3632
RW1.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3633
RW 0.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3634
FFL 56.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3635
FFL 56.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3636
FFL 56.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3637
FFL 56.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3638
FFL 56.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3639
FFL 56.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3640
FFL 56.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3641
FFL 56.875

AutoCAD SHX Text_3642
FFL 56.825

AutoCAD SHX Text_3643
FFL 56.075

AutoCAD SHX Text_3644
FFL 56.375

AutoCAD SHX Text_3645
+56.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3646
+56.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3647
56.63+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3648
+56.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3649
+56.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3650
+56.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3651
+56.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3652
+56.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3653
+56.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3654
56.72+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3655
56.65+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3656
+56.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3657
+56.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3658
+56.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3659
+56.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_3660
56.35+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3661
56.35+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3662
+53.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3663
+56.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3664
+55.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3665
56.45+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3666
56.85+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3667
+56.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3668
+56.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_3669
+55.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_3670
+54.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3671
54.62+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3672
54.52+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3673
+54.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3674
+54.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3675
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3676
1/25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3677
54.30+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3678
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3679
+54.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3680
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3681
+55.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3682
+55.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3683
+55.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3684
+55.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3685
55.60+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3686
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3687
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3688
56.80+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3689
+56.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3690
56.05+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3691
56.53+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3692
+56.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_3693
+56.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3694
+56.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3695
+56.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3696
+56.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3697
56.67+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3698
+56.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3699
1/5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3700
56.10+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3701
55.20+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3702
+55.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3703
+54.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3704
1/2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3705
+55.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3706
+54.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3707
54.50+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3708
1/2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3709
1/2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3710
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3711
+56.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3712
+56.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3713
1/22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3714
1/15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3715
+56.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3716
+56.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3717
56.46+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3718
56.52+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3719
1/35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3720
1/55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3721
1/12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3722
+53.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3723
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3724
+55.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3725
1/26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3726
56.05+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3727
+56.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3728
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3729
56.10+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3730
56.10+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3731
1/21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3732
1/13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3733
1/16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3734
1/28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3735
+56.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3736
+56.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3737
56.80+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3738
1/22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3739
1/41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3740
+56.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3741
56.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3742
56.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3743
56.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3744
56.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3745
56.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3746
56.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3747
56.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3748
56.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3749
56.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3750
56.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3751
56.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3752
56.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3753
56.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3754
56.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3755
56.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3756
56.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3757
56.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3758
56.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3759
56.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3760
56.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3761
56.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3762
56.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3763
56.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3764
56.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3765
0.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3766
5.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3767
10.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3768
15.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3769
20.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3770
25.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3771
30.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3772
35.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3773
40.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3774
0.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3775
5.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3776
10.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3777
15.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3778
20.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3779
25.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3780
30.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3781
35.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3782
40.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3783
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3784
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3785
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3786
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3787
Ex BW 0.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3788
Ex BW 0.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3789
54.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3790
54.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3791
54.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3792
55.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3793
55.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3794
54.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3795
55.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3796
55.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3797
1/80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3798
+56.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3799
1/70

AutoCAD SHX Text_3800
1/80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3801
1/33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3802
1/18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3803
1/22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3804
ACO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3805
1/75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3806
56.05+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3807
1/75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3808
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3809
ACO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3810
ACO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3811
56.68+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3812
54.87+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3813
54.86+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3814
54.86+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3815
54.92+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3816
+54.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3817
+54.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3818
RW1.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3819
6Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_3820
Lintel to be provided under screen wall to allow  water to pass through for flow route

AutoCAD SHX Text_3821
1/16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3822
+56.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3823
FFL 56.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3824
RW 0.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3825
4Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_3826
5Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_3827
4Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_3828
RW0.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3829
RW0.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3830
RW0.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3831
RW0.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3832
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3833
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3834
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3835
+56.625

AutoCAD SHX Text_3836
56.625+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3837
+55.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3838
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3839
+55.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3840
+55.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3841
+56.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3842
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3843
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3844
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3845
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3846
56.575+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3847
56.625+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3848
56.535+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3849
1/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3850
RW0.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3851
RW0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3852
RW0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3853
RW0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3854
RW0.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3855
Tanking 0.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3856
54.92+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3857
Ex BW 1.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3858
55.65+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3859
+54.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3860
6Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_3861
5Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_3862
+56.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_3863
1/12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3864
+56.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3865
55.85+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3866
1/25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3867
1/31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3868
56.80+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3869
+56.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3870
56.10+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3871
55.02+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3872
55.12+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3873
56.75+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3874
1/5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3875
+54.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3876
56.03+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3877
55.85+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3878
+55.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3879
54.90+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3880
+54.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3881
55.50+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3882
+54.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3883
56.60+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3884
+54.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3885
+54.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3886
56.00+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3887
+54.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3888
54.55+

AutoCAD SHX Text_3889
1/5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3890
150mm deep overland flow  channel 

AutoCAD SHX Text_3891
150mm deep overland flow channel 

AutoCAD SHX Text_3892
5Steps

AutoCAD SHX Text_3893
ACO

AutoCAD SHX Text_3894
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3895
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3896
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3897
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3898
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3899
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3900
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3901
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3902
31.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3903
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3904
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3905
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3906
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3907
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3908
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3909
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3910
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3911
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3912
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3913
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3914
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3915
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3916
Sand bagwork,  Bagwork to be keyed  into channel slope 

AutoCAD SHX Text_3917
REFERENCE DRAWINGS:

AutoCAD SHX Text_3918
Drawing No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3919
Drawing Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_3920
Revision

AutoCAD SHX Text_3921
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_3922
Company

AutoCAD SHX Text_3923
SL.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_3924
Site Layout

AutoCAD SHX Text_3925
Z8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3926
31.05.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3927
Thrive Architects

AutoCAD SHX Text_3928
29286

AutoCAD SHX Text_3929
Topographical and PAS 128:2014 Utility Survey

AutoCAD SHX Text_3930
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3931
01/11/2020

AutoCAD SHX Text_3932
M K Surveys

AutoCAD SHX Text_3933
%%UCROSS SECTIONS (SCALE H 1:100, V 1:100)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3934
%%UCROSS SECTIONS (SCALE H 1:100, V 1:100)



Proposed Levels

Existing Levels

53
.9

5

FFL 54.10

53
.8

3

54
.1

0
53

.9
5

53
.9

5

53
.9

5
54

.1
0

SECTION E-E

53
.8

7

53
.8

0

Proposed Levels

Existing Levels

53
.6

5

FFL 53.425

53
.2

1

53
.6

5

53
.4

25

SECTION F-F

53
.5

2

53
.4

25

53
.5

0
53

.6
5

NO PARKING

ENTER S1

S100

R
C

P

Type HAMP

Type HIG5

Type OXFOQ

Type HENL

Type LETC
Type LETC

Type STRA

Type HARR

Type SHAF

Type CANT

Ty
pe

 W
AR

W
 C

NR

Type CP - DOUBLE

Type CP - SINGLE

Type CP - SINGLE

Type CP - SINGLE

Type PLOTS 34-37

Type FA
IR

53.56

53.36

53.18

53.25

53.28

53.46

53.42

53.65

53.61

53.81

53.71

53.51

53.39

EL
 5

8.
03

EL 58.22

RL 60.51

53.11

53.05

53.31

53.02

53.14

53.27

53.43

53.53

53.30

53.27

53.06

CL 53.03
MH

SV

CL 53.42
MH

RL
 6

1.
23

53.62
53.71

SV

CL 53.37
IC

53.13

53.20

53.51

53.25

53.38 53.28

53.37
53.35

53.35

53.22

53.15

53.27

53.38

53.42

53.57

53.44

Fruit 6h

53.51

53.88

TP

EL
 5

8.
30

RL
 6

0.
52

53.70

53.75

53.44
53.46

53.84

53.60

OHL

SLOW
EL

 5
8.

03

EL 58.22

RL 60.51

53.11

53.05

53.31

53.30

53.27

53.06

CL 53.03
MH

SV

RL
 6

1.
23

CL 53.37
IC

53.13

53.20

53.51

53.25

53.38

53.37
53.35

53.35

53.22

53.15

53.38

53.42

53.57

53.44

Fruit 6h

53.51

EL
 5

8.
30

RL
 6

0.
52

OHL

S188

S189

53.0953.23
53.22

53.34

53.38

53.8853.86
53.89

53.90

53.68

53.89

53.87

DP

53.43

53.06

53.33

53.27

53.88
53.88

53.31

53.05

53.35

RL 58.97

RL 57.05

EL 55.72

53.85

53.86

53.82

53.48

53.31

53.46

53.38

53.80

53.75

53.27

53.23

53.19

53.26

53.27

53.31

53.32

53.30

53.33

53.27

53.25

53.67

PO

PO

PO

EL 58.15

53.45

53.55

53.45

53.67

53.90

53.83

53.84
53.86

53.91

53.84

53.78

53.73

53.74

53.73

53.74

53.67

53.62

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

53.38

CL 53.41

OHL

NO

RL
 6

0.
62

EL
 5

8.
03

53.11

53.05

53.31

54.71

54.67

S193

53.81

54.11

54.17

53.90

53.96

54.18

54.47

54.44

54.23

54.49

54.67

54.28

54.41

53.81

53.92
54.01

53.71

53.81

53.84

54.06

54.21

54.53

54.62 54.85

54.76

54.69

54.76

54.5954.61

54.57

54.54

54.48

54.41

54.40

54.26

54.12

54.02

54.28

Willow 12h

54.23

53.64

53.56

53.4953.41

53.46
53.45

53.80

53.76

53.80

54.09

53.90

54

54

E

E

F

F

FLOOD ROUTE DETAIL
WITH SANDBAG

Client

Job Title

Drawing Title

ScaleDate

Drg. No.

C Copyright

Rev.

Drawn by: Checked by:Designed by:

FOR PLANNING FOR TENDER FOR APPROVAL FOR CONSTRUCTION AS BUILT

Drawing Status:

FOR COMMENT

**CONSTRUCTION AT CLIENT / CONTRACTOR RISK**

01793 619 965 | cec@ColeEasdon.com | www.ColeEasdon.com

Redrow Homes Ltd.

Parcel 13A
Forest Road
Warfield
Bracknell

Flood Route Sections
(Sheet 3 of 3)

AJM AJM RB

June 2023 1:200 @ A1

7736/15/03 A

87



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

Unrestricted Report 

ITEM NO: 6 
Application No. 
23/00426/FUL 

Ward: 
Winkfield and Warfield 

East 

Date Registered: 
11 July 2023 

Target Decision Date: 
5 September 2023 

Site Address: 15 Darwall Drive Ascot Berkshire SL5 8NB   
Proposal: Proposed part single storey, part two storey rear extensions, raising 

of the ridge height and loft conversion, garage conversion. 
Applicant: Mrs Kateryna Kushnir 
Agent: Girard-McMullen 
Case Officer: Benjamin Marshall, 01344 352000 

Development.control@bracknell-forest.gov.uk  
 
 
Site Location Plan  (for identification purposes only, not to scale) 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

89

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Development.control@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

OFFICER REPORT 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 

1.1. The proposal is for the construction of a part single-storey, part two-storey rear 
extension, the raising of the ridge height in association with a loft conversion and a 
garage conversion. 

 
1.2. The proposed development is within the settlement boundary and is therefore 

acceptable in principle. The proposal would not result in an adverse impact on the 
character of the area, highway safety, nor would the development result in a 
detrimental impact on the residential amenity of the occupiers of the neighbouring 
properties. 

 
RECOMMENDATION  
Planning permission be granted subject to the conditions set out in Section 11 of 
this report. 

 
2. REASON FOR REPORTING APPLICATION TO COMMITTEE  

 
2.1. This application has been referred to the Planning Committee as more than 5 

objection comments have been received. 
 
3. PLANNING STATUS AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 

PLANNING STATUS 
Within settlement 
Within 5km of SPA 

 
3.1. No. 15 Darwall Close is a two-storey, 3 bedroom detached dwelling with a detached 

garage to the side.  It is located within the defined settlement boundary.  
 
4. RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 

 
4.1. The relevant planning history is set out below: 
 

08/00540/FUL - Installation of side facing dormer – Refused 29/07/2008 
 
617805 - single storey front extension – Approved 24/03/1992 
 

5. THE PROPOSAL 
 
5.1. Full planning permission is sought for construction of a part single-storey, part two-

storey rear extension, the raising of the ridge height in association with a loft 
conversion and the conversion of a detached garage. The ridge height of the 
dwelling would be increased by 0.37 metres and the two-storey extension would 
project approximately 3 metres in depth from the existing rear wall, with the single-
storey projecting an additional 3 metres off of the two-storey addition. 
 

5.2. The proposal has been amended during the course of the application to reduce the 
bulk and massing of the two-storey rear extension at first floor level.  
 

5.3. The garage conversion itself does not require planning permission as there are no 
conditions on previous permissions that would restrict this.  

 

90



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

 
 

 
 
Extract from planning document: Proposed Elevations, Revision C, dated 18/09/2023. 
 

 
6. REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED 

 
Winkfield Parish Council 

 
6.1. Winkfield Parish Council has considered both the original application details and the 

submitted amendments. The Parish Council has retained its objection to the proposal 
following the revisions, stating the following concerns: 

 
• Overdevelopment 
• Impact on amenity of neighbouring occupiers 

 
Other representations received 

 
6.2. Letters of objection have been received from the occupants of ten neighbouring 

properties, as well as a petition containing 21 signatures. The issues raised can be 
summarised as follows: 

 
• Development too large, 
• Not in keeping with the design of the surrounding area, 
• Potential creation of a HMO or BNB, 

91



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

• Parking Issues, 
• Loss of privacy, 
• Loss of light, 
• Overlooking, 
• Overshadowing, 
• Overbearing, 
• Inaccuracies in the Light Assessment, 
• Inaccuracies in the Section Drawings, 
• Concern regarding linking garage to property. 

 
6.3. The following concerns have also been raised however are not considered material 

considerations in planning decisions.  
 
• Loss of view, 
• Property Devaluation, 
• Disruption during construction. 

 
7. SUMMARY OF CONSULTATION RESPONSES 

 
Highway Authority 
 
7.1. The Highway Authority was consulted and raised some concerns regarding the 

submitted parking plan. Amended plans were received however no further 
consultation was undertaken.  

 
8. MAIN POLICIES AND OTHER DOCUMENTS RELEVANT TO THE DECISION 

 
8.1. The primary strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated 

policies are: 
 

 Development Plan NPPF 2023 
General 
Policies 

• CS1 & CS7 (Design) of the CSDPD 2008 
• EN1 (Protecting tree and hedgerow cover), 

EN20 (Design) of the BFBLP 2002 

Consistent 

Residential 
Amenity 

• EN20 (Design) of the BFBLP 2002 Consistent 

Parking • M9 (Vehicle & Cycle Parking) of the BFBLP 
2002 

Consistent 

Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) 
Parking Standards SPD 
Design SPD 
Building Research Establishment: Site Layout Planning for Daylight and Sunlight: a 
Guide to Good Practice 2022 (BRE SLPDS) 
Other publications 
National Planning Policy Framework 2023 (NPPF),  
National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG). 
The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 
2015 (as amended) 

 
 
 
 

92



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

9. PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
 
9.1. The development will be considered against the following key issues: 

 
i. The principle of development 
ii. Impact on Character and Appearance of Existing Dwelling and Surrounding Area 
iii. Impact on Residential Amenity 
iv. Impact on Highway Safety 

 
i. Principle of Development 

 
9.2. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that 

applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance with the 
development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise, which is 
supported by the NPPF (paras. 2 and 12). Policy CS2 of the CSDPD states that 
development will be permitted within defined settlements. This is provided that the 
development is consistent with the character, accessibility and provision of 
infrastructure and services within that settlement. The above policy is considered to 
be consistent with the NPPF, and as a consequence is considered to carry 
significant weight.  

 
9.3. The site is located in a residential area that is within a defined settlement on the 

Bracknell Forest Borough Policies Map (2013). As a result, the proposed 
development is considered acceptable in principle, subject to no adverse  impact on 
the amenity of the neighbouring occupiers and upon the character and appearance 
of the area, trees and highway safety. 

 
ii. Impact on Character and Appearance of Existing Dwelling and Surrounding 

Area 
 

9.4. ‘Saved’ policy EN20 of the BFBLP states that development should be in sympathy 
with the appearance and character of the local environment and appropriate in scale, 
mass, design, materials etc. Policy CS7 of the CSDPD states that the council would 
require high quality design for all development in Bracknell Forest. Development 
proposals would be permitted which build on the urban local character, respecting 
local patterns of development. Paragraph 126 of the NPPF emphasises the 
importance of good design as key to making places better for people to live. 
Additionally, paragraph 130 of the NPPF states that the design of development 
should help improve the character and quality of an area and the way it functions. 

 
9.5. The proposed development consists of a part two-storey part single-storey rear 

extension, roof enlargement and loft conversion, and conversion and linking of a 
detached garage to habitable accommodation. Each of these elements will be 
considered individually and then cumulatively. 
 
Loft Alterations 

 
9.6. The proposal would involve the raising of the ridge height of the dwelling and the 

conversion of the roof space to habitable accommodation.  
 

9.7. The existing dwelling measures approximately 7.7 metres in height (excluding the 
chimney) with the proposed additions providing an additional 0.37 metres in height. 
The existing eaves height measure approximately 5 metres, with an additional 0.2 
metre being provided from the proposed development. Accordingly, there would be a 
slight change in the angle of the roofslope however this would appear minor.  

93



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

 
9.8. Darwall Drive is set on a shallow sloping hill, which slopes downward from west to 

east, with the change in land levels reflected in the height of the dwellings which 
typically follow the patten. The applicant has submitted a section drawing which 
shows the relative land levels of the neighbouring properties and the application site. 

 
9.9. The plan indicates that the application site and no. 13 Darwall Drive to the west are 

built on the same land level, but with the height of no. 13 measuring 0.3 metres 
higher than the existing dwelling on the application site. There have been concerns 
raised within the submitted neighbour notification responses that this plan does not 
accurately reflect the slope of the road. Whilst the council has no method of verifying 
the land levels the agent for the application was informed of the concerns and 
provided relative dimensions and levels for clarity.   

 
9.10. The submitted plans indicate that the amended ridge height would not exceed that 

of the neighbouring dwelling. Whilst several neighbours have labelled this as out of 
keeping in the street scene it is noted that further west of the application site there 
is an existing situation which has a similar, though more pronounced visual impact. 
The extract from 2023 ‘Google Streetview’ below shows dwellings nos. 5, 7 and 9 
Darwall Drive. Owing to the design of no. 7, whilst the ridge height may be higher 
at its maximum point the recessed nature of this ridge means it has very limited 
impact on the street scene with the front gable end of no. 9 being far more 
dominant.  

 
9.11. The design of these existing dwellings gives the appearance that the ridge on no. 9 

is higher which demonstrates that the sloping roofslopes, which does provide a 
level of character within the road, is not consistent throughout the street. 
Furthermore, the absence of development does not automatically mean that 
development is unacceptable, it is therefore necessary to consider the potential 
visual impact of the application to consider its harm.  

 

 
 
9.12. The uplift in the roof height on the dwelling would not be considered so significant 

a change that it would out of keeping with the existing pattern and scale of 
development present in the street scene. No. 15 would remain of similar 
appearance and scale to no. 13 and sited at a similar level, regardless of the 
presence of a slope. It is therefore unlikely that the scale or design of the proposed 
development would appear out of keeping, particularly when compared to the no. 
13 Darwall Drive. Whilst the maximum ridge height is shown on the plans, due to 
concerns regarding the accuracy of the plans, a condition will be included if the 

94



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

application is approved to ensure that at no point is the ridge height of no. 13 
exceeded by the highest ridge of the proposed development.  

 
9.13. No. 17 is a semi-detached bungalow which is sited to the east of the application 

site. The submitted plans indicate that the bungalow is set down by approximately 
0.5 metre, with a 3.7 metre distance between the main ridge heights of the 
properties. Whilst as a result of the development the distance between the ridge 
heights of the dwellings would increase, it is not considered that there would be 
such a substantial visual change that the resultant dwelling would appear overly 
prominent.  

 
9.14. The enlarged roof would be converted as part of the development to provide the 

fourth bedroom and an ensuite. There is no objection to the conversion of this 
space into habitable accommodation, it is noted that some form of accommodation 
could be attained from converting the existing roofspace, which would not require 
planning permission. Therefore, this element is found to be acceptable. 

 
9.15. Furthermore, concern has been raised regarding the insertion of a front facing 

window at second floor level, however it is noted that this could be achieved 
through permitted development under Schedule 2, Part 1, Class A of The Town 
and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as 
amended). Therefore, this element is found to be acceptable.  

 
Two-storey rear extension 
 

9.16. The proposed two-storey element of the rear extension would be located to the 
north of the dwelling and would measure a maximum of 7.66 metres in height, 
4.97 metres to the eaves, 3 metres in depth and 6.45 metres in width.  

 
9.17. The two-storey element would have a dual pitched roof and would be set down 

from the amended ridge height by 0.41 metres. This element would have a 
hipped roof and include a single rooflight in its west, north and east roofslopes. 
This element would not include any side facing windows and would only include 
one window within the rear elevation at first floor level. 

 
9.18. The two-storey element would be set in from the side elevations and set down 

from the ridge line of the enlarged dwelling. It would only protrude a maximum of 
3 metres and as such would appear subservient in scale and design to the host 
dwelling.  

 
Single-storey rear extension and garage conversion 

 
9.19. The proposal would include a flat roofed single-storey extension which would 

connect to the existing garage. This element of the development would have a 
protruding roof lantern. The proposed single-storey element would measure 
approximately 3.2 metres in height, 3 metres in depth and 6.8 metres in width.  

 
9.20. The extension would be considered a minor addition to the site and would not be 

considered out of keeping in regard to its scale or design. Whilst the extension 
would attach to the existing garage this is not considered harmful to the design of 
the dwelling and would have little impact within the street scene.  

 
9.21. As part of the proposal the existing garage would be converted to habitable 

accommodation, which includes the replacement of the garage door with a door 
and window. Objection has been raised regarding the conversion of the garage; 

95



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

however, it is considered that this could be undertaken without the need for 
planning permission.  

 
9.22. There is no evidence of any conditions on the original planning permission which 

would prevent the conversion of the garage. In the absence of such evidence, it is 
assumed that there is no relevant condition which would prevent this. As such, it is 
considered that this element is deemed acceptable, subject to the finish of the wall 
replacing the garage door matching in appearance the existing materials.  

 
9.23. In totality, the proposed development by virtue of its position, design and scale 

would comply with 'saved' policy EN20 of the Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan 
2002, policy CS7 of Core Strategy Development Plan Document 2008, the Design 
SPD 2017 and the NPPF 2023. 

 
 

iii. Impact on Residential Amenity 
 
9.24. 'Saved' policy EN20 of the BFBLP states that development will not adversely 

 affect the amenity of surrounding properties and adjoining area. Paragraph  130 
 of the NPPF states that the Local Planning Authority should ensure high 
 quality amenity for all existing and future users. 

 
9.25. The neighbouring dwellings most impacted by the proposed development would 

be nos. 13 and 17 Darwall Drive to the north-west and south-east respectively. 
No. 13 shares an access with no. 15 Darwall Drive, as well as a semi-detached 
garage unit set behind the main dwellings.  

 
Overlooking 

 
9.26. The Design SPD recommends that rear windows are separated  from the rear 

garden boundary by at least 10 metres, with at least 22 metres to the nearest 
upper storey windows to the rear, at least 30m from windows at second floor level 
and 15m to the rear boundary. The Design SPD recommends that all upper 
storey side windows are restricted to be obscure-glazed and top-opening only. 

 
9.27. The existing dwelling is separated from the rear boundary of the site by 

approximately 16 metres. The proposed two-storey extension would therefore be 
separated from the same boundary by 13 metres. The distance to the closest 
neighbouring dwelling to the rear is approximately 18 metres.  

 
9.28. Whilst it is acknowledged that the proposed two-storey development does not 

fully comply with the recommendations of the Design SPD this does not 
inherently make it unacceptable. It does indicate however that the development 
would be likely to have a detrimental impact in terms of overlooking,  

 
9.29. It is necessary to consider the impact of the proposed development against what 

could be achieved without the need for planning permission. The two-storey 
extension is of a scale which is considered to be achievable through the use of 
permitted development under Schedule 2, Part 1, Class A of The Town and 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as 
amended). It is acknowledged that the development would fail to comply with the 
criteria of the legislation if it connected to any other extensions to the existing 
dwelling in accordance with criterion A.1 (ja), which would include the roof 
enlargement and the single-storey extension.  

 

96



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

9.30. In terms of the likelihood of this fallback position the proposed two-storey 
extension would not exceed the highest part of the roof, nor the height of the 
eaves of the existing dwelling. The extension would not protrude more than 3 
metres, nor be within 7 metres of the rear boundary or 2 metres from any side 
boundary of the property. As such, it is considered that the proposed two-storey 
extension could reasonably be undertaken under permitted development, as long 
as the criterion under Class A are adhered to.  

 
9.31. It is therefore considered that, whilst the two-storey extension would not adhere 

to the full extent of design recommendations outlined within the SPD, it could be 
achieved without need for permission and therefore is considered acceptable, 
given the fallback position.  

 
9.32. The proposed single-storey element is unlikely to result in an increase in 

overlooking and therefore is found to be acceptable.  
 

9.33. The proposed loft enlargement and two-storey extension would benefit from 
rooflights to each side roofslope. Concern has been raised regarding overlooking 
and as such it considered reasonably to require these rooflights to be obscure 
glazed and non-opening below 1.7 metres above floor of the room in which the 
rooflights are installed in. It is noted that side rooflights to the existing dwelling 
would be bound by the same condition under the permitted development criteria 
and therefore this condition is considered reasonable.  

 
9.34. Overall, it is not considered the proposed development would result in 

unacceptable overlooking. 
 

Impact on Light  
 

9.35. The Building Research Establishment (BRE) guide ‘Site layout planning for 
daylight and sunlight’ is used as a guideline for assessing potential losses of light 
and the acceptable levels of loss for a habitable room. The guide specifies that: 
The guidelines given here are intended for use for rooms in adjoining dwellings 
where daylight is required, including living rooms, kitchens, and bedrooms. 
Windows to bathrooms, toilets, storerooms, circulation areas, and garages need 
not be analysed. 

 
9.36. The neighbouring dwellings which have the greatest potential to be impacted in 

regard to the development’s impact on light are nos. 13 and 17 Darwall Drive to 
the north-west and south-east of the application site. As part of the application a 
Daylight and Sunlight Assessment has been submitted which focuses on the 
potential impacts on no. 17 Darwall Drive.  

 
9.37. No. 13 Darwall Drive benefits from a two-storey extension to the rear of the 

property which was approved under application 13/00452/FUL. The extension 
includes two ground floor windows serving an open plan kitchen and one first 
floor side window serving a bathroom.  

 
9.38. The proposed two-storey extension would be sited to the side of the neighbouring 

extension and accordingly there is a concern regarding the loss of light. It is 
noted that the ground floor kitchen benefits from a dual aspect relationship with 
two additional openings to the rear of no. 13. Furthermore, the first-floor 
bathroom is not considered a habitable room. This, in addition to the previously 
identified permitted development fallback means that the proposed extension 

97



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

would not be considered to result in a detrimental loss of light sufficient to warrant 
refusal.  

 
9.39. No. 17 Darwall Drive is a bungalow set at a lower ground level to the application 

site by approximately 0.5 metres. The dwelling benefits from two side facing 
windows at ground floor level, one serving a shower room and one serving and 
one serving what is assumed to be a bedroom. This information is based on 
information from approved application 19/00022/FUL and communications with 
the neighbouring property owner.  

 
9.40. Both of these existing side facing windows on the neighbouring property are set 

in from the rear of the dwelling and consequently are located opposite the side 
wall of no. 15 Darwall Drive. Whilst the roof height would be raised the change in 
the eaves is 0.2 metres which is unlikely to cause a significant change in the 
existing light situation with these side-facing windows.  

 
9.41. The proposed two-storey rear extension would pass the 45-degree test, as 

outlined within the BREEAM standards, when measured horizontally from the 
center of the closest rear window on the neighbouring property. In addition to this, 
it is considered that it would pass the vertical 45-degree test as well. As such, it is 
unlikely that the proposed two-storey extension would result in a detrimental 
impact on the light received by no. 17 Darwall Drive.  

 
9.42. There are no concerns regarding the ground floor additions or garage conversion 

in regard to loss of light. 
 

9.43. Overall, it is therefore not considered that the extension would result in a 
detrimental loss of light.  

 
Overbearing 

 
9.44. The Design SPD specifies that new developments should not result in an 

overbearing impact on neighbouring properties. Design recommendations include 
“setting the extension away from the property boundary so as to avoid any 
dramatic change in scale in relation to the neighbouring garden" 

 
9.45. The example provided in the Design SPD shows a two-storey side extension, 

 additionally the Design SPD states that additional separation distances may 
 be necessary "as storeys rise" to mitigate against overbearing impacts. It can be 
 determined therefore that generally a single storey extension is less likely to 
 result in a significant overbearing impact on neighbouring properties compared to 
 an extension of two or more storeys.  

 
9.46. The proposed two-storey rear extension is limited in scale and is set away from 

the boundary fence, between the application site and no. 17 Darwall Drive, by 
approximately 2 metres at the narrowest point and 2.7 metres at the widest. The 
extension would only protrude 3 metres in depth and the hipped roof on the two-
storey element would further help reduce the extension’s bulk when viewed from 
the neighbouring properties. As such, it is not considered that the two-storey 
element would result in an unacceptable overbearing impact.  

 
9.47. The increased height of the dwelling’s ridge and eaves is unlikely to be seen as 

overbearing as the increase is considered to be minor in scale and would not 
significant when compared to the existing dwelling. 

 

98



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

9.48. There are no concerns raised by the proposed single-storey extension or 
conversion of the garage.  

 
9.49. In totality the proposal, by virtue of its scale, design and position, would not be 

considered to result in an adverse impact on the amenity of the neighbouring 
properties to warrant refusal. As such, it would comply with 'saved' policy EN20 of 
the Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan 2002, the Design SPD 2017 and the 
NPPF 2023. 

 
iv. Impact on Highway Safety 

 
9.50. Policy CS23 of the Core Strategy Development Plan Document 2008 states 

 that the council will use its planning and transport powers to reduce the 
need  to travel, increase the safety of travel, promote alternative modes of travel 
and  promote travel planning. 'Saved' policy M9 of the Bracknell Forest Borough 
Local  Plan 2002 states that development will not be permitted unless satisfactory 
 parking provision is made for vehicles and cycles. This policy also states 
that compliance with the standards set out in the Bracknell Forest Borough 
Parking Standards,  Supplementary Planning Document 2016 (SPD) will 
ensure that in normal circumstances satisfactory off-carriageway parking 
provision will be made for the traffic generated by new development. 

 
9.51. The residential standards in the SPD state that a four or more bedroomed 

dwelling requires 3 parking spaces. The standard size of a parking space is 4.8 
metres in length and 2.4 metres in width. Any new garage should have a width of 
3.5 metres and a depth of 6.0 metres (excluding storage). 

 
9.52. The existing dwelling benefits from 3no. bedrooms, with the proposed 

development providing one additional bedroom. The proposed plans also indicate 
a large walk-in-wardrobe which is of a similar size to the second bedroom, which 
could be considered an additional bedroom, totalling 5no. bedrooms. A parking 
plan has been submitted to support the application showing 3no. parking spaces 
in line with the Council’s Parking Standards SPD. Concern has been raised 
regarding the scaling of the proposed parking plan which does not accurately 
scale to 1:100. The applicant has denoted the measurements of the parking 
spaces on the parking plan which is considered to satisfactory demonstrate that 
they would comply with the requirements of the SPD. A condition will be included 
on any approval which requires the spaces to be laid out formally prior to 
occupation.  

 
9.53. Whilst the proposed development would convert the existing garage it is noted 

that the existing garage does not to comply with the stated dimensions outlined 
within the SPD and therefore, would not need to be replaced.  Furthermore, there 
is no evidence that there was a restrictive condition on the original planning 
consent for the garage and therefore, the conversion could be undertaken 
without requiring planning consent.  

 
9.54. As the dwelling is in existing use and the proposal is for an extension  there is no 

 need to consider the provision of bin and cycle storage.  
 

9.55. As such, the proposal would be in accordance with 'saved' policy M9 of the 
 Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan 2002, policy CS23 of the Core Strategy 
 Development Plan Document 2008 and Bracknell Forest Borough Parking 
 Standards SPD 2016. 

 

99



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

10. CONCLUSION 
 

10.1. It is considered that the development is acceptable in principle and would not 
result in an unacceptable adverse impact on the character of the area or on 
highway safety, nor would the development result in a detrimental impact on the 
residential amenity of the occupiers of the neighbouring properties. As such, the 
scheme is considered to accord with the relevant 'saved' policies of the Bracknell 
Forest Borough Local Plan 2002, the Core Strategy Development Plan Document 
2008, the Bracknell Forest Borough Parking Standards SPD 2016 the Design 
SPD and the NPPF 2023. 

 
10.2. Therefore, the application is recommended for conditional approval. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
11. That the application be approved subject to the following conditions: 
 
 

01. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 
years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON:  To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
(as amended). 
 

02. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance with the 
following approved plans:  

 
Existing Floor Plans, received on 11/07/2023, Amended Existing and Proposed Site 
Plans Rev A and Amended Proposed Sections & Levels Rev A, received on 
18/09/2023, Amended Proposed Parking Plan Rev A, received on 10/10/2023, and 
Amended Existing Elevations, Amended Proposed Elevations Rev B, Amended 
Proposed Elevations Rev C, Amended Proposed Floor Plans Rev C received on 
16/10/2023. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out only as approved by the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 

03. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the 
development hereby permitted shall be of similar appearance to those of the existing 
dwelling. 

 
REASON: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. 

 
04. The proposed windows and rooflights at first floor level and above in the side (north-

west and south-east) elevations of the dwellinghouse hereby approved, shall be 
glazed with a minimum of Pilkington Level 3 obscure glass (or equivalent) and be 
non-opening below 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which it is installed.   
 
REASON: To prevent the overlooking of neighbouring properties. 
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN20] 

 
05. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that 
Order with or without modification) no additional windows, similar openings or 
enlargement thereof shall be constructed at first floor level or above in the side (north-

100



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

west and south-east) elevations of the development hereby permitted except for any 
which may be shown on the approved drawings, unless they are glazed with a 
minimum of Pilkington Level 3 obscure glass (or equivalent) or the parts of the 
window, opening or enlargement which are clear glazed are more than 1.7 metres 
above the floor of the room in which it is installed.   
 
REASON: To prevent the overlooking of neighbouring properties. 
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN20] 
 

06. The ridge height of the development hereby approved shall not exceed the existing 
ridge height of no. 13 Darwall Drive, when measured from the highest adjacent 
natural ground level. 
 
REASON: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. 
 

07. The development shall not be occupied until the associated car parking for 3 cars has 
been surfaced in accordance with the approved drawing ‘Amended Proposed Parking 
Plan’ revision A, received on 10/10/2023. The spaces shall thereafter be kept 
available for parking at all times. 
  
REASON: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate car parking to 
prevent the likelihood of on-street car parking which would be a danger to other road 
users. 
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP M9, Core Strategy DPD CS23] 
 
 

INFORMATIVES: 
 

01. The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 
application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations, including 
planning policies and any representations that may have been received and 
subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 
 

02. No builder's materials, plant or vehicles related to the implementation of the 
development should be parked/stored on the public highway so as to cause an 
obstruction at any time. 
 

03. The applicant should note that this permission does not convey any authorisation to 
enter onto land or to carry out works on land not within the applicant’s ownership. 

 
04. No details are required to be submitted in relation to the following conditions; 

however, they are required to be complied with: 
 
01. Time limit 
02. Approved plans 
03. Materials 
04. Obscure Glazed and Non-Opening 
05. Additional Windows 
06. Ridge Height 

 
05. This is a planning permission. Before beginning any development, you may also need 

separate permission(s) under Building Regulations or other legislation. It is your 

101



Planning Committee  9th November 2023 
 

responsibility to check that there are no covenants or other restrictions that apply to 
your property. 

 
 
 

 
  
 

102


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	 Planning Applications
	PLANNING COMMITTEE
	Background Papers
	PLANNING COMMITTEE - POLICY REFERENCES
	Key to abbreviations used in the following planning reports.

	5 PS 21/00592/FUL Land South Of Forest Road Newell Green Warfield Bracknell Berkshire
	5. 21-00592-FUL - Appendix 1 - Drainage Non-Technical Note
	Insert from: "7736-15-03 Rev A Flood Route Sections-Sheet 3.pdf"
	Sheets and Views
	Sheet 3


	Insert from: "7736 - 501 Rev L Proposed Drainage Strategy.pdf"
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	Insert from: "7736 - 15 - 02 Flood Route Sections (Sheet 2).pdf"
	Sheets and Views
	Sheet 2


	Insert from: "7736 - 15 - 01 Flood Route Sections (Sheet 1).pdf"
	Sheets and Views
	Sheet 1




	6 PS 23-00426-FUL 15 Darwall Drive, Ascot, Berkshire, SL5 8NB

